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P-ROCE-EDI-NGS
(9:03 a.m)

MS. SILVEY: Good norning, everybody.
| guess nobody can say good norning in return.
That's okay. W'Il take that too.

Before we get started, |1'd like to
direct your attention to the exits in this room
There are three exits to ny left, and you all can
see one, two, three, in case of an energency,
whi ch obvi ously we don't antici pate.

Also, I'd Iike to announce the codes
to the bathroons. The code to the wonen's
bathroomis 415. The code to the nen's bat hroom
is 243. If you forget that, forget the codes,
|"mgoing to put this little yellow sticky right
here, and you're welconme to |ook at it.

So, as nost of you know, and maybe
sonme of you who -- sonme of you don't know. [|I'm
not sure. Well, | won't say that. This is a
public hearing on the Mne Safety and Health
Adm nistration's Proposed Rule on the Criteria

and Procedures for the Assessnent of G vil

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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Penal ti es.

My nane is Patricia W Silvey, and
that's S-I-L-V-E-Y. [|'mthe Deputy Assistant
Secretary here at MSHA, and | will be the
noderator of this public hearing on our proposed
rul e.

On behal f of Assistant Secretary of
Labor for Mne Safety and Health, Joe Min,
woul d Iike to wel cone all of you here today, and
we really do appreciate your attendance at this
heari ng.

|'d Iike to introduce the Menbers of
the Panel. To ny left is Jay Mattos, and he is
the Director of the Ofice of Assessnments. Many
of you know Jay. He is the Chair of the G vil
Penal ti es Rul enaking Conm ttee.

To my right is Sheila MConnell.
She's the Acting Director of the Ofice of
St andards, and to her right is Anthony Jones, and
he's with our solicitor's office.

MSHA published this GCvil Penalties

Proposed Rule on July 31st, and in response to

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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requests fromthe public, is holding two public
hearings to receive testinony. Cbviously, you
know this is the first hearing, and the second
hearing will be held on Decenber 9th in Denver,
Col orado. But for your information, | want to

announce that we plan to hold two additi onal

heari ngs.

They have not been specifically
schedul ed, but we will announce them as soon as
we can. The hearings will be held in Chicago and

i n Bi rm ngham

Qoviously, we will extend the post
heari ng comrent period right now, probably unti
about m d-February. | would say that depends on
when the other two hearings are held. W wll
allow at | east an additional 30 days past the
time -- the date of the last -- of the next
hearing we're going to have. W w |l announce
t hat obviously in the Federal Register.

The purpose of this hearing, as nost
of you know, is to receive information fromthe

public that will help MSHA eval uate the proposed

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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changes and develop a final rule. W ask that
you please sign the sign-in sheet in the back of
the room and nost likely, nost of you have done
t hat .

MSHA hearings, as al so nost of you
know, are conducted in an infornal nanner.

Formal rules of evidence do not apply. The
heari ng panel nay ask questions of the speakers.
The speakers nmay ask questions of the hearing
panel .

Speakers and ot her attendees nay
present information to the court reporter for
inclusion in the rul emaking record. MSHA wi | |
accept witten comments and ot her information for
the record fromany interested party, including
t hose not presenting oral statenents.

| will now provide a short overview of
the civil penalties process. Section 104 of the
M ne Act, Federal Mne Safety and Health Act of
1977 requires themto issue citations or orders
to mine operators for violations of a mandatory

safety or health standard.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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On issuing a citation or order, the
Secretary's Authorized Representative of the
i nspector specifies a tine for the violation to
be abated. Sections 105 and 110 of the M ne Act
requires to propose a civil penalty for
violations, and | will at this tine reiterate the
definitions of several ternms we use throughout
t he rule.

The first termis significant and
substantial or S&S. As many of you know, an S&S
violation is one that is reasonably likely to
result in a reasonably serious injury or illness.
The inspector makes the S&S determ nation at the
time the citation is issued.

Another termis unwarrantable failure.
The term has been defined to nmean aggravat ed
conduct constituting nore than ordinary
negl i gence by a m ne operator.

Under the M ne Act, MSHA proposes
penalties and the Federal M ne Safety and Health
Revi ew Conmm ssion, or the Conm ssion, assess

penal ti es.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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Under MSHA's existing rule, a proposed
penalty that is not contested within 30 days
becomes a final order of the Conm ssion, and is
not subject to review by any court or review ng
agency.

The M ne Act requires MSHA and the
Conmmi ssion to consider six criteria in proposing
and assessing penalties: The appropriateness of
the penalty to the size of the business, the
operator's history of previous violations,
whet her the operator was negligent, the gravity
of the violation, the operator's good faith in
abating the condition and the effect of the
penalty on the operator's ability to continue in
busi ness.

The first five criteria are applied to
determ ne the penalty anmount. The last criterion
is the effect of the penalty on the operator's
ability to continue in business is applied when
requested by a mne operator after the penalty is
pr oposed.

The operator sends in docunentation

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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and MSHA reviews the docunentation and nay adj ust
the penalty. MSHA' s proposal to anmend the

eval uation factors for determ ning the regul ar
formula penalties is -- and by the way, this
proposed rule only deals with the regular fornula
penal ti es.

MSHA' s proposal is structured to
encourage operators to be nore accountabl e and
proactive in addressing safety and health
conditions. MSHA was gui ded by three key
principles in devel opi ng the proposed rul e:
| mprovenent in consistency, objectivity,
ef ficiency and how i nspectors wite citations and
orders by reduci ng the nunber of decisions
i nspectors have to nake, which could | ead, MSHA
projected, to fewer areas of dispute and earlier
resol uti on of enforcenent issues.

Second principle was greater enphasis
on the nore serious safety and health conditions,
and the third principle was openness and
transparency in the application of the agency's

regul ar formula penalty.
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The proposal does not change the
process that inspectors use to issue citations.
Under the proposals, inspectors would continue to
make factual determ nations of safety and health
vi ol ations, and issue citations and orders just
as they do now.

The proposed rul e would reduce the
maxi mum nunber of penalty points that could be
assigned from 208 under the existing rule to 100.
It involves changes, as | said earlier, to MSHA s
regular formula penalty, including a change to
the citation and order form which is MSHA form
7000- 3.

| think we have copies of the draft
form W have copies of the draft formin the
back of the room

Usi ng the regul ar assessnent formula
under the proposed rule, total penalties proposed
by MSHA and the distribution of the penalty
anount by mne size would generally remain the
sanme as under the existing rule.

| say generally because we expect that

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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total penalty amounts for small netal/nonnetal
m nes, as we did our evaluation, which we
i ncluded in the proposal, would decrease.

The existing m nimum penalty of
$112. 00 and the maxi nrum penalty of $70, 000.00 for
non-fl agrant violations would not change. The
maxi mum penal ty of $242, 000. 00, obviously for
flagrant violations, would not change.

Under the proposal, mninmmpenalties
for unwarrantable failure violations would
i ncrease to provide a greater deterrent for mne
operators who allow these types of violations to
occur. At this point, | would like to reiterate
sonme of the specific requests for comments and
i nformation that were included in the preanble to
t he proposed rul e.

First, MSHA is proposing a change to
how an operator's overall violation history would
be determ ned; to increase the weight of the
violation history criterion as a percentage of
total penalty points and in recognition of the

i mportance of the need for operators to prevent

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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violations fromoccurring and recurring.

| also think we have copies of a
vi sual that depicts the percentage of each
criterion under the existing rule as conpared to
the projection of the percentage of each
criterion under the proposed rule.

An operator's history of previous
violation is based on both the total nunber of
vi ol ations, and the nunber of repeat violations
of the same provision of a standard in a 15-nonth
period proceedi ng, the occurrence date of the
vi ol ati on bei ng assessed.

Under the existing rule, only
vi ol ati ons that have been paid, fined or
adj udi cated or have otherw se becone final orders
of the Comm ssion (final orders) we refer to them
as final orders are included and determi ned in an
operator's violation history.

MSHA' s proposing to clarify its intent
under the existing rule that only violations that
have becone final orders of the Comm ssion are

included in a violation history.
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The proposal woul d revise the
negligence criteria to increase accountability
for operators who either knew or shoul d ve known
of safety and health hazards at their mnes. The
proposal would increase the relative wei ght of
the negligence criteria and reduce it five
categories under the existing rule to three.

In the majority of contested cases
bef ore the Commi ssion, the issue is the parties'
di sagreenent on the degree of negligence. The
proposed reduction in the anmount of categories
woul d not change the definitions of not negligent
and reckl ess disregard.

Under the proposal, the definition of
negl i gence woul d be revised to nean that the
oper at or knew or shoul d' ve known about the
conditional practice.

Sone coment ers have expressed concern
t hat reducing the categories of negligence would
result in violations being placed in a higher
category. | heard that when | recently attended

a conference in Birmngham | did hear that.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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Commenters projected that reducing the
categori es of negligence would result in
vi ol ati ons being placed in a higher category, and
woul d result in higher penalties.

In MSHA' s projection of penalties
under the proposal, which is what we included in
t he proposed rule, MSHA did not nake this
assunption. Rather, MSHA assuned that | ow,
noder ate and hi gh negligence determ nati ons woul d
fall into the negligence category, and that is
what we assumed. We can have nore di scussion
about that.

Under the proposed rule, the
categori es of no negligence and reckl ess
di sregard would remain the sane. The proposed
rule woul d, we have recei ved comments on this,
woul d renmove mtigating circunstances fromthe
negl i gence category definition.

MSHA bel i eves that reduci ng the nunber
of negligence categories would inprove
objectivity and consistency in the inspector's

eval uati on of negligence, thereby facilitating

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

15

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

earlier resolution of enforcenent issues.

The proposed rule would restructure
the point table for the proposed categories to
reflect an increase in the relative weight of the
negligence criteria. You can see that in the
vi sual that we provided, that the agency has done
that inits belief that that change appropriately
reflects actions under the control of operators
that have a direct inpact on mner safety and
heal t h.

The proposed provision would retain
the three gravity factors in the existing rule:
| i kel i hood of the occurrence, severity of injury
or illness if the event were to occur, and
persons potentially affected but woul d reduce the
nunber of subcategories associated with each
factor.

Simlar to the agency's proposed
changes to the negligence criteria, the proposal
woul d sinplify the gravity criteria by decreasing
t he subcategories of each of the proposed factors

of gravity.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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MSHA bel i eves that this proposed
change woul d decrease inspector subjectivity, and
i mprove objectivity and consi stency. Sone
comment ers have expressed concern that reducing
t he subcategories of gravity would result in
vi ol ati ons being placed in a higher category, and
result in higher penalties.

The proposal woul d reduce the existing
five categories of likelihood of the occurrence
to three: Unlikely, reasonably likely or occur.
Commenters objected to the renoval of the
exi sting no-likelihood category; however, as
di scussed in the preanble to the proposal; the
exi sting categories of no likelihood and unlikely
woul d be conbined to inprove objectivity and
consi stency of enforcenent.

The proposal would elimnate the
highly likely category. | mght digress here. |

was | ooking at this comment nyself the other

ni ght, and when | | ooked at it, | was thinking
about it. | thought, "That comrent sort of nmakes
sense. "

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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But then when | | ooked at it, and we
conbined no likelihood, no |ikelihood had zero
penalty points, and has zero penalty points under
the existing rule. So, | |ooked at the proposal:
t he conbination of no Iikelihood and unlikely.

Vell, guess what? No |ikelihood and
unlikely, zero penalty points. So, anyway. You
make a call.

Severity: the proposal would reduce
the four existing categories of severity of the
injury or illness to 3. No lost work days. Lost
wor kdays or restricted duty or fatal. It would
el imnate existing permanently disabling
category, which sonetines is often for the
i nspector to antici pate.

It would change the persons affected
aspect of the gravity criteria. Under the
proposal, the inspector could nmake 11 different
determ nations for persons affected and those 11
different categories would be reduced to 2: no
persons affected or persons affected.

As stated in the proposed rule, NMSHA

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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woul d I'i ke to enphasize that sinplification wll
enabl e MSHA to be nore consistent in citations.
MSHA wi | | enphasi ze the proposed changes in
future inspector training obviously.

The rule was structured to have
m ni mal changes in overall penalties. The
proposal does place an increased enphasis on
operators who continue to allow violations to
occur.

Li ke the existing rule, the proposal
woul d provide for a 10 percent reduction in the
penal ty anmount of a regul ar assessnent, where the
operat or based the violation within the tinme set
by the inspector.

In an effort to provide for increased
operat or focus on prevention of safety and health
hazards, MSHA is considering an alternative that
woul d recogni ze both pronpt operator abatenent of
safety and health hazards, as well as pronpt
paynment of the proposed penalties.

Consistent with this, and with the

prior civil penalty regulations, this alternative

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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woul d provi de an additional 20 percent good faith
reduction in proposed penalties when neither the
penalty nor the violation is contested, and the
penalty is paid before it beconmes the final order
of the Revi ew Comm ssi on.

Under this alternative, operators who
pronptly abate the safety and heal th hazards
pronptly pay the penalties would be eligible for
up to a 30 percent overall good faith reduction
in the amount of penalties.

W have got comrents on that also.
Most of the comments do not |ike the additional
20 percent to the operators giving up their right
to contest.

MSHA i s proposing an increase in the
m ni mum penalties for unwarrantable fail ure;
citations and orders by 50 percent to provide a
greater deterrence for operators who allow these
types of violations to occur.

Under the proposal, citations or
orders issued under Section 104(d)(1) would be

$3, 000. 00 for the mnimum penalty, and for

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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citations and orders issued on Section 104(d)(2)
woul d be $6, 000. 00.

Several comrenters have stated that
taking this proposed action is not necessary,
stating that initiatives such as Rules to Live By
and i npact inspections have worked.

Finally, in the proposal, in the
preanble to the proposal, MSHA offered
alternatives related to the scope and
applicability of the rule, and nost of you have
read those alternatives because we have got
comments, real specific comments, on those
al ternatives.

In the proposal, MSHA seeks comments
on the two alternatives that woul d address the
applicability of the proposed civil penalty
formul a when the Federal M ne Safety and Health
Revi ew Conm ssion assess civil penalties.

MSHA' s first proposed alternative
woul d be to nodify the scope and applicability of
MSHA's civil penalty regulations so that it would

govern both MSHA's proposal of penalties and the

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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Commi ssion's assessnent of civil penalties.

Simlarly, this alterative would
require the admnistrative |law judge to apply the
penalty formula to the facts found by the ALJ
when assessing civil penalties according to the
six statutory criteria.

|f the Secretary, under this
alterative, neets his burden to prove the facts
al l eged, the forrmula woul d be used to assess the
penalty. |If the Secretary does not neet his
burden, the judge would apply the civil penalty
formula to the facts that are found to arrive at
t he assessnent.

MSHA' s second proposed alternati ve,
simlar to the first, but we give the Commi ssion
nore flexibility to depart fromthe civil penalty
formula in appropriate cases.

MSHA did not prepare a separate
regul atory econom c anal ysis for the proposed
rule, but its analysis was presented in the
preanbl e to the proposal.

MSHA requests comments, and we have

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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gotten sonme on the estimtes of costs and
benefits presented in the preanble, and on the
data and assunptions the agency used to devel op
esti mat es.

| mght say that we have gotten
coments, but when we do get comments on our
estimates, if you would be real specific in your
-- the data that you present instead of
presenting summary data, and be specific in how
you arrived at your data in your concl usions.

MSHA solicits comments that address
alternatives to all of the aspects of the
proposal. As | said before in tal king about the
estimates of cost and benefits, commenters are
requested to be specific and submt detailed
rational e and supporting docunentation for any
suggested alternatives.

You may submt comments at this public
heari ng, as many of you know, and through the
cl ose of the conment period, which will probably
be around m d- February, but we will be announci ng

that in the Federal Register.
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MSHA wi || nmake avail able a verbatim
transcript of this public hearing, approximtely
two weeks after the conpletion, and you may vi ew
the transcripts on MSHA' s website, ww. MSHA. gov,
and on www. Regul ati ons. gov.

W will now begin today's testinony.
| f you have a copy of your presentation, please
provide it to the court reporter, and to the MSHA
panel , and pl ease begin by clearly stating your
nane and organi zati on, and spelling your nane, if
you woul d, please, for the court reporter to nmake
sure we have an accurate record.

At this point, thank you. W wll
begin with our first speaker. Qur first speaker
is Adel e Abrans of the Law O fice of Adele
Abr ans.

M5. ABRAMS: Good norning. M/ nane is
Adel e Abrams. That's A-D-E-L-E, just like the
singer. Abrans is AB-RA-MS. |I'mpleased to
present these comments on MSHA' s proposed rul e,
to nodify the civil penalty criteria in 30 CFR

Part 100.3, and al so to nake other changes to the
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system of jurisprudence, established in the M ne
Act .

I"'ma Certified Mne Safety
Prof essional and attorney with the Law O fice of
Adele L. Abrams PCin Beltsville, Mryland, and
Denver, Colorado, and | amtestifying as counsel
today on behalf of our client, United Safety
Associ ates, or USA.

USA is a California based associ ati on,
provi di ng education and training services to its
menbership in the areas of illness and injury
prevention, accident and injury avoi dance, safety
and ri sk managenent procedures, and nai ntaining
wor k pl ace safety.

In addition, USA is active in
| egislative affairs, representing its nenbership
and rel evant issues.

First and forenpst, USA strives to
protect miners in the work place and assist its
menbership in fostering safety cultures and safe
wor kpl aces.

USA appreciates the spirit of the

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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proposed Civil Penalty Rule, however we believe
that the effects of the rule as proposed woul d be
detrinmental to mine operators wthout any
comensurate safety and health benefits.

Specifically, USA objects to the
proposed nodifications to both negligence and
gravity, the increased wei ght of history
violation, including the BPID and RPID rates, the
proposed increase in mninmmpenalties for
unwarrantable failures, and MSHA's attenpt to
govern and regulate the inpartial third-party
deci si on maker, the Federal M ne Safety and
Heal th Revi ew Comm ssi on.

USA requests further guidance from
MSHA on the foll owi ng questions, which are |eft
unanswered by MSHA in the proposed Civil Penalty
Rul e.

First, what effect will the new formt
of citation docunentation have on the rate of
significant and substantial issuances or S&S, and
on the ability to achieve settlenents in

contested cases that can be approved by the
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j udges of the Federal M ne Safety and Health
Revi ew Conmi ssi on?

Second, how will the new and |limted
negl i gence donations effect the issuances of
104(d) citations and orders, and the
categori zation of flagrant violations?

Third, how wi |l the reduced gravity
options effect the issuance of inm nent danger
orders under Section 107(A) of the Mne Act?

Fourth, how will MSHA s existing
i nformal pre-assessnent conferences be affected
by the 20 percent good faith penalty reduction
for not contesting the assessnent or the
vi ol ati on?

Finally, will requesting the infornmal
pre-assessnment conference renove an operator from
eligibility for the proposed additional 20
percent good faith penalty reduction?

To go into sone of the specifics of
the rule, USA strongly opposes the realignnment of
t he negligence designation from5 categories to

3; by renoving the categories of |ow negligence
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and hi gh negligence, MSHA is proposing that
mtigation is no |l onger a defense or should be
taken into consideration during penalty
assessment.

Currently, MSHA citations allow for
i nspectors to determ ne operator negligence,
based on the anpbunt of mtigating circunstances
surroundi ng each issuance. Adopting the proposed
Cvil Penalty Rul e new negligence designation
woul d not only place a greater enphasis on
negl i gence when deternmining the penalty anount,
but it would also disregard mtigation and group
a wi de range of conditions under the unbrella of
negl i gent .

This could also result in an excl usion
of mtigation evidence at Federal M ne Safety and
Heal t h Revi ew Conm ssi on hearings, which
interferes with operators' due process rights.
MSHA's intent to ignore relevant mtigating
factors when determ ning penalty assessnents and
negligence will lead to steep increases in

penalties for mne operators, and difficulty
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settling formal and informal contests of
citations after issuance.

G ven the proposed rule in its current
state, MSHA woul d no | onger accept mtigation
provi ded by operators as justification for
penal ty reductions, and negligence nodifications
to citation docunentation would be largely
unavai | abl e.

This is unacceptabl e and woul d
adversely effect all nmenbers of the mning
i ndustry.

In our witten comments, we've
i ncl uded Appendix A, which |'ve also attached to
the conmments given to the Panel here today. W
did a conparison of citation penalties for an
exi sting docket that we have. That is all 104(a)
regul arly assessed citations.

It shows that the current amount of
penal ties woul d be $18,110.00, and this woul d
ri se under the new criteria to $177,000.00. That
is a 977 percent increase for a docket with only

Section 104(a) regularly assessed citations at a
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met al / nonnetal m ne.

Just anecdotally, I will tell you
we' ve | ooked at sonme other individual citations
for smaller mnes. |In sone cases, they would go
from $11, 000. 00 to $30,000.00 for a single
citation. Another nodel that we ran,
consistently the penalty increases seemto be 60
percent or greater increase over the current
penal ti es.

I n addition, USA al so opposes the
real i gnnent of the |ikelihood of injury
desi gnations proposed in the rule. As with the
proposed nodifications to negligence, MSHA is
proposi ng to reduce the categories fromfive
options to three, but by renoving no likelihood
and highly likely categories, this is once again
proposi ng changes that coul d adversely effect
m ne operators.

It is well established that S&S

citations carry greater effects in a mne's

hi story. They can carry greater penalties. They

are reportable to the SEC by publically traded
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conpani es, sone of which are nenbers of the USA
group.

USA i s concerned that proposed changes
will drastically increase the nunber of
significant and substantial issuances, which
could effect all operators, and also could result
in placenent of nore operators under a pattern of
vi ol ati ons.

Furthernore, by renoving the highly
| i kely category, USA fears that MSHA will issue
107(A) I mm nent Danger Orders in conjunction with
the hazard that inspectors feel is reasonably
likely to occur.

This woul d contradict the bulk of the
exi sting Federal Mne Safety and Health
Comm ssion case law, and the M ne Act, which
defines I mm nent Danger Orders as requiring nore
serious circunstances than an S&S vi ol ati on.

As proposed, the Section 107(A)

i ssuance, an underlying 104 issuance, nmay mrror
each other, thereby blurring that delineation and

exposi ng operators to nore |iberal and
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unjustifiable use of I|Inmnent Danger Orders.

Agai n, | mm nent Danger Orders are
consi dered el evated actions for purposes of
pattern of violations. These are al so i ssuances
that nmust be reported to the securities and
exchange conmm ssion by publically traded
conpani es.

Mor eover, by blurring this delineation
on Section 107A i ssuances and the distinction
with S&S, it puts under review years of control
and case | aw that would have to be reeval uated
and perhaps relitigated.

The proposed changes would alter the
meani ng of existing case law, and require
clarification fromthe courts. This is a serious
consequence of the proposed rule. It warrants
critical scrutiny, and frankly could lead to nore
litigation.

USA al so strongly opposes the G vil
Penalty Rul es increased enphasis on history
poi nts during penalty assessnent. Under the

proposed rule, the overall weight of history of

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

32

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

33

previous violations for a mine will increase in
relation to each penalty assessnent.

W fear that this is adversely going
to effect medium and |arge mne operators in a
significant way, and increase penalties in a
manner such as those shown on our chart.

USA opposes the proposed increases in
m ni mum penalties for unwarrantable failure
i ssuances. W do not agree with MSHA that 50
percent increase in penalties will foster further
conpliance. This seens to nerely be an attenpt
by MSHA to i ncrease penalties w thout
justification.

USA requests that if MSHA intends to
mai ntain this provision, additional evidence
supporting the claimthat the increased penalties
will assist with mner safety and health be
provi ded.

The proposed Civil Penalty rule states
that an additional 20 percent reduction would be
i ncentive for operators to pronptly pay and abate

al | eged viol ations, but abatenent is already
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required for the alleged violations when it is
due, and the paynment is due when the order
beconmes final regardless of the additional 20
percent reduction.

W view this as a neans to di scourage
formal and informal contests of penalties and
violations. W are also very troubled by the
proposed rules attenpt to govern the Federal M ne
Safety and Health Revi ew Comm ssion. The
Conmi ssion was created in the Mne Act to be
i ndependent of the Departnent of Labor, and
specifically it was to remain an unbiased third
party deci sion maker for disputes between
operat ors and MsSHA.

MSHA' s attenpt to restrict the
authority of the Federal M ne Safety and Health
Revi ew Conmi ssion and its admi nistrative | aw
judges, and bind themto the penalty assessnents
determ ned by MSHA underscores the entire purpose
of the independent agency.

If MSHA is commtted to govern this

third-party decision maker, operators are
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effectively w thout unbiased recourse until they
appeal to the US Courts of Appeal, and even that
court may only have authority to vacate, uphold a
Comm ssi on decision or remand it, but not to
reconsi der the penalties.

USA requests that the Comm ssion and
its judges retain de novo penalty authority, and
we maintain that MSHA | acks authority to alter
via regulation the statutory criteria of the
Commission in a way that would all ow the agency
to fine operators out of business.

Thank you very nmuch for your
consi derati on.

M5. SILVEY: 1'd just like to nake a
few prelimnary conments, which is sone of the
things | said in nmy opening statenent, and which
is why | said them

Wth respect to sone statenents in
your testinmony, which we do appreciate, as |
said, this proposed rule would have no inpact on
certain things that were deeply rooted in the

M ne Act and warrant its own -- as we know t hem
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the significant and substantial .

This proposed rule is significant and

substantial. S&S would be inplenented in the
same way. It has to be the definition. That
woul d not change. It has to be a violation as

reasonably likely to result in a reasonably
serious illness or injury.

Under this proposed rule, an inspector
woul d have to make that determ nation.

| would also like to say, and | w |
say this because nmany of the comments contai ned
this, and that deals with MSHA s projection of
t he i npact of the proposed rule versus what the
coment ers have assuned MSHA's assunpti ons.

| think | said that in ny opening
statenent because | wanted to convey to the
coment ers what our assunption was. And when we
| ooked at reducing the categories, we thought
that that would result in -- obviously the
i nspector would have to nake fewer
determ nations, and we thought that that would

result in a sinplification of the citation form
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and fewer decisions by the inspector; |ess
subjectivity and nore objectivity and therefore
| eading to earlier resolution of disputes.

Now, our assunption, our take, as |
said in the opening statenent, | take the current
citation formand conpare it to the one for the
proposed rule. MSHA's assunption may be w ong.
Wiy is that? Now we have | ow, noderate and hi gh
t hat under the proposed rule, the inspector's
determ nati on woul d be negligent.

There would be no | ow, no noderate and
no high. So, by ne saying that, whatever is
mar ked hi gh negli gence now would go -- our
assunption was that that was followed in the
negl i gence category. Not reckless disregard.

To be reckl ess disregard, and you know
that, you have to have an additional conponent
there. |1 think the commenters are projecting
t hat hi gh negligence would go to reckl ess
di sregard.

M5. ABRAMS: May | just respond to

that? | want to note for the record that when we

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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di d our conparison and our table, anything that
was hi gh negligence currently we did back down to
negl i gent .

MS. SILVEY: (kay.

M5. ABRAMS: We did not nove it up to
reckl ess disregard. Qur concern, to clarify ny
testinony a little bit: R ght now, for sonething
to be an unwarrantable failure, it is either high
negl i gence or reckless disregard. And for
sonething to be flagrant, it is either high
negl i gence or reckless disregard.

The concern is if high negligence now
is rolled into sinple negligence, will we either
have 104(d)s being issued with just the negligent
category? And if not, is that going to push
i nspectors who feel that there has been
aggravat ed conduct to go to the extrene of
mar ki ng things reckl ess disregard, which has
other ram fications including greater scrutiny,

i ncludi ng crimnal prosecution.
MS. SILVEY: And | understand that,

but -- and | don't think so. But one of the
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things | did also say in ny opening statenment was
that we woul d be training our inspectors. |
don't know if you all heard that, but | did say
t hat .

So, that's one of the things. If we
i ssue any rules, one of the things we do have to
do is | think it is our obligation to train our
i nspectors, and we would do that.

| also want to comrent on the
addi ti onal 20 percent good faith. You -- in your
coments, you were concerned that that proposed
provi si on woul d sonmehow be affected by the pre-
assessment conference.

| f an operator chose to participate in
t he pre-assessnent conference, that woul d not
take away the additional 20 percent under the
proposed rule. So, | want to nmake that clear.

M5. ABRAMS: Yes, thank you for
clarifying that.

M5. SILVEY: And | want to ask you --
| should' ve asked this first. USA, you said, is

a California based associ ation providing
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education and training services. |Is that an
i ndependent contractor?

M5. ABRAMS: No. It is a group.
Frank D Orsi, of the Ontario, California area, is
the head of it and it is a consortiumof | think
at this point about 15 to 20 m ni ng conpani es,
primarily in the aggregates and --

MS. SILVEY: Ckay, but when you put in
here -- when you say, "Providing education and
training."

M5. ABRAMS: They have nonthly
neeti ngs where safety subjects are presented, and
t he USA nenbers exchange -- it's a networking
opportunity for themto exchange best practices.
There are a nunber of consultants, including a
fewretired MSHA i nspectors who are nenbers of
the USA Group as well, and provide consultation
services to its nenbers.

M5. SILVEY: kay, but it is
operators?

M5. ABRAMS:  Yes.

M5. SILVEY: Al right. Also, with
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respect to -- and then obviously, | know this. |
really do know this but we make sonme assunpti ons,
and then you take the proposed rule and you nmake
ot her assunptions, and that's where the

di sconnect is with respect to the conments.

You said -- but you did use the term
fears. You didn't say that it did. You fear
that it will adversely effect nediumto | arge
m ne operators and result in significant
I ncr eases.

We did not project that. As a matter
of fact, | even said in nmy opening statenment we
projected a decrease, and overall penalties for
smal|l nonnetal mnes. So -- so -- and al so, we
did not project, and you can see it in our
tabl es, any increase in overall penalties.

| nmean one of our goals when we
started this process was to keep overall
penalties the sanme. Qobviously, if the -- if we
were to apply -- if we were to take it, and take
it forward, and take it to final rule, and apply

the additional 20 percent reduction, it would
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result in a-- in a reduction in overall
penal ti es.

So, that is where we -- that's what we
did with the data, and those are the assunptions
that we used. Wth respect to your -- the |ast
thing I will say, last comment |'Il make, we --
that we do take into consideration your conment
on the alternatives in the proposed rule with
respect to the Federal M ne Safety and Heal th
Revi ew Comm ssion. Thank you.

M5. ABRAMS: Thank you.

M5. SILVEY: kay, did you have --

MR, MATTOS: Yes, | do. Thanks,
Adele. | was able to read your comments | ast
night. That was interesting. Then | got real
concerned when | saw Appendix A. | think you
said that --

M5. ABRAMS: We ran the nunbers
several tinmes. | just want to comment in
response to what Ms. Silvey was saying. You know
we agree that for your very small operators; the

nom and pops that have on | ocation and have three
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i nspection days a year and get two or three
citations a year that the penalties probably wll
ei ther go down or renmin the sane.

For the United Safety Associ ates
G oup, nost of their nmenbers tend to be in the
mediumto | arger size conpanies, and the nodels
that we've run just seemto continually show
substanti ve i ncreases anywhere froma 50 percent
i ncrease, up to as you saw, nearly 1000 percent.

MR. MATTOS: That's what | wanted to
ask you about. The assunptions that you have in
your nodel; do you have nore than one that you're
running? | nean |'d be really interested in
seei ng those.

M5. ABRAMS: Yes. | believe there
will be additional ones. Qher clients are al so
going to be testifying. One of our counsel wl]l
be out there in Denver from our Denver office.
We can try to provide sone additional nodels for
the record if you would like that.

MR. MATTOS: Yes. For the record or

not --

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

43

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

M5. ABRAMS: But in terns of the
assunptions, | nean we were using the criteria as
stated in the proposal. As | nentioned to M.
Silvey, if something is currently high
negl i gence, we didn't bunp it up to reckl ess
di sregard. |If something was pernanently
di sabling, we were using |ost work days for that.

| will say on the gravity, that's
going to be one of the tough calls because when
it's reasonably likely, it means nothing has
actually occurred. |It's going to be a
specul ative injury, and right nowif an -- if an
i nspector classifies sonething as permanently
di sabling, what are they going to be trained to
do? To roll that back to | ost work day or to
bunp that out to a fatality?

Because permanently disabling
generally signifies paralysis, anputations, those
types of things, which do have a potential to be
fatal if inproper nedical treatnent is given

So, the fear, to use the word that we

-- as they say in the novies, "Be afraid. Be
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very afraid.”

M5. SILVEY: It was in your comments.
| was m ndful of that, and | noted that several
times that you used "fear."

M5. ABRAMS: And | don't scare easily,
Pat .

MS. SILVEY: (Okay, but fear has to be
based on -- you know, that's why | said to all of
you at the beginning we need specific details.
Not just a conclusion statenment of fear. | fear

that's what |'mgetting is a conclusion statenent

of fear.

M5. ABRAMS: The apprehension is, to
use a synonym that the inspectors will tend to
nove things to the right side, to speak. | don't

mean the correct side. To the nore serious side
in terms of gravity, in ternms of negligence. You
know, |ikelihood and severity, as well as the
negl i gence cl assification.

MR MATTOS: Well, fear was what | had
with Appendix A.  So, it wasn't apprehension.

But | did -- | was able, last night, to take a
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gquick look at it, and this is froman act ual
docket ?

M5. ABRAMS: Yes. [It's a current
docket that we have.

MR MATTOS: What is that docket
nunber ?

M5. ABRAMS: | don't know if off the
top of ny head.

MR. MATTOS: No, no. Not right this
second, but if you could let ne know right what
it is, I'dlike to take a | ook at that one.

M5. ABRAMS:  Sure.

MR MATTOS: Because the reason | ask
was | took a |l ook in the database for all the
proposed assessnents that we did and we have done
since the last update of the rule, and plugged in
t hese points and found very few actually out of -
- we've done 1.1 mllion violations we've
assessed since the last update of the rule.

| plugged these in, and out of all
these -- that docket, there were only 249

citations that met these criteria. So, | was
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li ke, "Ckay, well, at least this isn't comon,
sonet hi ng common. "

So, I'dreally like to take a cl oser
| ook at --

M5. ABRAMS: | n fact, sonebody that we
used, which | won't state now, they are going to
be testifying at the Denver hearing. | believe
they're already signed up for that. So, they
coul d probably expand upon that information.

MR, MATTOS: |1'd love to get that

docket, but the

- maybe it's a good point to
explain what we actually did. W took all -- we
took -- when we started doing this proposed rule,
we were | ooking at different conputations and
pernmutations and ways to try to adjust these

eval uation factors.

Every tinme we cane up with one set, we
woul d go to the nost recent year's worth of
citations that we had assessed, and we woul d
cal cul ate the assessnent usi ng whatever
permut ati on and conbi nati on we had derived at

that point, and actually assessed each one of the
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citations for that one-year period.

When we settl ed upon the proposal that
we have now, we went back -- which took us a
while to get to. You m ght be shocked to find
t hat out, but we then went back and | ooked at the
nost current year. Looked at anot her whol e set
of data, and the -- and the results were
surprisingly simlar.

| nean there were very little
differences. So, we said, "Ch, okay. W have
what we have.”™ Now, that's not to say that there
are cases, individual citations, where you have a
big junp, like sone of these exanples you have
her e.

And try as we mght to elimnate every
one of those, when we're using a fornula schene
like this is not attainable without -- 1've cone
to the conclusion that the only way to really get
perfection is to go to every regul ati on and
assess a penalty agai nst that regul ati on, and
that's just not doable either, really.

The different permutations and
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conbi nati ons of the negligent and gravity -- so,
| just wanted to clarify that that's how we did
go and make the assunptions that we nade in the
rule, the preanble to the rule, and in noving
t hi ngs around, the way you describe you did.

| think, just to respond, a |ot of the
guantum | eaps, as it were, in the penalty anmounts
in the nodeling that we did seens to really
emanate fromthe history of violations, the VPID
and the RPID points, which again the smaller
operators have virtually nothing in that.

But if you go to a cenent plant, or if
you go to a taconite plant, if you go to an
under ground netal /nonmetal m ne, you know t hat
has extensive -- they mght have a | ot of non-S&S
citations but they are being inspected pretty
pervasi vel y.

That tends to overall raise the rates
that we have, so the nunber are what they are.
But by giving greater rate and significance to
the history points as well as to the negligence

points, that is going to, |I think for the md-
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si ze and | arger conpanies drive everything
upwar d.

Again, this is a rather extrene thing.
| was in fact shocked nyself to see what the
nunbers cane out at, but when we ran some ot her
dockets that we have, every one of them was
coming up with a fairly significant increase.

MR. MATTOS: Ckay, | appreciate that.
Thank you.

MS. SILVEY: kay, thank you.

M5. ABRAMS: Thank you very nuch.

M5S. SILVEY: Next presenter will be
Allen MG lton with Murray Energy.

MR. McA LTON: Good norni ng.

M5. SILVEY: Do you have copi es of
your - -

MR, MG LTON: | do.

M5. SILVEY: You do? Can we have a
copy, please? |If that's okay.

MR. McA LTON:. Good norning. M nanme
is M. Allen MG Ilton, A-L-L-E-N. MGIton is M

CGI-L-T-ON |I'mthe Assistant Corporate

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

51

Safety Director for Murray Energy Corporation

Before | begin, 1'd like to say that
Murray Energy Corporation agrees with the
comments that Adel e Abrans nade here today. W
have simlar comrents that we're putting together
for a detailed objection to the rule.

Today, |'mgoing to speak in
generalities nore than specifics. There will be
sonme specifics, but let me say that | agree with
Adel e Abrans that |arge conpanies with repeat
violations and a | ot of enployees are going to
see a dramatic increase in the penalties.

Anybody that doesn't believe that?
|"ve got sone swanp land in Florida I'lIl offer to
sel|l you.

One of ny responsibilities is to
manage t he conpany's assessnents fromthe M ne
Safety and Health Adm nistration. 1've been in
this position for the | ast seven years. Mirray
Energy is the largest privately owned coa
conpany in the United States, producing

approximately 64 mllion tons of high quality
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bi t um nous coal each year.

Murray Energy and its subsidiaries
enpl oy approxi mately 7,400 hardwor ki ng Ameri cans
and currently operate 13 active coal m nes
consi sting of 13 underground | ongwal | m ning
systens, and 46 continuous nminers in Chio,
IIlinois, Kentucky, U ah and West Virginia.

Murray Energy provides hi gh-paying
stabl e enpl oynent in sonme of the nost
econoni cal | y di sadvant aged areas of the country,
and is a | ow cost producer of bitum nous coal,
hel ping to provide safe reliable and affordabl e
energy.

As such, Miurray Energy has a
substantial interest in the proposed rule. Prior
to joining Murray Energy, | worked 37 years with
the US Bureau M nes, the M ning Enforcenent and
Saf ety Adm nistration, MESA, and the Mne Safety
and Heal th Adm ni strati on, MSHA.

| spent the last 24 years as a
supervi sory coal mne safety and health

I nspect or.
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During ny career with the governnent,
| issued and eval uated thousands of citations and
orders, reviewed tens of thousands of citations
and orders issued by inspectors under ny
supervi sion, and conducted health and safety
conferences before there were designated health
and safety conference litigation representatives.

My performance was eval uated as highly
effective over 20 tines, and outstandi ng or
exenplary five tines while as a supervisor, and
in 1999, | received the US Departnent of Labor's
Di stingui shed Service Award for exenplary work.

Sorry, I'ma little dry up here. |
didn't see any water.

M5. SILVEY: Right here.

MR McGALTON: | didn't see that.

M5. SILVEY: You can take it. Please
hel p yourself. Pat's water. Just renenber that:
who gave you the water.

MR MALTON:. It's too late. It's
already in type. | can't take it back now. You

probably don't even renenber ne, but | renenber
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you.

My primary responsibility for Mirray
Energy is to evaluate citations and orders, and
advi se operations. Personnel and citations and
orders should be contested, and al so the grounds
for the contest.

Typically, we contest citations and
orders when one or nore of the inspector's
eval uati ons are exaggerated or inaccurate, or
when t here shoul d' ve been no viol ation, or when
MSHA has proposed a special assessnent.

During ny seven years with Mirray
Energy, | personally have been involved in
contesting and resol ving of contest over several
t housand citations and orders issued by many
different inspectors, frommany different MSHA
field offices in many different MSHA districts.

In resolving these contests, | have
wor ked wi th nunerous inspectors, conference
litigation reps, technical advisors and nunerous
attorneys fromthe Solicitor's Ofice, and

nuner ous adm nistrative |aw judges fromthe
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Federal M ne Safety and Health Revi ew Conm ssion
Overall, | believe ny conbined
experience of 44 years with MSHA and Murray
Energy has given ne unique insight into the past
and current operations and practices of MSHA in
regards to issuing citations and orders, and
| ater resolving a variety of disputes as part of
the formal contest process.
Based on this experience, | have the
foll owi ng cooments to the proposed rule on the

criteria and procedures for assessnent of civil

penalties. Again, these will be nore in genera
than are very detailed rule objection we wll be
filing.

First, in contrary to the stated
i nt ended purpose of the proposed rule will not
i mprove the civil penalty process, and reduce the
nunber of citations and orders m ne operators
cont est.

We do not believe that will occur.
Murray Energy does not contest citations and

penalties to save noney. It contests citations
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and penalties to ensure accuracy, and thus
i mprove mner safety.

Contesting citations and proposed
penalty assessnents is not and never has been a
noney- maki ng or noney-savi ng proposition. The
time, effort and expense to contest citations and
propose penalty assessnents al nost al ways exceeds
or greatly exceeds any potential reduction of the
penal ty.

Murray Energy has contested and w ||
continue to contest citations, orders and
proposed penalty assessnents when the underlying
paper i s specul ati ve when desi gnati ons and
m scharacterized or msstates or overstates the
actual conditions, practices or hazards, or when
t he proposed penalties do not reflect the gravity
or conduct at hand such as | arge speci al
assessnents for noderate negligence 104(a)
citations.

MSHA needs to understand that accuracy
is nore inportant to the m ne operator, and

should be to MSHA. Accurately witten citations

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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i nprove mner safety and health, and better deter
unsafe conditions and practices.

For instance, when the citation is
accurately witten and i ssued, operators are nore
likely to learn fromany m stakes and to take
action to prevent simlar conduct or conditions
in the future.

When the inspectors overinflate
vari ous designations, or overstate, msstate or
guess about the conditions or conduct observed,
operators are nore likely to becone defensive and
protective of the personnel, and to contest the
citations and associated penalties in an attenpt
to have the conduct and conditions accurately
portrayed.

The final rule will not fix this

problem Small|l operators, wthout the |egal

resources, wll be forced to take a 30 percent
reduction, which will still result in inflated
penal ti es.

As an exanpl e, one of our operations

in southern Illinois was cited for an S&S
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violation related to danaged roof bolts.

It appears the top -- I'msorry. It
appears that the top of nobile equi pnent had
i nadvertently hit the roof bolts and damaged
them The citation was issued as noderate
negl i gence, and MSHA proposed a $9, 800. 00 speci al
assessment.

Everyone, including MSHA s inspectors,
knew the cited area had nassive, conpetent and
thick linmestone in the i medi ate roof, and i ndeed
the inspector's own notes nentioned this. There
were no cracks, slips, joints or other geol ogical
anonal i es present in or near the cited area.

There al so was no material on the
floor, but the citation was designated as being
S&S. During settlenent negotiations, and despite
knowi ng these facts, MSHA refused to offer any
paper changes to renove the special assessnent.

| nstead, we were offered a take or
| eave it 20 percent reduction. W left it and
went to trial. Unsurprisingly, after the

testi nony of the mne geol ogi st and the issuing
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i nspector, the ALJ renoved the S&S desi gnation
and speci al assessnent, and i nposed a $268. 00
penal ty.

The accurate result was reached,
despite MSHA's attenpt to avoid it.

As anot her exanpl e, the inspector
cited another one of our m ne operators for dirty
showers and surface facilities, claimng there
was nold in the corners of the shower area and in
pl aces on the floor.

Unbel i evabl y, the inspector designated
the citation as reasonably likely to result in
| ost workday injuries to ten persons because of
staph infections that could lead to anputations
of a finger or hand if not stopped in tinmne.

MBHA proposed a whoppi ng $15,570. 00
regul ar assessnent for the citation, due al nost
entirely to the exaggerated gravity designations.
During settlenment discussions, MSHA never offered
to change any of the paper, but only offered a
ten percent reduction in the penalty.

After trial, the ALJ unsurprisingly
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concluded that the cited condition was unlikely
with lost work days or restricted duty, one
person affected, reduced the penalty to $500. 00.
Agai n, the accurate result was reached, despite
MSHA's attenpt to avoid it.

| mportantly, these are not isol ated
i nstances. | routinely see exaggerated citations
that do not reflect the requirenments or intent of
the regul ations, or MSHA's own internal policies
and procedures.

Citations for a one-inch by one-inch
hole in a stopping or accunul ati ons of coal five
feet by two feet by one-inch under a belt are
exanpl es of the loss of objectivity, and the |ack
of common sense when applying 30 CFR

These results are inflated penalties
that MSHA refuses to admt were erroneous, and
this means the mne operator either must pay for
cl ai med m sconduct or conditions that did not
exist, or pay even nore to contest the errors to
obtain accurate and fair results froman ALJ.

This is a msallocation of resources,
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and effort, and will not be corrected by the
proposed rule. The proposed rule fails to
address the real problem a |lack of consistency
and uni form enforcenment and instead sacrifices
accuracy and due process for hope for consistency
and objectivity.

MSHA repeatedly states that the
proposed rule and the goal of the new Part 100
are to sinplify the criterion rules to place an
i ncreased enphasis on nore serious hazards to
i ncrease objectivity and clarity in the section -
- in the citation and order process, and to
i mprove consistency in the application of the
criteria.

Sai d anot her way, MSHA wants to
m nimze areas of disagreenent, speed up the
process and get mine operators to accept proposed
penal ti es and pay them qui cker.

To get there, MSHA wants to dunb down
several of the inspector's evaluations to
conpensate for the lack of consistency that

exists in the inspector's know edge of the
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existing criteria regarding gravity and
negl i gence.

In my opinion, MSHA wants to sinplify
t he eval uati on process so that it can increase
penal ti es and reduce the nunber of nodifications
i n contest proceedi ngs.

MSHA admits -- MSHA attenpts to shift
the blame to the industry for |ogging too nany
contests, and has created a proposed rul e that
sacrifices accuracy and due process for a pipe
dream of consi stency and objectivity.

| believe the new proposed criteria
will not |ead to the hoped for consistency or
gui ck paynments MSHA wants. For instance, unless
MSHA agrees that all conduct previously
categori zed as high negligence falls within the
new negligent category, | foresee many heated
di sputes over where that conduct falls in a new
criteria. Because no operator wants conduct to
be descri bed as reckl ess disregard.

I n other words, high negligence

citations under the existing rule m ght've been
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resol ved short of trial with operators accepting
t he designations will now be nore likely to go to
trial because operators will be less willing to
accept the | abel of reckless disregard.

In any event, if the proposed rule is
not abandoned or consi derably reconstructed, MSHA
should clarify this issue as part of the final
rul e, and agree that all high negligence conduct
will fall within a new negligence definition,
whi ch you addressed earlier.

M5. SILVEY: Yes, | did.

MR. McA LTON: The proposed changes to
negligence criteria are also troubling because
they run counter to statenents by MSHA in prior
rul emaki ng and inportantly will encourage | ess
saf e behavior by the m ne operator than under the
exi sting rule.

Specifically, MSHA's final rule
criterion and procedures for proposed assessnent
civil penalties issued on May 21st, 1982, which
actually started this whole thing, created the

five existing categories of negligence.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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In doing so, MSHA stated in the
preanbl e, "In devel opi ng these categories, NMSHA
has responded to the concerns of commenters that
further clarification of the allocation of
negl i gence points was necessary, and that due
consideration be given to all factors bearing on
t he operator's negligence."

In other words, nore specificity was
needed so that these conduct rel ated designations
woul d be nore accurate, which is what remains
i mportant to the industry, and general public
t oday.

O even nore significance, MSHA al so
stated in the 1982 preanble that, "MSHA has
devel oped t hese categories of negligence, which
include mtigating circunstances to allow the
operator the flexibility to consider all the
facts and circunstances surrounding a violative
condition or practice."

For exanple, an inspector nay
determ ne the negligence involved is | ow or

noderate, where there is a reasonable |ikelihood
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of a reasonably serious injury occurring fromthe
condition or practice because the operator,

al t hough negligent, has taken neasurable steps to
prevent the violation or protect mners from
exposure to the hazard."

"Mtigating circunstances may include
but are not limted to actions which an operator
has taken to prevent, correct or limt exposure
to a violative condition or practice. An
operator's action should be taken into
consideration to the extent that it directly
relates to the specific violation cited."

I n other words, MSHA consciously
recogni zed that factoring in mtigating
ci rcunst ances woul d pronote m ner safety because
m ne operators would be incentivized to take
nmeasures or steps to prevent the violation, or
protect mner's exposure to the hazard.

By renoving all consideration of
mtigating circunstances fromthe negligence
criteria in the proposed rule, MSHA is now

undermining the first priority of the Mne Act to
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protect the health and safety of its nost
preci ous resources, the m ner.

Murray Energy strongly encourages MSHA
to abandon the proposed rule, or at |east the
proposed negligence criteria because of the
negative inpact it will have on mner safety.

MSHA continued to encourage mitigation
to inprove mner safety. Additionally, | foresee
many di sputes over the proposed gravity
l'i kel i hood criteria.

It appears that MSHA is attenpting to
abandon, or at |east significantly change decades
of | egal precedence regarding the S&S anal ysi s.
In particular, MSHA is proposing a definition of
reasonably likely that is nuch broader than the
third prong of the Mathies test.

Certainly operators are going to
contest whether this new definition is consistent
with the Mne Act and the prior decisions.
Proposed rul e vaguely defines unlikely as
including little or no likelihood.

| envision that there will be disputes
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over what |little neans, and a tendency of MSHA
i nspectors to place what woul d' ve been unlikely
conditions under today's rule into the new
reasonably |ikely category.

This in turn will result in nore S&S
desi gnations, and thus nore unwarrantabl e
failures and nore POV viol ations.

While this may inprove MSHA' s
statistics, it will do little, if anything, to
i mprove mner safety.

Finally, the new occurred criterion
shoul d be read broadly to include a | arge anount
of conduct that under the existing rule would be
reasonably likely or unlikely. For exanple, an
operator's one-tinme practice of failing to
realign a belt could cause the event of a coal
accurmul ation that cones in contact with multiple
belt rollers, which could ve resulted in injury

or illness, or they could not have.

Certainly operators will contest these

types of overreachi ng designations.

Overall, if MSHA really wants to
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i mprove consistency in the application of its
criteria, reduce the nunber of contests and
citations and orders, and increase the pronpt
paynment of these assessed penalties, then NMSHA
should wi thdraw the proposed rule, reevaluate the
training of its district nanagers, assistant

di strict managers, supervisory coal nine safety
and health inspectors, and coal m ne inspectors,
and ensure that the existing criteria and rul es
are better understood and nore consistently
applied by these individuals.

Third and | ast, MSHA should not try to
bi nd the Conmi ssion to Part 100, but should bind
its own CLRs and attorneys to Part 100 duri ng
pre-hearing settlenment negotiations.

It is true that the Conm ssion and
ALJs often issue decisions to set penalties that
appear to ne to be arbitrary. The Conmm ssion has
no criteria or guidance simlar to Part 100 to
assist its ALJs in setting penalty anounts.

As a result, we believe that ALJs are

often left guessing as to howto turn the six
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statutory criteria into an appropriate penalty

anount .

W have raised these precise issues in

a case currently before the Comm ssion involving
speci al assessnents, which is under the Anerican
Coal Conpany Docket No. LAKE 2007-701.

In that case, we have argued that the
Conmmi ssion and its ALJs shoul d be gui ded by,
al t hough not bound to, the regul ar assessnent
mechanismin Part 100 from whi ch baseline
penal ties may be drawn and substantial divergence
i s expl ai ned.

Two ALJs have recently agreed with
this approach. ALJ Zielinski stated that,
"Absent sone guideline, a judge has no
guantitative reference point to aid in specifying
a penalty within the current statutory regul atory
range of $1.00 and $70, 000. 00."

The Secretary's regul ations for
determ ning a penalty anmount by regul ar
assessnment take into consideration all the

statutory factors that the Conmi ssion is
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obligated to consider, and that the product of
that regular assessnent fornula to provide a
useful reference point that would pronote
consi stency and the inposition of penalties by
Conmmi ssi on j udges.

ALJ McCarthy held that, "Although the
Conmmi ssion is not bound by the Secretary of the
proposed penalty, or the 100.3 point schene, |
find that the regulations at |east provide a
hel pful guide for assessing an appropriate
penalty that can be applied consistently."

Unquestionably, the M ne Act expressly
del egates to the Commi ssion, not to the
Secretary, the authority to assess all civil
penalties. As a result, if MSHA attenpts to bind
the Conm ssion to Part 100, thereby renoving or
at | east severely limting the authority to
assess penalties, MSHA will be violating the M ne
Act .

This is why we have advocated that the
Comm ssion be guided by but not bound to Part

100 and why MSHA shoul d do the sane.
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Furthernore, the Conm ssion is an adjudicative
body that conducts evidentiary hearings and
ensures that mne operators are afforded due
process and ot her constitutional protections.

Renoving or limting the authority of
t he Conm ssion to assess penalties could in turn
renove or limt the Commission's ability to
eval uate and resol ve due process or
constitutional issues.

Finally, Murray Energy was shocked
t hat MSHA was seriously considering binding the
Commi ssion to Part 100 when MSHA' s own attorneys
and CLRs do not follow Part 100. Specifically,

i nspectors routinely issue citations with
exagger at ed eval uati ons, not based on any or very
littl e evidence.

When contested, CLRs or MSHA attorneys
often will agree to nodify the paper to
accurately reflect what shoul d' ve been the
correct evaluation at the time the citation was
i ssued, but the sanme tinme, only agree to reduce

the penalty by a maxi mum of 30 percent.
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Al nost al ways, applying Part 100 to
t hese paper changes would result in a mnuch
greater reduction, very often 60 to 70 percent.
Based on ny experience, | believe
mul tiple districts have internal caps on the
penalty reductions. Usually 30 percent. They
can be given regardl ess of the paper changes
warranted by what is often undi sputed evi dence.
Thi s perverse system encour ages
i nspectors to issue inflated, exaggerated paper
after which MSHA can agree to nodify the paper to
what it should ve been in the first place, but
keep much of the inflated penalty.
This strikes ne as a type of
gover nnent sponsored Ponzi schenme. But sadly, in
these situations, the industry is forced to
choose between accepting the right paper with the
wrong penalty, or incurring the significant
expense and burden of contest proceedings and a
heari ng before an ALJ to obtain the accurate
paper and penalty.

Qur governnent should not be acting
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this way. W strongly urge MSHA to reconsider

t he proposed rule and withdraw it conpletely.

Qur formal and detailed comments will be filed
tinmely. Thank you. |'mhappy to take questions.

M5. SILVEY: Thank you. First of all,
I'"d like to comment. You gave your background.
So, | want to say that we do appreciate your
service here at MsSHA

MR. McA LTON: Thank you.

M5. SILVEY: And | note many of us
have received a Departnment of Labor Distinguished
Career Service Award, and that is an award to be
proud of.

MR MGEALTON. | amproud of it.

M5. SILVEY: You -- | want to say that
you stated at the outset that your conments were
very general. You did state that you were going
to file your cooments with specifics.

MR, MG LTON:  Yes.

MS. SILVEY: Because one of the things
| stated in ny opening statenent was that when

you -- when anybody provides comrents, and they
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provi de recommendati ons and concl usions, if you
coul d support that with specific rationale, that
is the way that we can nmake a nore inforned
deci si on about how to proceed with respect to the
final rule.

| do note that sonme of the commenters
have provi ded sone specifics, and whether the
specifics -- sone of them have provided specifics
with respect to the inpact of the rule on
particul ar citations.

Whet her those specifics are accurate
or not, to use your term that is something we
will -- we can, as Jay said earlier, we will take
-- hopefully, we'll take sone of these specifics
and apply it to our own database because that's
what we did, and see where we cone out on that.

By the way, we do agree on sone
things. So, just so you know, we think that we -
- I"msure you probably know that from your
experience at MSHA that we strive for consistency
with respect to the inspectors' evaluation of the

citations.
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Toward that end, we have conti nuous
trai ning of our inspectors. Recently, we've
instituted a new process whereby if changes are
made in citations and orders, changes as they go
up the Iine are made in special assessnents in
citations and orders that are designated as
speci al assessnents.

Then we have a process where we send
those citations and orders back to the field
of fice supervisors, and ultimately so they can
get to the inspectors.

Qur goal is that that would be a
t eachi ng nonent, and a | earning experience for

the inspectors if the citations and orders were

changed.

MR- McG LTON: Can | nmake one comment
on that?

MS. SILVEY: Yes.

MR. McA LTON: That just doesn't
happen. |f papers change in a conference; if

papers change through litigation, it's seldom

that the inspector even knows it was changed.
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M5. SILVEY: That's why I'msaying to
you we've instituted a process. W have recently
instituted a process whereby all the changes, if
changes are made, go back to the inspector who
has i ssued that citation, and |'m
nmet al / nonnetal, both come under ne.

So, we have done that, and | intend
that that be done with respect to every change,
and every inspection.

MR. McA LTON:. That will help greatly.

Seven years ago when | was still with MSHA, it
was that way. It was that way. As the
supervisor, |I'd get a copy of nodifications. So

woul d the inspector. That's changed sonehow in
the | ast seven years, and | don't know when it
took place, but that's the way it is today.

MS. SILVEY: Yes, but we are doing

t hat .
MR, McA LTON:. Ckay. | understand.
M5. SILVEY: The other thing you said,
and you did say, "I believe that nmultiple

districts have internal caps on the penalty
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reductions.”

| don't know of any districts that
have caps on the penalty reductions. |If they --
and do you have any basis for saying that?

MR MG LTON:  Yes, but | don't want
to give up the source.

M5. SILVEY: Ckay, but | mean -- and
you can have a general basis, but | guess ny
point is do you have any specific --

MR McALTON:. Well, even if you've
been told by a conference litigation rep that the
district manager can't give you nore than 30
percent, even if you're not told when you get it,
we have mines in four MSHA districts. Wen every
MSHA district has the sanme offer at the end of
the day, it's all they're going to do.

It's pretty evident that four
districts in four different parts of the country
had to get their instructions from sonebody above
them They can't all be exactly the sane. And
for a while, it was 20. Everybody was 20. Then

it went to 30. Then everybody was 30.
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It's just too obvious not to be the
way it is.

MS. SILVEY: Well, that is not our
policy, agency policy from-- so, we -- you know
-- and obviously things do go on.

MR McG LTON: It infuriates the
operator. You get a $2,000.00 citation. They
agree it should be non-S&S. Under the formula,
it should be $308.00, and yet all you can get
taken of f is $600. 00.

So, they agree with you, and ny
argunment is, "Well, if it had been issued that
way, this would ve been the penalty. Wy can't
you give ne that now?" "Oh, we're not bound by
Part 100 now." That's what | hear.

M5. SILVEY: kay, | hear you. One of
the things I will say is that one of the goals we
had in issuing this proposed rule, and you heard
me say, was to inprove objectivity to | essen
subj ectivity, and hopefully lead to | ess
di sagr eenent s.

You're talking to ne now about
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di sagreenents. Less disagreenents over citations
and orders. That was one of the goals we had in
reduci ng the nunber of determ nations that

i nspectors had to nake.

As you see, and as | noticed in ny
openi ng statenent, inspectors have to nmake
bet ween 15 -- about 15 determ nati ons when you
take into consideration persons affected.

W do agree with you, with respect to
the citations fromthe beginning and that the
i nspectors should do, and I -- and | believe
probably nost of them do the best job they can
with respect to issuing accurate citations.

That is one of our goals in ternms of
training our inspectors. But as | said earlier,
nost of your comrents were general, and so we do
| ook forward to getting the specific --

MR. McA LTON:  Yes, absolutely. You
will get them

M5. SILVEY: Ckay. Do you have
anyt hi ng?

MR MATTOS: Just one. On S&S, you --
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your opinion was that there would be a change in
the S&S rate. But | don't -- the -- as Pat said
earlier in her opening statenments, or earlier
anyway, S&S is reasonably likely to result in a
reasonably serious injury, and that is not

changi ng.

W are conbining -- we are proposing
that the reasonably likely and highly likely
category be conbined into reasonably |ikely.
Those are the two categories that now are used to
determ ne S&S as one of the prongs.

MR. McALTON: There's no -- there's
no -- anything that you're planning to change the
definition fromreasonably |likely to anything
| i ke reasonably possible? |s there any plans to

MR. MATTOS: No. W were -- the
proposal is what's in the preanble to the rule.
The definition of reasonably likely would be a
condition or practice cited as likely to cause an
event that could result in an injury or illness,

which is the sanme as right now reasonably |ikely
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and highly likely are both determ ned to be S&S
if it's a reasonably serious injury.

So, we're not trying to change the
definition of S&S, just to clarify.

MR, McA LTON. Ckay.

MR. JONES: Can you clarify how you
believe the Part 100 fornula should be used by
t he Conm ssion Adm nistrative Law Judges?

MR MGLTON Well, we do have sone
judges that use it as a guideline, and | believe
they should use it as a guideline. But when
there are other mtigating circunstances that
| ead themto believe they should either raise or
| oner the penalty, | believe they shoul d have
t hat | atitude.

| know in a recent -- | mean |'ve been
to 11 trials with many different ALJs, and | had
conferences with many, and | had a CLR that | was
trying to finish two citations with. One of the
Judges, McCarthy, said, "Wat seens to be the
hold up?" And | said, "Well, the agency has

agreed to nodify these non-S&S, but they want to
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keep all the noney."

He said, "Wat do you nean?" So, |
told him He told the CLR, "Well, | want you to
know that | follow Part 100 pretty closely, and
if this goes to trial, that's the way it's going
to go. So, you ought to reconsider your
positions.”

Vel |, as soon as they reconsidered
their position, they didn't give nme exactly what
Part 100 was, but they at |east canme close. Not
tripled it. So, we settled it. W resolved it.

| think a lot of these would be
resolved without litigation if Part 100 was
followed by the CLRs, the solicitors, and if the
ALJs -- if we take it to the point where an ALJ
is going to hear the case and sonmething is
presented that causes himnot to follow Part 100,
either up or down, we could live with that.

The ones that stick pretty close to
it? Everything gets settled. [I'll tell you
right nowif MSHA would follow Part 100, and not

just say, "We don't have to." W would take 90
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percent of these out of court. They wouldn't
even go.

But here's the problem If you give us
what it shoul d' ve been after it has been issued
and it is posted on the webpage, and sonebody
| i ke a Ken Ward gets a hold of it, and he wants
to do MSHA bashing? WlIl, then you | ook bad.

So, what do you do to protect that inage? You
cut it off at 30 percent. You can't go worse
t han 30 percent.

Let's face it. Wat was the good
faith reduction before the April 2000 Part 100
cane into effect? It was 30 percent. It went
from30 to 10. Now, you're proposing to go back
to 30 again.

M5. SILVEY: W understand. W
understand. Ckay, all right. Thank you. At
this time, we're going to -- in a few m nutes,
we're going to take a break, but before we take a
break, Assistant Secretary Main is here, and I'd
like to ask if he'll say a few words. He can say

how many he wants. |'Ill just say that you don't
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have to put this on the record.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled natter
went off the record at 10:28 a.m, and resunmed at
10: 57 a. m)

M5. SILVEY: W will now reconvene the
M ne Safety and Health Adm nistration's public
heari ng on the proposed penalties.

At this point, our next speaker is
Jeff Kratz, with the Institute of Mukers of
Expl osi ves.

MR. KRATZ: Thank you. Good norni ng,
| adi es and gentl enen of the Panel. Thank you for
hosting this hearing today, and allowing us to
provi de sone oral coments.

Qurs is going to be a little bit
shorter because our interest isn't as strong as
sonme of the other people's today. M nane is
Jeff Kratz. That is the conmon spelling, J-E-F-
F. Last nane is Kratz, K-R-A-T-Z. | am
acconpani ed by Deb Satkow ak. Want to spell your
name for the record?

M5. SATKOW AK: Al so common spel | i ng,
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S-AT-K-OWI-AK

MR. KRATZ: |'mhere representing the
Institute of Makers of Explosives, or IME |ME
is the safety and security institute of the
comer ci al expl osive industry.

Qur nenbers' conpani es' products are
essential in mning operations, and nmy conments
address two issues IME has with the assessnent of
civil penalties proposal.

Before | get down to it, | just want
to say that we generally agree with the first two
peopl e here testifying or commenting. But we
have a little bit different focus than what they
do, as we just represent mainly contractors too
to different mnes. Not the m nes thensel ves.

Qur first concerns relate to MSHA' s
policy on the assignnment of contractor |D
nunbers. For safety and ot her reasons, nning
conpani es are increasingly using independent
contractors to performtheir onsite blasting
oper ati ons.

Therefore, | ME nenbers are not only
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produci ng and transporting explosive nmaterials,
but they are al so engaged as i ndependent bl asting
contractors at mne sites.

Currently, MSHA issues unique |ID
nunbers to each mning | ocation, even though one
conpany nmay control nultiple mnes across the
nati on.

In contrast, MSHA assigns only one ID
nunber to independent blasting contractors
i rrespective of how many mne sites they service
across the country.

Anong ot her things, patterns of
vi ol ations status and penalties are based on the
size of the entity commtting the violation, the
conpany's history of violations and repeat
viol ati ons associated with an | D nunber.

As a result, contract blasters are
exposed to nmuch higher penalties than simlarly
situated m ne operators. An exanple of this is a
bl asting contractor doing work at two m nes, but
t hose contracts are enployed by the same conpany.

They woul d face hi gher penalties and
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stiffer fines than for exanple a m ning conmpany
t hat has the sane viol ati ons because viol ations
for the mning conpany are treated separately at
each mne site; but the violations for the

bl asting contractor will be consoli dated.

MSHA' s current policy predi sposes
bl asting contractors who operate at nultiple
sites to excessive points during the penalty
assessnent phase burdens themw th the |arger
nonetary fines, and | eaves themw th no option
but to contest disproportionate penalties.

So, our second concern relates, and we
tal ked about this earlier, is MSHA s reduction on
penalty categories. This proposed change coul d
| ead to nore severe penalties being issued, or
result in less flexibility to negotiate penalty
settl enents.

Currently, MSHA recogni zes five
penalty categories: none, |ow, noderate, high and
reckl ess.

The proposed rul e woul d reduce these

categories to not negligence, negligence and
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reckl ess.

O her than the penalty category of
reckless, it is likely that the proposed penalty
category reduction will result in the assessnent
of a violation to a category higher in fines and
har sher penal ti es.

| ME under st ands and supports safe
wor ki ng conditions for those working in m ning
and drilling operations. Qur nenbers adhere to
t he best practices contained in IME s safe
| i brary publications, which exceed federal
requi renents for producing, using and
transporting explosive materials.

W respect the inportant role MSHA
plays in protecting m ne workers and the general
public. Further, we appreciate MSHA' s efforts
t owar ds i nproving nati onw de consi stency and
obj ectively enforcing operations.

However, the proposed penalty category
consolidated with conpani on consequences al ready
burdened by our industry by the nation's -- by

t he agency's unfair and unjust | D assessnent

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

policy for contractors.

W request that the ID nunbers for
m ni ng conpani es and bl asting contractors be
assigned on a site-by-site basis, that do not --
and that no consolidation of penalty categories
be made at this tine.

| just want to say that we understand
that the training that you tal ked about earlier,
the training of inspectors, but there al so needs
to be a follow up with that training to ensure
that the consistency -- there's still consistency
t hroughout the country.

So, thank you. |'d be happy to field
any questions that you may have.

MS. SILVEY: Thank you for your
comments. As | said earlier, and |'mgoing to
probably reiterate this to everybody so I don't -
- I"'mnot nmaking -- I'mnot being -- making any
distinctions. W do appreciate specifics when
you nake your comments.

| know you nade about three general

coments, but when people do nmake comments, we

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

89

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

90

woul d ask that you be specific-- specifics would
hel p us trenmendously.

W under stand your comrent on
i ndependent contractor |ID nunbers. |'mvery
famliar with that, as you m ght know. | would
like to just ask you, even though that comrent is
alittle out of the scope of this rul emaking.
So, I'll say that to everybody, but | -- but
would like to -- and |I'm sure you appreci ate what
| say when | say it.

| would -- and generally speaking, I'm
a person who, when things are outside the scope
of the rulemaking, | may or may not engage in
further cooment on them But it's Dyno Nobel one
of your nenber conpani es?

MR. KRATZ: Yes, they are.

M5. SILVEY: Let's take Dyno Nobel.
Not for any reason to -- it could ve been any one
of themfor that matter. Expl osives conpani es.
But how many m nes m ght Dyno Nobel go to in a
year? Just an estimate. Round estimte.

M5. SATKOW AK: Let me just say that
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we have 30 nenber conpani es, and of those 30
menber conpanies, it does include the
manuf acturers, the transporters.

MS. SILVEY: Right.

M5. SATKOW AK:  Those include the
peopl e that provide the blasting platforns and
provi de the nagazi nes.

M5. SILVEY: | understand.

MS. SATKOW AK:  So, our menbers are
the main suppliers of explosives materials to the
m nes.

MS. SILVEY: No, | understand. [|'m
j ust asking, take one of them who services the
mnes. |'masking how many di fferent m nes m ght
one contractor go to in a year? A nunber.

M5. SATKOWAK: |'d be concerned to
even try to estimate that for you.

M5. SILVEY: So, it's a big nunber?

M5. SATKOW AK: We can get back to you
i f you want.

M5. SILVEY: | made ny point.

MS. SATKOWAK: | don't want to be
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of f.

M5. SILVEY: | understand. That's
what | wanted to -- it's a big nunber. But you
are asking us to give -- for each mne site that

contractor goes to, you want that contractor to
have a different |ID nunber.

M5. SATKOW AK:  So, we have conpani es
that have legally separate entities, and those
| egal |y separate entities are set up as LLCs, and
those are entities that are recogni zed by ATF for
separate license or permt nunbers.

So, they are recogni zed by ATF as
separate legal entities, but yet MSHA is
recogni zing themonly as one.

MS. SILVEY: Okay, soO --

M5. SATKOWAK: And this is
i nconsistent. |I'msorry, ma'am This is
i nconsi stent as well for -- Dyno Nobel may be
traded differently than sonme of our other nenber
conpani es.

M5. SILVEY: Okay, let me just -- |

want to get it straight. Now I'mclarifying what
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you're asking. Are you asking that Dyno Nobel
has | egal entities, and you are asking for them
to have separate |ID nunbers? Not what | said
earlier when | was asking you to give ne the
estimate. | just want to nmake it clear.

M5. SATKOW AK:  So, you have
subsi di ary conpanies that may have a simlar --

simlar nanes, right. Am| answering your

guesti on?

M5. SILVEY: No, |'masking you. So,
you are asking for each of the -- you said they
have different conpanies with -- that have

separate licenses. So, you're asking for themto
have separate | D nunbers?

MS. SATKOW AK: Yes, so we have a
parent conpany, and then they have separate
subsidiaries. Legally, separately organized that
each of those need to have separate contractor |ID
nunber s.

M5. SILVEY: kay, | got it.

M5. SATKOW AK:  Because this is

i nconsi stent. The m nes have separate contractor
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| D nunbers, but all of these subsidiaries of a
parent organi zati on have the sane contractor ID
nunber .

So, the reason we brought this up, and
we understand that it wasn't a question that was
in the proposed rul emaki ng, but the reason we
bring this up is because basically it would have
a snowbal | effect if you have one contractor and
that, say, failure to put a hardhat on; it wll
roll across and be applied to --

MS. SILVEY: (kay, trust ne, |
understand. But your conment doesn't say that.
Your comment says a blasting contractor doing
work at two mnes. It goes to a blasting
contractor. But now you're telling ne you're
really asking for a -- if a-- if there is a
subsidiary of Dyno Nobel. This is really a nore
refined corment than what --

M5. SATKOW AK:  Yes.

M5. SILVEY: |'mjust trying to
clarify. That's all |'m doing.

MS. SATKOWAK: We had to be kind of
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general because there is litigation in this. So,
we were general. W understand what you're
saying, and we'll see if there are specifics that

we can submit because | absolutely respect the
fact that you do need specifics.

M5. SILVEY: Right. Gkay, thank you.

MR. MATTOS: Just one question, or
maybe a question and a comment. The issue goes
to two sections of this regulation, actually.
It's the history, violation history piece where
you're getting all your violations conbined into
one basket.

But the other one -- and | understand
that. | really don't have a question. |
under stand where you're conming fromon that one.
The second one though is on the size of the
busi ness of the operator that needs to be
consi dered when assessing civil penalties under
the M ne Act.

In that respect, the contractors, in
your instance, the conpanies, the overarching

conpani es, equate to what would be a controlling
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conpany in the coal and nonnetal m nes.

So, in that respect it is consistent.
Wien we're | ooking at the size of the business of
t he operator, we consider the controlling conpany
size, which in the exanpl e where Pat used Dyno
Nobel, so -- so, there is consistency on that
end, but there's an inconsistency |I think where
what you're saying on the -- and | just want to
clarify that there are two conponents of this
regul ation that do apply to this contractor ID
t hi ng.

So, if there -- if there is sone
f eedback that you can give us on addressing the
i nconsi stent and consi stent part, because we do
have the size of the business of the operator to
consider and for civil penalties purposes, and
Congress' intent there was bigger conpani es would
get bigger penalties. That was their intent.

M5. SATKOW AK:  Thank you. We will
wor k towards that.

MR. MATTOS: Thank you.

MS. SILVEY: Thank you.
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M5. SATKOW AK:  Thank you.

M5. SILVEY: Qur next -- our next
presenter will be Joe Casper with the National
Stone, Sand and G avel Associ ation.

MR. CASPER. Good norning, Ms. Silvey
and M. Mattos, Ms. McConnell and M. Jones.
Thank you for this opportunity to provide
testi nony on the Part 100 rul e.

My nane is Joseph Casper. Last nane
is spelled CGA-S-P-E-R, just like the ghost. The
Nat i onal Stone, Sand and Gravel Association has
been pleased to help lead the way to i nprove
t hrough a nunber of aggressive prograns, safety,
performance and conpliance, for al nost the | ast
15 years.

Actual ly, 13, during which tinme
aggregat es operators have succeeded in reducing
the industry's injury rate to what is now the
record |low | evel of just 2.11 injuries per
200, 000 hours wor ked.

Al so, NSSG has worked diligently with

MSHA to facilitate inprovenents in inspector
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consi stency in conpliance with MSHA standards.
MSHA is to be credited in our view wth
significant reductions in inspector inconsistency
over the past several years. W appreciate that
diligent effort.

Wth regard to this proposal, we are
concerned with a nunber of itens, a nunber of
which I will relate this norning, and all of
which will be addressed in our formal witten
comments to be submitted likely in January.

First, given -- with regard to
negl i gence and gravity, given that the proposal
i ncl udes no explicit guidance on reconciling
current categories of classifying negligence with
new categories, there is no way for an operator
to understand how an inspector would interpret
conditions relative to the proposed categori es.

For instance, it is unclear how
citations that are currently marked as high
negl i gence or | ow negligence woul d be treated.
And it appears that the elimnation of high

negl i gence under the proposal would result either
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in one, unwarrantable failures acconpani ed by
findi ngs of negligence, or two, an increase in
t he nunber of reckless disregard findings to

support unwarrantabl e fail ures.

Bot h scenari os from our standpoint are

problematic. Wth respect to the first, an
unwarrantabl e failure nust be nore than ordinary
negl i gence, and therefore not supported by a
finding that an operator was negligent.

| f MSHA were able to support an
unwarrantable failure by finding only that an
operator was negligent, it would result in a
del usi on of the nmeani ng unwarrantable failure,
and in turn increase in 104(d) citations.

Regar di ng the second possible
consequences, if negligent is deenmed insufficient
for supporting an unwarrantable failure, this
woul d require use of reckless disregard to
support a 104(d).

An increase in reckless disregard
findi ngs woul d obviously result in increased

penalties and nost |ikely an increase in the
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nunber of enforcenent actions considered for a
flagrant viol ation.

Al so, we urge MSHA to be cogni zant of
the fact that the classification of a citation as
reckl ess disregard as opposed to high negligence
wi || expose operators to a mmjor increase in
civil litigation because there are a nunber of
states in which such a classification can trigger
an exenption in workers' conpensation coverage.

The proposed rule would elimnate the
consideration of mtigating factors, sonething
that is critical to a full evaluation of operator
culpability for alleged violations.

W strongly oppose the proposed
changes on negli gence.

Anot her maj or concern regarding
gravity is that changes to the |ikelihood of
occurrence criteria. The proposed definitions
woul d change this consideration to whether an
event, not an injury, has occurred.

This will result in an increase in

occurred designations, which will lead to
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i ncreased penalties. So, the proposed definition
woul d be based on the inspector's interpretation
as to whether or not the event is one that
could ve resulted in an injury or illness.

This woul d appear to run directly
counter to the aimof inproved objectivity and
consi stency. Accordingly, it appears that the
proposed definition would | ower the burden for
significant and substantial designation froma
condition with a reasonabl e probability of
causing an injury to a caution -- to a condition
with even a slimpossibility for causing an
i njury.

Thi s proposed definition of reasonably
| i kely al so raises a point of uncertainty, nanely
the relationship between it and S&S desi gnati ons.

The Secretary's proposed definition of
reasonably likely is, "A condition or practice is
likely to cause an event that could result in an
injury or illness.” Violations are properly
designated as S&S if, based upon the particul ar

facts surrounding the violation, there exists a
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reasonabl e |ikelihood that the hazard contri buted
toit will result in an injury or illness of a
reasonabl y serious nature.

The condition is enphasized that it is
the contribution of a violation to the cause and
effect of a hazard that nust be significant and
substantial. These proposed changes will lead to
greater subjectivity, not |ess.

Al so, these changes woul d nmake it nore
difficult for intelligent conferencing of
citations. Further, there is no explanation as
to assunptions an inspector should make in
evaluating levels of gravity.

So, we would contend that these
revisions will yield nore disagreenents over
citations, and thus nore contests, and these
changes risk radically altering three decades of
case law. W strongly oppose these proposed
changes.

Regarding the authority of the Review
Comm ssion, we believe it should not be curbed.

The rule | ooks to possibly curb the role of the
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Federal M ne Safety and Health Revi ew Conm ssion
in dramatic fashion.

This is fundanentally wong for a
nunber of reasons. The proposed changes contrary
to the 1977 M ne Act, which called for third
party review of contested citations. Also, this
proposal is contrary to Federal Mne Safety and
Heal t h Revi ew Conm ssi on precedent.

We believe that no deference should be
afforded to the Secretary's proposed penalties
and strongly oppose these changes. Assessnent
costs should not go up by virtue of this rule.

MSHA cl ai ns that the proposed
amendnments woul d've resulted in 2.7 mllion |ess
dollars for penalties for citations issued in
2013 than was assessed under the current penalty
regul ati ons.

NSSGA perforned cal cul ati ons of cost
i npacts for small, nmediumand | arge operations
with both current and proposed regul ati ons,
definitions and factors in place, and found that

penalty assessnent cost increases rangi ng between
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50 and 80 percent.

VW will be happy in our fornal
comments to submt this chart to show how t hose
i ncreases were achi eved.

M5. SILVEY: And did you use specific
citations?

MR. CASPER. W took exanples and
explicitly stated how the citation had been
witten and what the costs were under the current
rule, and then under the future rule.

MS. SILVEY: (kay.

MR. CASPER. So, yes, we are explicit.

These costs will be borne by custoners working to
construct housing, office buildings, schools,
hospi tal s and hi ghways needed by our comunities
and for econom c recovery.

This kind of infrastructure spending
was reporting just in this nmorning s Washi ngt on
Post to be supported by the Gohana Adm ni stration,
and thus, these costs are very inportant to keep
in mnd in our analysis of where this proposal

ought to go.
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These cost increases contradict MSHA's
assertion that operator's will see a reduced
| evel of penalty assessnents.

Al so, we suggest that MSHA use this
opportunity to do what NSSGA has suggested for a
nunber of years now. Use this opportunity to
grant enforcenent credit to excellent operators.

W believe that this proposal fails to
take the opportunity to devel op an approach for
granti ng sone neasure of enforcenent credit to
t hose operators that have done very well in
safety issues and on conpli ance.

This could be done by reinstituting
the single penalty provision in place before the
2008 Part 100 changes, and/or by inplenenting the
NSSGA supported pattern of conpliance program
granting sone enforcenent relief to operators
with an excellent track record with regards to
safety and conpli ance.

For instance, nmaybe there would be
relief for excellent operators of the nandatory

to and for inspections for surface and
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under ground operators respectively.

These are conpelling ideas that woul d
further boost conpliance.

I n concl usi on, NSSGA strongly opposed
key provisions of this proposal because despite
good work done by MSHA and industry to achieve
| mprovenents in conpliance and inspector
consi stency, these provisions are expected to
foster | ess consistent enforcenent and
conpl i ance.

Accordi ngly, such factors would result
in increased burden on operators, which would
serve to inpede their continued efforts to
successful |y manage wor kpl ace safety and heal t h,
and conpliance with standards.

Further, this proposal fails to neet
t he agency's stated goals in the proposal. NSSGA
woul d be pleased to work with MSHA to devel op a
nore positive approach to inproving Part 100. W
will submt formal witten comments in tine for
the January 9, 2015 deadline. Thank you very

much for your considerations.
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MS. SILVEY: Thank you. First of all,
l et me state that MSHA appreci ates the work of
all of the operators who are in this room and
their associations with respect to worker
associ ations also who work with MSHA to achi eve
i nprovenents in safety and health, mner safety
and heal t h,

Wth M ner Day being Saturday, we know
that we could not be -- inprovenents that we have
achi eved, and we have had sort of a glitch in the
-- you know, glitch is not the right word with
respect to netal/nonnetal fatalities this year.
We all know that. But the overall achievenents
in mner safety and health could not be done by
MSHA al one and coul d not be done wi thout the help
of the operators and the workers, and their
wor kers. W do appreciate that.

But with respect to a nunber of your
comments, | -- and I'mgoing to reiterate that
t he proposal does not change the definition of
S&S and unwarrantable failure. W put those --

we said that in the proposed rule. | said that
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this norning, and it does not.

And to state sonmething that you said,
we did not -- the agency did not intend and does
not intend to change three decades of case |aw,
as you put it.

We did intend to create a situation
t hat woul d reduce subjectivity and inprove
objectivity. Wth respect to -- and I'll just
t ake one of your exanples. People have heard ne
say that, so that's why -- that's when you have
to be specific in your conments.

But with respect to negligence, |
think you anticipated that high negligence and --
you antici pated that high negligence would be
rolled into reckless disregard, but there's a
definition of reckless disregard and it is nore
t han ordi nary negli gence.

So, with us having only three
categories, our projection was that |ow, nopderate
and hi gh negligence would be negligence. It is
negl i gence. Reckless disregard is another

definition, and there -- it has to be nore than
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negl i gence.

| know the definition says ordinary
negl i gence, but nore than negligence and there
have to be aggravating circunstances. And so,
our assunptions were that those three categories
woul d be just negligence.

Now, | said also in ny opening
statenment that that does portend sonething that
we have to do, which neans that we have to do
additional training of all of our inspectors if
this rule were to go into effect in sonme formor
f ashi on.

| say that to everybody, but | -- we
do | ook forward where you particularly in your
comments -- and | -- I'm-- you all have heard ne
-- all of you heard ne say this. Wen you said,
"Assessnments cost would go up." W did not
intend for assessnent costs to go up.

So, with respect to your concl usion
t hat when you say you perfornmed cal cul ati ons of
cost inpacts and they woul d have cost increases

ranging from50 to 80 percent, and we heard from
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sone people who said it would be magni tudes of 50
to 80 percent.

And so, we do -- we would like you to
support that with specific details of how you got
-- you cane to your conmputations. W put ours in
the proposed rule, and we'd like to see yours.

MR. CASPER. They will be included in
our witten comments.

M5. SILVEY: Ckay. Do you have
anyt hi ng? Ckay, thank you.

MR. CASPER.  Thank you.

M5. SILVEY: W will next have Bruce
Wat zman with the National M ning Association.

MR. WATZMAN: Thanks, Pat, and thanks
Menbers of the Panel. | apologize. | don't have
a copy of my witten statement. As you can see,
| " ve made changes throughout the day. | wll
provi de you a clean copy follow ng the hearing.

' m Bruce Watzman. Last name is
spelled WA-T-Z-MA-N;, Senior Vice President of
the National Mning Association. NMA along with

the Portl and Cenent Associ ati on and the
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Fertilizer Institute will be filing detailed
comments on the proposed rule.

Today, |'I1 highlight our overarching
concerns with the rule, nanely the failure to
substantiate a need for the rule, the failure to
conport with the requirenents of the M ne Act,
and the proposed rule's Iimtation on fair and
equi tabl e adj udi catory process.

In the sinplest sense, this rule is,
in our opinion, a solution in search of a
problem From our perspective, the proposed rule
must be wi thdrawn because it exceeds MSHA' s
authority, violates the Mne Safety and Health
Act, and fails to acconplish the goals stated in
t he proposed rul e.

In essence, the proposal, if adopted,
woul d constitute an arbitrary and capricious rule
wi thout articulating any reasonable basis for the
changes set forth in the proposal.

In the conmentary acconpanyi ng the
proposal , the agency asserts that the proposed

changes will, one, inprove objectivity and
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consi stency in how inspectors wite citations and
orders; two, result in earlier resolution of
enforcenment issues due to fewer areas of dispute;
three, result in greater enphasis on nore serious
safety and health conditions, and four, provide

i ncreased openness and transparency in the
application of regular penalty fornula.

W respectfully disagree. |In our
view, the proposal fails to neet these
obj ecti ves.

Consi deration of this proposal dates
back to the days followi ng the tragedy at the
Upper Big Branch Mne, and we all regret that
that occurred and we continue to think about the
mners and the famlies of the mners who
perished in that tragedy.

The proposal, the prem se of the rule,
no longer -- in our viewis no |onger valid.
Nanely, the need to reduce controversy and
t hereby reduce the nunber of contested citations
resulting in the backl og before the Federal M ne

Saf ety and Heal th Revi ew Comm ssi on.
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During the last few years, MSHA
frequently pointed to the backlog in contested
citations, penalties and litigation as the cause
for the agency's enforcenent difficulties and the
need for change.

MSHA' s hi storical records confirmthat
the rise in litigation followed a nore than 400
percent increase in penalties proposed by MSHA
begi nning in 2008.

After this seismc shift in
enforcenent efforts, and the Conm ssion and
MSHA' s i nvestnent in additional resources and
manpower, the contest backl og was reduced from
approxi mately 18,000 i n Septenber of 2010 to
approxi mately 6,500 at the end of the last fiscal
year. A reduction of approximtely 65 percent.

The Conmi ssion's backlog in cases is
not justification for this rule. The proposed
rul e does not conport with the Mne Act. NMSHA
has not, in our view, conducted an adequate data-
driven analysis of penalties, health and safety

performance and the proposed changes, nor
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sufficiently articul ated reasons to undert ake
this major regulatory change, or any of its
specific el ements.

| nstead, the proposal at best appears
to be change for the sake of change, and at
wor se, seeks to ease the Secretary's burden of
proof on enforcenent actions, restrict mne
operators' ability to contest MSHA proposal
citations, and increase penalties wthout a
safety rational e.

Recent enforcenent history shows that
citation rates are down, the Conm ssion backl og
is dramatically reduced, and nost inportantly,
accidents and fatalities are down.

In other words, the current rule is
acconplishing the goal of this proposal and MSHA
has not identified any data or other evidence
showi ng that the proposed rule will have any
different inpact on inproving safety and health.

In our view, the proposed rule fails
to identify the problemor concern it seeks to

sol ve; analyze the facts associated with the
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probl em where concerned, and articulate enpirical
data to justify its provisions as solutions to
the identified problens or concerns.

The proposed rul e does not conport
with MSHA' s stated objectives. MSHA cont ends
that the sinplification reduction and descriptive
categories of penalty criteria should lead to
fewer areas of dispute and earlier resolution of
enforcenent issues, place increased enphasis on
nore serious hazards and |l ead to nore openness
and transparency.

In our view, these assertions are
incorrect. In our view, the proposed rule wll
put the mning industry and the agency back in
t he sane predi canent that existed in 2008 with
enf orcenent increases, higher contest rates and a
resurgent in the nunber of dockets and backl og
st at us.

Specifically, proposed revisions to
t he negligence and gravity designations are
conbi ned with proposed changes to the I|ikelihood

criteria, deleting categories and col |l apsing
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them thereby reducing inspector options in
descri bing violations, and encouragi ng i ncreased
i nspector severity and fault ratings with the

i nt ended consequences of increased enforcenent
and penal ti es.

This will result in nore penalties and
nore contests, not fewer. The proposed changes
to the Comm ssion's authority is contrary to the
Act .

The M ne Act deliberately divides
authority for proposing and assessing penalties
bet ween the Secretary and the Conmmi ssion. The
Act delegates to the Secretary of the authority
to propose civil penalties.

If a m ne operator disagrees with the
Secretary's allegations, the operator nay contest
the citation, order or proposed assessnent of
penalty. The Act directs the Commission to
afford the m ne operator a hearing, and
thereafter shall issue an order based on findings
of fact, affirm ng, nodifying or vacating the

Secretary's citation, order or proposed
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penal ti es.

The split authority was precisely what
Congress i ntended when it passed the M ne Act.
The plain neeting of the Act and the |egislative
hi story expressly authorized the Comm ssion or by
extensi on the Comm ssion ALJs to affirm nodify,
hi gher or |lower, or vacate the Secretary's
proposed penalty based on the facts found during
t he heari ng.

Conpl et e i ndependence of the
Commi ssion fromthe Secretary is of paranount
i nportance to ensure a fair adjudicatory process.
The proposal would violate this basic tenant, and
must be w t hdr awn.

| would draw your attention to the
comments that were subnmitted earlier this week by
ten former Conmmi ssioners fromthe Federal M ne
Saf ety and Heal th Revi ew Comm ssi on, who pointed
to this proposal and asked that those provisions
of the proposal be w thdrawn.

As | nmentioned at the outset, NVA, PCA

and TFI will be filing detailed witten coments
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on the proposal. Qur conclusion, however, is
that the proposal fails to articul ate any
guantitative basis for the changes it seeks to
I mpl enent .

Not only does the proposal offer scant
evi dence that the contenpl ated changes w ||
actually bring about inprovenents in health and
safety or reductions in litigation that MSHA
predicts, the data indicates that the opposite
wi |l occur.

The agency has not denonstrated a
statistically significant relationship between
citation histories and penalties, and accidents
or injuries, nor tied the relationship to its

proposed changes.

In essence, the proposal will generate
-- will not generate inprovenent and safety.
VWhat it will do however is result in a diversion

of safety resources and a return to the increased
contest rates and | engthy Comm ssion docket
backl og encount ered begi nning in 2008.

M. McGIlton and others -- M.
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MG Ilton has testified, and others will be
testifying at this hearing, and will be
presenting you with facts.

These are the facts that the
i nformation deals with day in and day out.
| nconsi stency, lack of transparency that |eads to
controversy and that |leads to contest. It is not
that the industry has a fear of the unknown, but
rather a fear of the known; the known facts that
they deal with day in and day out.

MSHA previously revised the Part 100
regul ati ons. W commented extensively on that,
and Ms. Silvey, you and | had the opportunity to
attend a neeting at the office of nanagenent and
budget that we requested prior to the rule being
finalized.

W presented our analysis of what we
t hought the inpact of that rule would be on the
i ndustry. Qur view was that the agency had
grossly underestimated the costs of that rule.

The good news is we were right. The

bad news is we were right. The costs of the
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previous Part 100 rate changes have greatly,
greatly exceeded what the agency estimted those

to be.

has grossly underestinated the inpact of this
rule, and we believe that the facts wll
denonstrate that. Thank you very nuch.

M5. SILVEY: Thank you. 1'd like to
make sone comments and ask you sone -- | don't
know about questions, but you said this proposed
rule fails to conply with the Mne Act, and
particularly exceeds MSHA's authority. Wuld yo
tell me how it exceeds MSHA's authority?

MR, WATZMAN.  We' Il expand upon that
in far greater detail in our witten comments.
think the nost glaring exanple, and the one |
will point to today, and the one | tal ked about
in my comments, was the shackles, if you wll,
that you will be placing on the Comm ssion and
the ALJs should the rule be finalized in its
current form W think that is in direct

violation of the Mne Act, and the Congressiona
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intent in enacting the Mne Act.

M5. SILVEY: Ckay. One of the things
| do want to say for everybody is that we did not
i ssue this proposed rule, and | don't -- | nean |
don't think you will find this statement in
there: using the Comm ssion's backl og of cases as
justification. So, | want everybody to know
t hat .

Anot her thing | want to comrent on,
and you are precisely right about the -- | guess
t he 2007 penalty proposal that we did because a
nunber of people -- you know, people generally
think that we did it because of the Mner Act,
and clearly there were sone provisions that were
in the Mner Act that we included in that
proposal .

By and | arge, the biggest change in it
was, as you correctly put it, changes that were
just to the existing penalties to overall
structure of the existing penalties.

One of the things -- because one of

the things I kind of like to use, and | want all
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of you to do that. And when |I'mwong, |'mwong

and facts are facts. One of the things | would
like to say is we used projections in that rule
based on the data, the nunmber of inspectors and

the citations which is what we did here.

The citations that we had at the tine.

Subsequent to issuing that proposed rule, after
the Mner Act, and after -- obviously everybody
knows unfortunately the tragic accidents at
Aracoma, Sago, and Darby. MSHA got additi onal

i nspectors, as nost of you know, with additional
i nspectors going through additional training.

MSHA i ssued nore citations. So, we
had nore people. More citations, which we did
not factor into the projections in the '07
proposal. | guess it was '06 or '07. Well, it
came out in '07.

And so, therefore obviously our
projections were off. | think though even with
the additional inspectors and additi onal
citations, over tine the citations that we have

now and the penalties that we have now, what we
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have seen with -- and with sone additiona
trai ning of our own inspectors, and we conti nue
to do that every day; we've seen the citations as
wel | as the penalties have taken a downward turn.
Probably the result -- sonebody had in
their comments that some of the progranms we have
i npl enented, Rules to Live By and inpact
i nspections. So, we hope that obviously that
downward turn reflects an upward trend in safety
and health conditions at the mnes. | nust say
and | will say better results of better training

of our own peopl e.

So, | just wanted to make that
coorment. | would ask you if you would -- Bruce,
if you would, I -- I -- | heard, and | wote al

your conclusions. But | would ask with respect
to some of themif you would follow it up with
details, as |I am asking everybody if you would
pl ease do that.

That is -- that is the nost useful
way. |If you have details to support and

rationale, that's the nost useful way we can take
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what you say and nove to a final rule that would
be -- as Assistant Secretary Main said in his
coments, that woul d be responsive to the

concerns of the mning public. And we hope to do

t hat .
MR, WATZMAN. We will be doing that.
MS. SILVEY: kay, thank you.
MR. WATZMAN: Thank you.
MS. SILVEY: Qur next speaker woul d be
Henry Chajet. | guess it's a newtitle here.

So, Jackson Lewis. OCh, so you have a
presentation?

MR. CHAJET: | have one slide.

M5. SILVEY: kay, | can | ook at one
slide. I'Il just sit back and | ook at your one
slide.

MR. CHAJET: Good norning, Ms. Silvey.

MS. SILVEY: Good norning.

MR, CHAJET: Menbers of the Panel,
good norning. It is nmy pleasure to be here
again. W go back at |east 36 years together in

wor king on a variety of different mne safety and
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heal t h regul ati ons.

First of all, | appreciate the
privil ege of appearing before you. | appear
bef ore you today on behalf of a new coalition
that is called the MSHA Fairness Coalition. That
is a very hopeful term Because we don't think
we' ve achi eved that goal yet, but we are hoping
that you will help us achieve that goal by
abandoning this rule.

Let me start with the fact that the
ten former review conm ssioners, including
chai rman and chairpersons, filed these conments a
coupl e of days ago. M. Watzman alluded to
t hem

| would strongly suggest that you read
t hem

M5. SILVEY: | have reviewed them
Thank you.

MR CHAJET: That is a terrific
i ndication of the problens with this rule. Wen
you have a bipartisan group of appointees that

wer e appoi nted by republican and denocratic
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presi dents and confirned by the senate, telling
you not to finalize and adopt the provisions of
this rule, dealing with the Revi ew Comm ssi on

It is acritically inportant
i ndependent group that was created by Congress,
and MSHA frankly doesn't have the authority to
change the law. Only the Congress does.

| would hope that you woul d read that
and wi thdraw that provision inmediately to that
it doesn't serve to be further controversy in
t hi s proceedi ng.

Second, when | first got into this
busi ness, one of the first cases that | worked on
was the National Gypsum Case. | argued that case
and revi ew comm ssion ruled in that case, and
determ ned the neaning of the term significant
and substantial violations.

| hear, coming fromthe Panel, this
concept that this rule was not intended to change
that definition. But fromthe perspective of a
practitioner of mne safety and health, and

occupati onal safety and health law, | can tel
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you that this rule will in fact inpact how
i nspectors change, wite up, nodify, allege
viol ations.

When they have to check a box that
says, "Likely," or, "Unlikely," or check a box
t hat says, "Cccurred,” or "Not occurred,"” they're
maki ng a determi nation that goes into their
t hought process about the nature of the
vi ol ation: whether it is significant and
substanti al .

You will have to change the citation
forms if you finalize this rule.

M5. SILVEY: W have a draft. | hope
people -- did you put copies of the draft at the
back? W have a draft that reflects the -- we
have a draft that reflects the proposed rule. |
t hought it was at the back of the room

MR, CHAJET: Well, let nme give you an
exanple. At page 44503 of the Federal Register,

t he agency states that, "A condition or practice
has occurred if it has resulted or could have

resul ted."
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M5. SILVEY: | got you. | got that

underlined before you --

MR, CHAJET: | hope you del ete that
t oday.

M5. SILVEY: But | have it underlined
before -- you can conme up here and | ook at Jay's
Federal Register. | want you to cone up here.

MR. CHAJET: You're changing the --

MS. SILVEY: No. | want you to cone
up here and ook at it. | request that.

MR, CHAJET: | would be happy to | ook

at Jay's Federal Register before this hearing is
over.

MS. SILVEY: (kay.

MR, CHAJET: But in the meantine, what
you' ve put out on the street for all of us to
comment on changes the very nature of the English
| anguage in addition to the M ne Act.

M5. SILVEY: No, | appreciate your
cooment. It's well taken. Okay, you know what
t he judge says when you made your case. Move on

MR, CHAJET: | do know.
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M5. SILVEY: Ckay. Move on

MR. CHAJET: Let ne look at this slide
up here that's on the -- that's on your
Power Poi nt presentation on the screen. Wat you
are proposing to do is to coll apse categories
that inspectors are currently using to categorize
an all eged viol ation.

When you do that, you're not going to
get nore transparency. You're going to create an
opaque systemthat can't be understood, right?
| nspectors have five choices, and they're going
to be given three, and that's not going to work.
It's not going to be clearer what they nean.

It's going to be nore difficult to
di scern what they nean, and you're not going to
get a 30 percent rate of overturning S&S for
chal l enge violations. You're going to get a 70
percent rate of overturning violations.

W have a group of inspectorate, and
l"mglad you're noving to help train themwth
revi ewi ng paper that's been nodified, but we have

a group of inspectors who routinely doesn't get
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this right based on the chall enge rate and based
on the nunbers that are overturned.

By folding these criteria into fewer
groups, you're going to get an even larger rate
of error by these inspectors. It is inpossible
for an inspector to check negligent or reasonably
| i kely and then not have it inpact their
determ nation of unwarrantable failure or
significant and substanti al.

So, you cannot disassoci ate what they
check on these boxes fromthe check mark on the
S&S, or the check mark on the unwarrantabl e
failure box. This rule will inpact both. And
because of that, it's going to drive the
penal ti es substantially higher.

Wrse, what's really, really bad about
this is that you' re taking out the incentive for
voluntary safety efforts. People who go and do
|l ots of things that are pro-safety that are not
requi red by MSHA;, sonetines MSHA calls those
mtigating circunstances.

You cone up with this concept. These

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

130

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

131

are mtigating circunstances. W do extra
i nspections. W buy extra equipnent. W do
extra training. Al of these are wonderful
t hi ngs that have hel ped reduce fatalities and
injuries in this business.

And you're going to say to the
i nspectors, "Don't take those into consideration
under this rule.” This is counterproductive, and
that is wong.

Thi s agency shoul d never be in the
position of taking away incentives for safety
i mprovenent. That's exactly where you find
yourself today with this rule.

| would suggest, as M. Watznman sai d,
that this is a solution trying to find a probl em
You have not defined what the problemis. In
fact, you' ve taken a current problem a 30
percent rejection rate for S&S, and you're going
to expand it trenendously with this proposed
rul e.

My partner, Mark Savit, will be

presenting in Denver a statistical analysis and a

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

nore detailed presentation on behalf of this
coalition of m ning conpanies that seeks NMSHA
fairness and further safety inprovenent.

| woul d suggest to you that when you
see that data analysis, you will see that this
proposed rule would drive up penalties by factors
of ten. Oder of magnitude. And you will see
that it will have an adverse inpact on safety
per f or mance.

When you say, "Take out mtigating

ci rcunstances,” you can't -- it's like taking the
heart away fromthe soul, right? Negligence is a
termthat is defined by |aw by whet her sonebody
acts on a reasonabl e basis.

That i ncludes whet her sonebody takes
proactive actions, whether sonebody works to
prevent the problem Let ne give you an exanple
that will, | hope, drive this hone.

One of the citations in the National
Gypsum Case was for having a trash can without a

lid marked as significant and substantial. All

right, there's a regulation in the netal/nonnetal
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book that requires receptacles for waste that
have food products or wappings to have a |id.

Now, under your current proposed rule,
could that result in an injury? |f the inspector
does the analysis, yes, it could attract a rabid
rodent, and it could end up harm ng sonebody.
Wuld it? No.

M5. SILVEY: Could it likely?

MR CHAJET: No. And the answer is
you're renoving the likely part fromthis rule.

M5. SILVEY: No. | don't think so.

MR, CHAJET: You are. You're renoving
the likely part. And you are also taking the
negl i gence -- suppose that m ne operator bought
30 trash cans, and they all had brand new |ids,
and put themall over the mne property. And one
of the lids came off, and was not noticed in that
norning's area inspection, right?

The area inspection was done. | just
bought 30 brand new trash cans. They all had
lids. | now had one without a lid. |'m not

going to get mtigating circunstance credit for
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that. You're going to mark me up for high
negl i gence occurred because it says "could."

That's going to turn into an
unwarrantable failure for something that is
irrelevant, and that's what was going on at the
time of the National Gypsum Case. This agency
was running a 93 percent rate of significant and
substantial findings with a process that | ooks an
awful lot |ike what you' ve just proposed.

There was no differentiati on between
the various |levels of negligence and the various
| evel s of seriousness, and at that tine, the
Revi ew Comm ssion nmade a very w se ruling and
said, "This doesn't nake any sense. This has to
change. W have to have a better understanding
of what is inportant.”

W have nade progress. You' ve come up
with Rules to Live By. This is arule to live
without. And | strongly suggest that the agency
withdraw it before we spend anynore tinme, effort
and noney on this terrible proposal. 1'd be glad

to answer any questions.
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M5S. SILVEY: (kay, first of all, I'd
| i ke you to give us sonme specifics to support
sonme of the conclusions you made. |'mgoing to
ask you |like |I ask everybody el se.

Second of all, | appreciate your
comment with respect to the Federal M ne Safety
and Heal th Revi ew Conm ssion, as well as your
comment. Can | borrow your Federal Register,
Jay? As well as the comrent you made with
respect to page --

MR CHAJET: 44053.

MS. SILVEY: No, | know. | knowit.
44503.

MR CHAJET: Cccurred neans --

MS. SILVEY: Onh, 44503 and the little
chart we had, the gravity chart table 11, and we
have given the definitions "unlikely," and we
gave "reasonable likely," and "highly likely,"
and "occurred.” W gave a definition of occurred
that said, "Condition or practice cited has
caused an event that has resulted or could have

resulted in injury or illness,” and you drew to
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our attention the phrase in there, "Could have
resulted.” So, | appreciate your comrent on
t hat .

Now, let's take your chart here. Take
a teaching nonent. The conpressed penalty
criteria, you contend, which is nore subjective
and uncl ear, and you can visually see five
categori es of negligence were reorgani zed. As
sonebody earlier said, "Collapsed into three."

In our projections, we said, "No
negl i gence; that the operator is not negligence.”
No negligence, noderate negligence or high
negl i gence woul d be negligent. These -- these
are the assunptions we make. Reckl ess disregard
has its own definition, and you know it has --
everybody knows it has to be aggravated conduct,
and that would be -- still be reckless disregard.

So, let's take likelihood. No
| i kel i hood and unli kel i hood we assume in our
assunptions we nade both in the proposals and the

data conputations that no |ikelihood and unlikely

woul d col | apse into, to use your termor
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sonebody's term unlikely. Reasonably likely
woul d be reasonably likely, and highly likely --
what ?

MR, CHAJET: Wy are you doing this?

MS. SILVEY: No, because | want to
explain what we did. Reasonably likely and
highly |ikely would be reasonably |ikely and
occurred. It's alittle unclear.

MR CHAJET: | think so.

M5. SILVEY: kay, |'msaying that for
me, but | want everybody to understand before
they | eave here that no likelihood and unlikely
woul d be unlikely, and that reasonably likely and
highly |ikely would be reasonably |ikely and

occurred woul d be occurred.

And | take it -- | take notice of the
fact -- of the phrase in occurred, or could have
resulted. So, |I'msaying that for the record.

But why am |l -- I'mdoing that -- |'mdoing that

to articulate what we intended in the proposal,
and -- and the now | understand the val ue of

t hese heari ngs.
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These hearings do nake you | ook at,
sort of |ook at, what you did to nmake sure that
it is clear to the public. And if you have any
guestions in your conments to us when you --
pl ease be -- please present them So, anyway.

MR, CHAJET: Ms. Silvey, | draw your

attention to the same page, 44503. Even the

reasonably likely category -- even the reasonably
| i kely category uses the word "could.” Could is
a speculative word. It's not part of the |aw

MS. SILVEY: No.

MR. CHAJET: The law is reasonably
likely. Not could. Could could be anything.
Coul d could be that rodent that is rabid that
cones out and bites that trash can that doesn't
have a lid, and then threatens ne.

MS. SILVEY: kay, but reasonably
likely is -- reasonably likely is specul ative.
W all know that. So, we are not going to argue
over --

MR CHAJET: But we tried hundreds of

cases over whether something is S&S or not.
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MS. SILVEY: | understand that, and we
didn't --

MR. CHAJET: And this nmake it nore
opaque.

M5. SILVEY: W didn't change the
definition of S&S.

MR. CHAJET: You did. You changed it
ri ght here on page 44503.

M5. SILVEY: Okay, well, I'msaying to
everybody here that we did not change it. So, we
will just agree to disagree on that.

MR. CHAJET: Do you think that an
i nspector, when he is now given a choice for high
negl i gence, that he woul d've previously narked
hi gh negligence, is going to go to noderate? O,
do you think he's going to go to reckl ess?
personal ly think he's going to go up.

M5. SILVEY: W did not -- and | said
-- | clearly said to everybody, "W did not use
that -- that." W did not project that.

Reckl ess disregard is its own definition, and we

didn't change that, and that's in the proposal.
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So, | don't -- you know, | -- | --
there's no sense in bantering back and forth over
that, and I -- and you know |'mnot going to --
you know, | don't want to. | never cut -- |I'm
not going to entertain much of it.

MR, CHAJET: M concern is | don't
under stand why you're doing this.

M5. SILVEY: kay, that's fine. But
as | said --

MR. CHAJET: | don't understand any --

M5. SILVEY: -- followit up with
speci fics.

COURT REPORTER: If the speakers could
not speak over each other for the transcript.

MR. CHAJET: W're going to give you,
of course, witten comments and highly detail ed
statistical analysis of data from your website
that Mark Savit will put on the record in Denver.

MS. SILVEY: Kkay.

MR. CHAJET: And we're going to give
you a set of comments before the end of the

rul emaki ng record. But underlying all of this is
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t oday.
MS. Sl LVEY:

Al'l en Dupree, who wl |

oh, they heard ne.

hear that. | forgot |
MR DUPREE:
MS. Sl LVEY:

MR. DUPREE:

Neal R.
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| just don't get it. What is the purpose?

M5. SILVEY: | hear you. | said just
gi ve nme specifics.

MR, CHAJET: All right.

MS. SILVEY: (kay.

MR, CHAJET: Thank you.

M5. SILVEY: And be factual in your
specifics. Do not be, "Speculative." You got
anything to say?

MR MATTOS: No thanks.

MS. SILVEY: (kay, thank you.

MR. CHAJET: Thank you very nuch. |

appreci ate the opportunity to be here with you

Qur next speaker will be
probably me a little nore
You weren't supposed to

had on this mc. He'll

probably be a little nore toned down.

Still good norning.

Happy to have you here.

It's good to be here, M.
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Silvey. M nane is Allen Dupree, A-L-L-E-N DU
P-RE-E. |'m Senior Vice President for Al pha
Nat ural Resources. Al pha's conpani es operate
mnes in facilities in Pennsylvania, Wst
Virginia, Kentucky, Virginia and Wom ng and
enpl oy approxi mately 10,000 m ners at these
oper ati ons.

Prior to coming to Alpha, just to |et
you all know my perspective on sone of these
I ssues that we're going to talk about, |'ve had
24 years with the Mne Safety and Health
Adm nistration, froma ventilation specialist and
tech support to a coal mne inspector,
supervi sor, assistant district manager over
engi neeri ng groups and enforcenent groups,
di strict manager, and al so conducted several MsSHA
i nternal reviews of which the purpose was to
eval uate MSHA' s enforcenent acti ons.

Thank you, the Panel today, for giving
me the opportunity to provide comments regarding
the proposed rule. After careful review of

MSHA' s proposed changes to Part 100, | have
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several observations and concerns.

The agency seens to have concl uded
that the need for reducing the inspector's
options in the evaluation of the violations wl|l
provi de enforcenent consistency.

| think the key to sol ving
i nconsi stencies by inspectors is not by rewiting
Part 100 again. Rather, the key is to train
i nspectors and field office supervisors to
consistently and properly evaluate the conditions
concerning the violations they are citing. |[|'l]
touch on that in a mnute.

A review of the history if Part 100
post 2007 shows a significant increase in
citations contests via increase in litigation was
a result of a tsunam of events, including the
maj or changes in penalty pricing of non-S&S
citations, dramatically increasing penalties.

At the sane tinme as the penalty system
and assessnent increases were occurring, the
agency chose to restrict the use of infornal

manager' s conferences as a neans to correct
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m sevaluations in a tinmely and informl nanner.

In the pattern of violations process,
they required an operator to contest nmany cases
so his rights to contest a POV designati on were
preserved.

Thi s proposed rul e change does not
hel p correct or inprove any of these issues and
actually has the potential to exacerbate sone of
them In reality, the problemof high | evel of
contest seens to have been resolved, and | think
Ms. Silvey alluded to that fact a few m nutes
ago.

The agency's statenents and the
preanble tend to support that a | ot of these
i ssues have resolved thensel ves through the
backl og of cases.

The preanbl e enphasi zes four
principles, four key principles, for devel opi ng
the rule, inproving consistency and objectivity
and efficiency in how inspectors wite citations
and orders, sinplification of the penalty

criteria, greater enphasis on the nore serious
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safety and health conditions, and the openness
and transparency in the application of the
agency's reqgular fornula penalty criteria.

MSHA' s key principles, one and two,
di scuss reduci ng deci sion making for inspectors,
as well as sinplification of the process;
reduci ng the nunber of decisions an inspector
makes -- nust nake for each citation may seemto
be a logical way to reduce contest of citations.

The reality is that the present
options did not present a problemprior to the
| ast rewrite when nunerous changes went into
effect.

MSHA has conmented several tines that
the industry flooded the penalty systemwth
contests after 2007 rule becane final. | think
it is critical to understand why that increase in
contested citations canme about.

One factor which directly inpacts
increased litigation is the severe hurdles placed
on obtaining a nanager's conference in the MSHA

system and that exists today in certain
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di stricts.

Wiile the final rule includes the
manager's conference process, this process
continues to be at the discretion of the district
managers. As stated in the proposed rule, "All
parties shall be afforded the opportunity to
review with MSHA each citation and order issued
during an inspection.”

It is within the sole discretion of
MBHA to grant a request for conference, and to
determ ne the nature of the conference, and that
IS not consistent today.

| f our goal, as stated by MSHA, is
early resolution of disagreenents, this is a
perfect opportunity. The elimnation of infornal
manager's conferences, as | said, is still an
ongoi ng concern and conti nues to push contests
into the formal adm nistrative arena.

It has been over seven years since the
previous rewite of Part 100 in the elimnation
or restriction of manager's conference went into

effect. | amasking that any new rewite of Part
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100 include a requirenent that manager's
conferences be tinely and available to operators
as a legal requirenent.

The | ack of these conferences nay not
be di sm ssed by the agency with a statenent that
is within the sole discretion to provide these.
Al'l regulative parties need sone sense of
certainty when planning how to manage a busi ness.

Not knowi ng when or if a conference
will be granted, and only informally know ng what
the MSHA district is going to do with conference
requests is not providing this certainty.

A rel evant nanager's conference, one
that is tinmely and is open discussion of the
rel evant facts of the citation, the mtigating
ci rcunstances involved and the rel evant case | aw
will ultinmately |lead to a reduced nunber of
contests.

If the results were shared with the
i nspectors and operators as a teaching tool, then
the systemw || be value added, and | know we

touched on that a little bit earlier this
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In fact, followi ng a previous internal

review, in which MSHA' s manager's conferences
wer e di scussed, MSHA responded to the internal
revi ew t hat consi stency and enforcenent actions
will continually be enhanced through the ACRI
program That was MSHA's response to the

I nternal review.

They al so stated, "regularly schedul ed

nmeetings will be held with all district CLRs;
attorneys fromthe Solicitor's Ofice will be
part of the neeting when possible. D scussions
w Il focus on recent Comm ssi on deci si ons,
exanpl es of upheld and nodified citations and
orders, and how conference officers can best use
the ACRI programto train the inspectors on
determ ning the appropriate |evel of enforcenent
when issuing violations."

The present limted access to

manager's conferences continues to hinder

consi stency and enforcenent actions, which is one

of the key points we've tal ked about today.
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| recommend that the highlighted
| anguage or -- be omtted in the proposed rule
and manager's conferences be a legally required
right afforded to the operator.

The ultimate goal of everybody
i nvolved in the mning industry should be that
when enforcenent actions are issued, they are
i ssued correctly to match the conditions
described in the violation, and consistently
appl i ed throughout the industry.

The proposed rul e does not acconplish
that objective, and if that is our objective,
whi ch we' ve tal ked about quite a bit today, we'd
have one opportunity that exists right now today
that we could be using to inprove our consistency
t hroughout the industry.

One of the key principles MSHA al so
stated was to place greater enphasis on the nore
serious safety and health conditions. | agree
with that principle, but I'mat a loss to see how
this rule acconplishes this goal.

Thi s concept was al ready baked into
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the systemwith a non-S&S single price penalty.
When Part 100 was rewitten, it changed that
single price penalty. | would recomend goi ng
back to a single charge per non-S&S citations
because all parties' tinme involved is spent on
the nore significant citations and orders, as
MSHA articulates in its principle.

Not wi t hst andi ng t he assessnent
process, MSHA al ready has nunerous enforcenent
tools at its disposal to address serious safety
and health conditions without again trying to
address this through Part 100.

For exanple, Section 104(d) of the
M ne Act creates a chain of increasingly severe
sanctions that serve as an incentive for operator
conpliance. | can say first hand as an MSHA
di strict manager and an assistant district
manager over enforcenent | never felt as though I
needed any additional tools at ny disposal to
address serious safety concerns.

| would al so suggest MSHA consi der a

couple nore principles. This newrule will not
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result in new litigation upsetting a |long history
of defining such key issues as unwarrantabl e
failure and S&S criteria as we now know it. And
Pat, | do not want to have that discussion. |
ki nd of heard what went on earlier, and your

t houghts on S&S and unwarrantable failure, but I
think that is arisk and | think that is a fear
that all of us have.

M5S. SILVEY: You're probably not --
you woul dn't have the sanme type of discussion
that M. Chajet had.

MR DUPREE: He's a |ot nore educated
t han nysel f.

MS. SILVEY: No, it's not nore
educated. It's just he's a | awer.

MR DUPREE: But | will say plainly
that by reading the preanble and reading the rule
that there's a great concern that the case | aw
wi || be upended and that S&S and unwarrant abl e
failure will be redefined. There's a grave
concern to that.

Okay, tal king about |ikelihood of
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occurrence has definition changes that we believe
will result in greater contest. Primarily, the
concerns are due to the insertion of the word,
"Event," into the definitions of |ikelihood of
occurrence.

This change also will greatly effect
t he assessnment of certain categories of citations
as well. Wiile the current rule has no
definitions, the practice is dictated on the
citations formis to -- is to check occurred only
with an actual injury or illness. W knowthat's
how it -- howit works today. | believe that's
in the citation order witing handbook.

The proposal ties a consideration with
an event, whether that event has resulted in an
actual injury or not. This makes nobst physi cal
citations potentially occurred, or certainly
reasonably |ikely.

Here is an exanple. If |I'mwalking
down an entry and | find a piece of draw rock on
the mne floor, that event has occurred. That

draw rock is on the mne fl oor.
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| can now check that box that that
event has occurred, and the -- the results of
that event could be an injury or illness.

Qur concern is under this definition
occurred woul d be heavily used in evaluating a
| ot of violations, where condition is found
rat her than the transparency in the key
princi pl es.

"1l touch on S&S real briefly, Pat,
and feel free to cut me off if you need to. One
concern we have is that the proposed rul e does
define non-S&S as narrowy as possible. The
definition of S&S as devel oped through the Review

Commi ssi on president has been in place for

decades.

W feel that the way it is witten
right now, there will be changes in the
definition of reasonably likely; it'll elimnate

the requirenent the probability that the hazard,
cause or contribute to the injury be reasonable.
The proposed definition would reduce

the requirenent to the alleged hazard will result
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in an injury to a possibility that the condition
or practice is likely to cause an event that
could result in an injury.

Al so, the proposed rule offers no
expl anation or definition of the termevent, nor
does it explain the |evel of probability
necessary to determne this event could result in
an injury.

W feel that the proposed definition
of reasonably likely will allow for greater
subj ectivity by inspectors regardi ng the actual
or hypothetical |ink between a violative
condition and a perspective injury.

The proposed definitions in this rule
are inportant for nore than penalty assessnent. |
bel i eve that a new wave of litigation will occur
that will upset |egal precedent.

Nowhere in the preanble is there any
di scussion of the potential effect of the |egal
precedent built into the definitions of this

proposed rul e.

Previously, the solicitor of |abor has
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al luded to the belief that the S&S principle be
changed fromthe Mathies test to the previous
MSHA view that only technical citations are in
t he real m of non- S&S cat egori zati on.

This testinmony was given in front of
t he House of Representatives Commttee on
Educati on and Labor on July 13th, 2010. So, |
think as we hear these things and see these
things that's what drives a |lot of our concerns
to be open.

The proposed rul e nakes significant
changes in negligence criteria as well.
Negl i gence effects the unwarrantable failure. On
first blush, the proposed -- the category is not
negli gent and reckl ess disregard will |ikely
account for a very small nunber of the
eval uations on first blush.

The negligent category will l|ikely be
marked for 95 to 98 percent of the negligence
eval uati ons. These percentages are not based on
anyt hing MSHA has stated in the preanble. |1'm

assum ng that the citations assessed at | ow,
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noderate and hi gh negligence will currently rol
into the negligence category.

Agai n, the use of reckless disregard,
whi ch shoul d by definition be rather limted,
woul d m ni m ze the nunber of unwarrantable
failure designations as we now define it today.

If that's the case, then the preanble
at | east needs to make this clear.

The elimnation of high negligence
rai ses significant questions as to the inpact on
unwarrantable failure. It is defined as
aggravat ed conduct constituting nore than
ordi nary negli gence.

Under the current structure
unwarrantable failure is not typically associated
with a noderate negligence finding, but rather a
finding of either high or reckless disregard.

Hi gh negligence, as it stands today,
is substantially nore common and is a general
driver for the unwarrantable failure designation.
W see a lot of citations and orders that are

mar ked hi gh negligence, 104(d).
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MSHA shoul d provide for the record its
vi ew of the percentages expected in three
categories and how the elimnation of high
negligence will inpact the unwarrantable failure
desi gnati on.

Also, | think Ms. Silvey, as you
mentioned earlier, | propose that the use of no
negl i gence be replaced with | ow negligence, or
none or |low negligence. | think it's al nost
i mpossi ble to achi eve no negligence.

The six key principles to develop a
Part 100 design that neets what MSHA stated but
not upset the previous precedence in case |aw,
and it should be designed to be revenue neutral
is the key aimfor the four MSHA principles as
consi stency, sinplification, openness and
appropri ate safety enphasis.

Revenue neutrality should also be a
standard. While the preanble states for this
proposed rule the projected inpacts consi st of
slightly lower total paynments by m ne operators

for penalties incurred, our analysis does not
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reflect this as being neutral.

| have a few exanples, M. Silvey,
that | would |ike to wal k through pretty quickly.
These are actual citations, and they aren't as
dramatic as sone of the dollar anmbunts that we
heard today. But when you're operating m nes and
enpl oyi ng 10, 000 miners, you can see how t hese
changes and penalties can add up pretty quickly.
How do we advance that?

kay, so, reducing the likelihood of
five categories to three: unlikely, reasonably
| i kely or occurred. The statenment that wll
sinplify the enforcenent process and prove
obj ectivity.

Qur viewis that this will only
i ncrease the subjectivity of the eval uati on.
Looking at the likelihood of the criteria,
condition or practice that is likely to cause an
event that could result in an injury or illness
I S what concerns us.

Okay, so here's a citation that was

| ssued under 75.1403. Both offside sanders on
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t he nunber two Brookville main trip were not
bei ng mai ntained in a working condition. The
sanders woul d not open and allow sand to fl ow
fromthe reserve.

So, it was marked as unlikely | ost
wor kdays. Non-S&S. Thirteen persons affected.
Low negligence. So, under the current Part 100,
we assune unlikely lost work days. Thirteen
peopl e affected. Low negligence.

You can see under the proposal the
penalty goes from $263.00 to $1, 260. 00, and t hat

i ncl udes the good faith discount.

M5. SILVEY: | have to look at that in
nore -- |'Il say to everybody | have to | ook at
that in nore detail. | mean | appreciate the
specifics, and an actual citation. | do. And I

woul d ask that every conmenter here, who
including the first -- who gave us concl usory
statenments that this proposal would do that if
they would followit up with sonme specific
exanpl es.

That woul d be very useful. | nean the
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poi nts you gave under the existing rule that we
have as opposed to -- on your exanple, as opposed
to the points you gave under this proposed --

MR. MATTOS: Just one point there, A,
on that last -- on that citation. It went from

unlikely to reasonable likely, rather than our

category -- proposed category of unlikely.

M5. SILVEY: | noticed that. That's
why | said | have to relook at that in nore
detail. It was unlikely. So, it wouldn't be
reasonably |ikely under the proposal. See,
that's one of the things that -- | thank you for

poi nting that out right now So, that would
effect the penalties.

If it were an interactive slide, and
you could go there and correct that, then we
coul d probably see a reduced penalty, and there
may be -- | -- | just couldn't look at it that
guickly. 1 really do appreciate that exanpl e,
and | really do want to ook at it in detail

MR. DUPREE: | think we can provide a

| ot nmore exanples in our witten comments if that
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woul d be hel pful.

MS. SILVEY: Yes, it would be.

MR. DUPREE: Here's an exanple of the
definition of occurred, |ooking at the new
definition of occurred. This was a citation
roofs and ribs where mners work and travels
shal | be supported or otherw se protected.

Draw rock was present. The rock in
this area separated fromthe mne roof one to
four inches in various locations. Miltiple
pi eces of rock, already fallen to the mne floor.
Bi ggest piece of rock pulled was two feet |ong,
ten inches wide, two inches thick. Test holes
reveal cracks at 12 and 29 inches. So, it is
obvi ously a roof issue.

So, when the citation was issued under
75.202(a), reasonably likely, |ost work days
restricted. |'msorry, reasonably likely to be
permanent |y di sabling, S&S. Nunber of persons
affected: 1. Mbderate negligence.

So, under the current Part 100, plug

in those categories; if you | ook at the draw rock
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on the mne floor, | think you can easily see how
you can check the box occurred. An event has
occurred. That is our concern.

So, going to occurred fromreasonably
| i kely, and as you add up the penalty points, you
go froma citation to -- after the good faith
reducti ons from $1, 200. 00 to $7, 000. 00.

| think as we read the rule today,
it's easy in nmy mnd to go to occurred. An event

has occurred.

MS. SILVEY: | appreciate what you're
saying. | personally wouldn't mark occurred, but
| see what you're saying. So, |I'msaying to

everybody in that exanple I wouldn't mark
occurred. And as | said, | appreciate what you
sai d.

MR. DUPREE: | think the chall enge,
Ms. Silvey, is that whether we're dealing on the
| abor side, the industry side or the federal
agency side, you have a | ot of personalities that
you deal wth.

M5. SILVEY: Right.
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MR. DUPREE: And even though our
intentions are that we wouldn't go to the left or
the right, |I can connect those dots, and | can
check occurred very easily, | believe. You can
see what that does to the penalty. That is one
of our biggest concerns in the definition is the
use of the termevent, okay?

MS. SILVEY: Yes.

MR, DUPREE: All right. kay, this is
just going to discuss a little about the
negligence if | can get it to nove forward.

There we are.

This is a 75.403 violations. W're
all famliar with the rock dusting violations.
This is marked unlikely, fatal, non-S&S and hi gh
negligence. It's a 104(a) citation.

So, here are sone different scenari os.
Ms. Silvey, if we look at the likelihood, kind of
playing with it alittle bit. |It's not
interactive. But you can see kind of |ooking on
the low side what it'll do to your penalties.

It's $807.00 assessnment currently. Under the | ow
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end, it would be $86.00. The nedi um ki nd of side
is $960.00. |If it's marked on the high end, it
could be $12,000.00. Ckay?

MS. SILVEY: Yes.

MR. DUPREE: That may get a little
nore in line with what you nentioned earlier.

M5. SILVEY: It does.

MR. DUPREE: (kay, this is the | ast
one that we have, and then I'lIl finish up. Ckay,
this is 75.503 violation of permissibility
vi ol ati on marked unlikely, permanently disabling,
non- S&S. Nunber of persons affected: 1.

Moder at e negl i gence.

This shows the current Part 100, and
then a range of |ow, nedium and hi gh exanpl es.

M5. SILVEY: This is their instructor
anyway.

MR. DUPREE: By abl e-bodi ed assi st ant
put these together.

MS. SILVEY: You should thank your
abl e- bodi ed assi st ant.

MR. DUPREE: You can see $490.00. It
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ranges from $315.00 all the way to $5, 600. 00.

M5. SILVEY: | understand. That --
that is really what -- that's very useful.

MR. DUPREE: W can do sone nore of
those, but | guess in sumary we'll add a | ot
nore details concerning these comments in
witing. | thought it was inportant to cone to
t he public hearing and get some answers and
t houghts fromyou all in person. That's very
val uable to us.

W do feel, though, that this rule, as
it is witten now, will have a far nore reaching
i mpact on litigation and eval uati on of
enforcenment actions in the preanble and the
rationale for another rewite inplies.

The preanbl e discussionis alittle
sparse on what the inpact of the proposed changes
in Part 100 may have in the S&S designati on and
al so the unwarrantable failure. | think that'l
be hel pful for us.

Bot h of these designations have maj or

i npacts on the operator well beyond the penalty
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paynments. So, | guess as a closing conment, this
proposed rule in its current forn? CQur
suggestion woul d be to reconsider sone of the
aspects of that rule. 1|'d be happy to answer any
guestions that you all have.

MS. SILVEY: Thank you. And again, |
want to reiterate that | appreciate the specific
exanpl es you gave, and we will | ook at them
closely. And | ask that they are instructed --
and | ask that every organi zation, a person who
presents comments to the extent that they can,
when they have specific exanples |ike that and --
and as | said before specific rationale for your
comments. That is instructed.

So, we do appreciate that, and that

causes us to think about certain things. | nean
you woul dn't think necessarily -- and anot her
commenter nentioned this, | think, but it didn't

hit home until you gave it.
You woul d not think necessarily that
the insertion of the word event woul d make peopl e

think that this has a nonunental inpact on
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sonething. But there are things that -- and
that's why we hold these public hearings.
|"mgoing to say to you what | said to
everybody el se who has been up here: That we --
when we did our projections, and obviously to put
those charts in the proposed rule, we had to make
assunptions. W assuned that |ow, noderate and
hi gh negligence would roll into negligence.

Now, people have taken that and
they've said to ne that, "But you got rid of
mtigating circunstances.” So, you know -- and
so there are mtigating circunstances.

So, just so everybody knows, you know,
| -- | hear what you all are saying. | get your
point with respect to what you said about
occurred. And | think an earlier conmenter nade
-- comented on that and nade a simlar conment.

But when you get specifics and you can see, you

can -- it does have an inpact.

So, we do appreciate that. | think
that's all I -- | don't really have -- and you
said when you get -- if you send future coments
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in, you will have future specifics, and that
woul d be hel pful.

MR. DUPREE: Yes, mam

MS. SILVEY: You have anyt hi ng?

MR. MATTOS: Not a question. Just
want to rem nd people that the data we used, each
violation and how it was assessed and woul d be
assessed under the proposal w th our assunptions
are out there for use and review and to pl ay
Wit h.

SILVEY: The conplete data set.

MATTOS: Right.

5 2

SILVEY: And we use --

MR. MATTOS: So, you can do what Allen
just did with these.

MS. SILVEY: Yes, and we used -- where
is that little chart? G aphic chart. W used
the 2013 penalties, proposed penalties. W used
the 2013 regul ar fornula proposed penalties,
because the proposed rul e does not effect special
assessnents as applied to the -- and the proposed

rul e takes those penalties, 2013 regular formula
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proposed penalties.

So, | nmean that's one thing that
obviously it -- it -- it results in a lot of data
permut ati on, but people could do that. Take the
data set and use it. GCkay, thank you, Allen.

MR, DUPREE: Thank you.

M5. SILVEY: Qur next commenter is
Wlliam C Means with GV M ne Repair and
Mai nt enance.

MR. MEANS: Thank you | adi es and
gentlenmen. My nane is WIIliam Means, M E-A-NS.
GVB M ne Repair and Maintenance |Incorporated is a
conpany that pales in size conpared to nany of
t he conpanies represented in this room many of
whom are our custoners.

W appreciate them W hope to
continue to work with themon this matter and
other matters. G5, however, is the |argest
i ndependent under ground coal m ning contractor in
the United States.

We serve custoners like those in this

room and others, in a dozen states from Virginia
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to Uah, from Pennsylvania to Al abama. So,
hopefully, | can bring a little bit of a
di fferent perspective perhaps.

I"mcertainly not going to try to
rehash sonme of the things that have al ready been
said, and been said nore eloquently than what |'m
capabl e of doi ng.

So, rather than even tal k about those
things that | had considered tal king about, 1"l
focus on a few different matters. | am genera
counsel for QWS

MS. SILVEY: Another |awyer.

MR. MEANS: And by that, | nmean | am
the entire legal departnent. Unlike sone of our
cust onmers who have great resources of that
nature, involved in everything from contract
negotiations to marketing efforts to safety and
wor kers' conp, HR, everything, MSHA is a very
smal|l part of what | do. But it is part of what
| do, and |I've gained a little bit of know edge,
whi ch may be hel pful for you to hear from ny

per spective.
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One of my first opportunities, of
course, to deal with a citation that we get from
MSHA, and |'ve dealt with dozens, not thousands.
So, that is alittle different perspective than
sone of the other folks in the room too, |
guess.

But the first opportunity that soneone
at ny level has a chance to deal with this is
with the pre-litigation conference. | can tel
you fromny own experience, and | can even
provide letters if you like, district managers
are not routinely granting pre-litigation
conf er ences.

In sone districts? Yes, all the tine.
O her districts? Never. That is a tremendous
| oss of an opportunity to resolve differences
about allegations in these citations that we get
and our custoners get.

Qpportunity nunmber 2. M. Mttos, |'m
not trying to pick on you a little bit, but
conpliance office gives us our assessnents, our

notice of assessnents, and | thank you for
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answering, Ms. Silvey, that it just -- if you
resol ve sonething early on, you don't | ose your
30 percent --

MS. SILVEY: Right, yes.

MR. MEANS: That was one of the
guestions | had. But there have been a few cases
where really the only thing | had to argue about
was the anount of the assessnent. The anount of
t he assessnment in those few cases was based upon
t he nunber of prior violations.

My records were different from what
t he assessnent office said that we had. And what
are ny records? M records are actually your
records. On the MSHA website, there is the MSHA
data retrieval system which | | ook at everyday
for many different reasons.

Consi stently, | found early on that
t he nunber of final orders being counted toward
our assessnent was not the nunber that MRS
suggested it should be. So, | checked with your
staff, M. Jones, with the Solicitor's Ofice to

chal | enge these things, and they couldn't give ne
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any answers as to why these are different.

Utimately, the nost credi bl e answer
| was ever given is that there is a different
dat abase. Two sets of books, if you will.

W' ve got the MDRS, which is available
and accessible to the public, which I can | ook
at, but then the litigators | ook at something
call ed the MSHA standardi zed i nformati on system
the MSIS. Two different sets of books.

No one yet has been able to tell ne
how | can access MSIS. | can | ook at MDRS any
time | want. The problemwith that is if | have
to challenge a citation solely based upon the
anount of the assessnent, | can't | ook at perhaps
what is the nore accurate. Maybe MSI S?

| can only | ook at the MDRS, and |
don't know whether | should challenge it or not
challenge it. And I'mnot going to know until
after | have challenged it, and have |ost ny
extra 20 percent discount.

So, this is a serious problemin ny

mnd, interns of the |loss of an opportunity to
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deal with sone of the inefficiencies in the
system wi t hout going to sonme of the serious
changes that ny coll eagues behind ne here have
al ready nore el oquently spoken to.

So, with those comments, | will | eave
you and | et soneone el se conme up here and
hopeful | y say sonet hing el se el oquently.

M5. SILVEY: Well, | have a couple of
conment s.

MR. MATTOS: You know I want to defend
nysel f.

MR. MEANS: Go ahead. | woul d hope
So.

M5. SILVEY: The first coment | want
to say though -- | want to ask you a question
You said you're the | argest independent
contractor for underground.

MR, MEANS: Yes.

MS. SILVEY: Do you provide services
to the mnes, or do you provide - are you a
contract services production, or just services
i ke we think of as services?

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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MR. MEANS: | amso glad you asked
t hat question. The Assistant Secretary tal ked
about the nechani zed systens for shoveling the
coal belts. That's the Belt Badger. That's
ours. We invented it.

MS. SILVEY: (kay.

MR. MEANS: There was comments earlier
about punpabl e cri bs.

MS. SILVEY: Yes.

MR. MEANS: We do that.

MS. SILVEY: You provide the punpabl e

cribs.

MR. MEANS: Yes.

MS. SILVEY: (kay.

MR. MEANS: We are the distribution
for the material. W are the provider of the
manpower .

M5. SILVEY: (kay, that's what |'m
getting to.

MR. MEANS:. There was nention earlier
about state of the art techniques for rock

dusting. W have the exclusive distributorship

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

175

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

for probably the best product on the market in
t hat regard.

MS. SILVEY: And when you -- and so
what you're telling me is that you provide that

product, but you go into the mnes and you do it

t 00?

MR. MEANS: Yes.

M5. SILVEY: Ckay, | got it. That's
good enough. That's all | wanted to ask. |

appreci ate your comrents on the pre-litigation
conference. (Obviously, other people have talked
about that, and we do take that seriously. W
get it. | think that is a real opportunity to
resolve differences early, and that results in
the best for all of us. And we do appreciate
that you |l ook at the data retrieval system
everyday.

| think obviously that takes sone
time, but | think it is good to do that for
operators and | abor, everybody to | ook at the
data retrieval system

| guess with respect to your comrent
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on a different database, that's a good segue now
to M. Mattos.

MR. MATTOS: Yes. This issue comes up
every now and then, and usually the first m stake
that people do is they call the Solicitor's
Ofice to find out what's going on. They're not
going to be able to answer that question.

They're | awers. They don't know anyt hi ng about
the data system |'mjust kidding around here.

M5. SILVEY: W got a lot of |awers
here, | think. But I'mnot going to ask themto
i dentify thensel ves because sonme of them probably
won't, except for Henry.

MR. MATTOS: The data retrieval system
that's on our website is a subset of our
production system It is not two sets of books.
It's a subset of what is -- what our attorney
friends call our standardized i nformation system

The i ssue here, and the one that
you're having, is you are counting the nunber of
viol ations that have been cited and are on the

website. The website doesn't have the final
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order date, and that's the date that's used to
determ ne the history of previous violations as
a nunber of final orders of the Comm ssion wthin
the 15 nonths of the occurrence date of the
vi ol ati on bei ng assessed.
So, that's where -- you can't get
there fromthe data retrieval system |It's a
limtation of the data retrieval system
MR. MEANS: However, the data
retrieval system does have a colum which is
| abel ed as final order date. So, if it is not
accurate, it is both inaccurate and m sl eadi ng.
MR, MATTOS: Well, did | say it didn't
have the final order date? It doesn't have al
of the final order dates. There's a lag tine
bet ween when the data that's in the production

systemgets out to the data retrieval system and

the final order dates, particularly for contested
cases.

It's based upon the Commi ssion
decisions that -- the decisions we get fromthem

and until we record those decisions, there is no
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final order date. There will be a final order
date, but the final order date coul d' ve occurred
a nonth ago, or at some other tine.

So, it's a lag tine between the two
systens, but one is a subset of the other.
Anyway, | --

MR. MEANS:. | appreciate that. One of
the litigators in the Solicitor's Ofice brought
to my attention the MSIS, ultimately after |'ve
asked half a dozen or nore of them and none
woul d either tell me or didn't know.

They provi ded sone final order dates,
t hat even upon | ooking further into the
information that | was able to get, still the
dates did not match. Those dates, because of
that 15-nonth wi ndow prior to the occurrence date
of the subject citation, a difference of a few
days can nmake a difference in a penalty.

Probably a small difference. Maybe a big
difference. But it still makes a difference and
the frustration that | have is that there's

sinply not information readily available to ne as
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a respondent in those cases upon which I can make
a deci sion whether to contest or not contest, and
now with this proposal choosing whether to
contest or not contest can nake a big econonic

di fference.

So, those are sonme of ny concerns. I
certainly hope that those concerns are addressed
t hor oughly when the final version of this cones
out, if indeed it doesn't die a righteous death.

And al so that the transparency of the
i nformation systens can be inproved. W're
tal ki ng here about transparency in the process,
and |"mnot really seeing that very well right
now. Maybe there's a nechanismto acconplish
that. | hope that there is, and | hope that
that's one of the goals for MSHA to build upon
t hat .

MR. MATTOS: Thank you.

MS. SILVEY: Thank you. Qur next
commenter is Mark Ellis with the | MA-NA, and
he'll tell you what that is. He is acconpani ed

by M. Andy O Brien. | thought they were
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speaki ng separately.

MR ELLIS: It's a two-for-one deal.

MS. SILVEY: (kay.

MR. ELLIS: Good afternoon. |'m Mark
Ellis, and | am President of the | ndustri al
M neral s Association North Anerica, or | MA-NA
| MA-NA i s a Washi ngton D. C -based trade
associ ation, created to advance the interest of
North Anerican conpanies that mne and/or process
m neral s used throughout the manufacturing and
agricul tural industries.

In addition, |IMA-NA represents
associ ate nenber conpani es that provide equi pnent
and services to the industrial mnerals industry.
| MA- NA' s producer nenbership is conprised of
conpani es that are leaders in the ball clay,
barite, bentonite, borate, cal ci um carbonat e,
diatomte, feldspar, industrial sand, kaolin,
magnesi um m ca, soda ash/trona, talc,
wol | astonite and ot her industrial mneral
i ndustri es.

As such, the nonnetal mnes cited in
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the United States are subject to MSHA
jurisdiction, and the requirenents of 30 CFR Part
100, MSHA' s civil penalties regulations.

| MA- NA appreciates the opportunity to
put these conments before MSHA for consideration

| MA- NA supports MSHA's stated intent
in the proposed rule to sinplify the criteria for
assessing civil penalties, which will pronote
consi stency, objectivity, efficiency in the
proposed assessnment of civil penalties and
facilitate the resolution enforcenent issues.

The presence of a fair and effective
program for the assessnment and resol ution of
civil penalties is an inportant tool for MSHA to
ensure conpliance with the Federal M ne Safety
and Health Act of 1977, and its associ at ed
regul ati ons.

Nevert hel ess, the proposed rule's
attenpt to change the scope of authority of the
Federal M ne Safety and Health Revi ew Conm ssion
fromde novo review to a dimnished and

restricted role exceeds the legal authority
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granted to MSHA by the M ne Act, and subverts

Congress' intent when enacting the Mne Act.

Mor eover, the proposed rul es requested

sinplification of the gravity and negli gence of
al | eged viol ati ons when conbined with the
proposed changes to the Revi ew Conmi ssion's
authority transgresses all reasonabl e bounds of a
m ne operator's constitutionally protected due
process rights, making the Commission's role to
deci de cases as an inpartial adjudicator of
al l eged violations of the Mne Act largely
i1 lusory.

| MA-NA'"s principal witness today is
Andy O Brien. He's the chair of our safety and
health commttee, and with that segue, | wl]l
turn things over to Andy.

MR. O BRIEN. Thanks very nuch, Mark
Andy OBrien. That's AAN-D Y O apostrophe-B-R-1 -
E-N. Patricia and Panel Menbers, | understand
you' re | ooking for specifics and we intend to
provi de those specifics in our post hearing

briefs, but wanted to show up today to present
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sonme verbal testinony as well.

My nane is Andy OBrien. |'mVice
Presi dent of Safety and Health for Uninmn
Corporation. |I'mpleased to testify before you
this nmorning on behalf of the I MA-NA, concerning
MSHA' s proposed rule regarding criteria and
procedures for assessnent of civil penalties.

As Mark just noted, IMA-NA and its
menber conpani es strongly oppose provisions in
MSHA' s proposed rul e that woul d subvert the
statutory role for de novo revi ew accorded by
Congress to the Mne Safety and Health Revi ew
Conmi ssion in the Mne Act.

First, let me provide sone background
on nyself and Unimn. |'ma certified industri al
hygi eni st and certified safety professional with
a master of science degree in industry hygi ene
and a bachel or of science degree in safety
engi neeri ng.

l|"mcurrently the vice president of
Safety and Health for Unimn Corporation, and

founded in 1970, Unimn has growmn froma small,
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| ocal sand m ning conpany to becone a | eadi ng
producer of non-netallic industrial mnerals in
t he worl dwi de Si bel co G oup.

W are the | argest producer of
i ndustrial sand in each the United States, Canada
and Mexico and along with our affiliates in other
countries, we are the |argest producer in the
wor | d.

| am responsible for the safety and
health of Unimn's enpl oyees throughout North
America with a current census of approximtely
2,400 individuals. As Mark al so noted, | am
chairman of I MA-NA' s safety and health conm ttee.

Through its proposed rule, MSHA woul d
reduce the range of possible violations, thus
shrinking a mne operator's ability to chall enge
t he agency's actions while at the sanme tine
greatly limting the Comrmission's authority to
revi ew t he agency's enforcenment action.

The careful bal ance of the
adm ni strative enforcenent process crafted by the

M ne Act would tilt unconstitutionally in favor
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of unchecked agency power to cite, assess and
enforce civil penalties with little recourse for
the affected parties.

Such a change woul d tread on nine
operators constitutionally protected due process
rights, and alnost certainly lead to protracted
federal litigation.

The civil penalty enforcenent process
woul d t hus become anything but sinplified as m ne
operat ors woul d have no choi ce but to appeal
t housands of constitutionally inadequate
Commi ssi on deci sions through the federal court
system

I'"d like to offer a relevant quote
that we regard as insightful. "Congress created
the Conmi ssion to serve as a conpletely
i ndependent adj udi catory authority, which would
review orders, citations and penalties in which
by providing adm nistrative adjudi cation of
di sput ed cases under the M ne Act woul d preserve
due process and instill much nore confidence in

t he program ™"
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The aut hor of that quote is M.
Christian Schumann, who currently is the counse
for appellate litigation in the Ofice of the
Solicitor's Division of Mne, Safety and Heal t h.
He further has opined, "The Comm ssion, like a
court, plays a role in ensuring that the
governnent acts within the paraneters of the | aw
and that private parties receive due process of
|l aw, which is critically inportant to the
adm ni stration justice, and at the sane tine
limted in scope.”

W agree with M. Schumann. By the
way, these quoted observations can be found in a
West Virginia University law review article that
| MA-NA cites in our witten coments.

MSHA' s proposed rul e regarding the
Conmmi ssion's authority to assess penalties under
the Mne Act has two alternatives, and a third,

whi ch woul d make no change to existing

regul ati ons, but would | eave open the possibility

t hat MSHA woul d pursue its agenda on an informal

or case-by-case basis.
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Under the first alternative, sections
100.1 and 100.2 would be revised such that, "If
the Secretary neets his burden to prove the
penalty related facts all eged, Part 100 woul d
require the ALJ to assess LSHA's proposed

penal ty."

Li kewi se, alternative 2 would give the

Conmmi ssion sone ability to nodify MSHA' s
mandat ory penalties, but only under hei ghtened
requi renents, which the proposed rule clains are
akin to the federal sentencing guidelines, at
| east before those guidelines were found to be
unconstitutional by the Suprene Court.

MSHA' s proposed hei ght ened
requi renents include, one, mandating that ALJs
i dentify aggravating or mtigating circunstances
of a kind or to a degree, not adequately taken
into consideration by the Secretary when
formul ati ng the penalty regul ati ons.

Two, consider MSHA s policy
statenments, which have not been subject to

rul emaki ng proceedings. Three, list a Statenent
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of Reasons for assessing the penalty, and four,
consider the statutory penalty criteria.

On top of the proposed changes to the
scope of the Conmission's authority to assess
penal ties, MSHA al so proposes "sinplifying," its
citation form and associ ated penalty cal cul ati ons
with respect to the possible ranges of
negli gence, gravity and other statutory criteria
identified by the Act.

This sinplification would, for
exanpl e, constrain MSHA i nspectors to only three
options for an operator's |level of culpability:
not negligent, negligent or reckless disregard.
As a result, MSHA inspectors will |ose the
di scretion to issue a citation for high
negligence, and will instead likely issue nore
citations under the categories of reckless
di sregard which in turn will result in higher
penal ty assessnent agai nst operators.

Simlarly, by deleting categories of
gravity, the default position for MSHA wi ||

likely fall on the serious side. For exanple,
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MSHA i nspectors will no | onger have no |ikelihood
or permanently disabling as options on the
citation form and thus MSHA i nspectors w ||
necessarily have to choose higher |evels of
| i kel'i hood, including occurrence of a fatality,
as designations on the citation.

Thus, mine operators will experience
nore significant and substantial citations and
hi gher penalties as a result. |MA-NA"s objection
to the proposed rule is as fundanental as it is
strai ght f orward.

Al ternative one takes the power to
I ssue penalties, which is exclusively vested by
the M ne Act and the Conmi ssion and puts it into
the hands of the Secretary. It effectively nakes
MSHA' s proposed penalties the mandatory penalties
so long as the ALJ upholds the underlying
violations and its associated factors, such as
negl i gence, size of operator and gravity anpong
ot hers.

At the sanmne tinme, MSHA' s

"sinplification," of the criteria formand the
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re-wei ghting of the penalty criteria will likely
force MSHA inspectors to choose higher |evels of
negli gence as well as other penalty factors when
i ssuing citations.

As a result, the proposed rule
strengt hens MSHA' s enforcenent power and
i ncreases the |ikely penalties against operators,
while at the sanme tinme greatly limting the
Commi ssion's ability to review MSHA' s enf or cenent
action and the Conm ssion's power to assess
alternative penalties as envisioned by the Mne
Act .

Li kewi se, alternative two mandat es
t hat the Conmi ssion apply MSHA policy statenent
anong other things, in addition -- sorry, in
addition to the statutory criteria provided in
t he Act.

It thus inposes nore stringent
requi renents on the Commr ssion than those inposed
by the Act, and demands that the Conmm ssion apply
additi onal factors beyond those identified in the

Act .
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The effect of the proposed rule's
adj ust nent of the Conmi ssion's authority conbi ned
with the sinplification of the penalty criteria
and the MSHA citation formwould al so deprive
m ne operators of their constitutionally
protected procedural due process rights.

The proposed rule, through either of
its suggested alternatives, transforns the
Commi ssi on's i ndependent authority to review
MSHA' s enforcenent actions into a rubber stanp,
giving MSHA carte blanche to wite its own
regul ati ons, propose its own penalties and
mandat e enforcenent w t hout any meani ngf ul
opportunity for the regulated to be heard.

Here the risk of error in providing
for virtually unchecked agency authority greatly
out wei ghs MSHA's interest in expedited and
predi ctabl e out cones.

The M ne Act is unanbi guous with
respect to the Conmi ssion's authority to inpose
penalties. It is the Comm ssion's, not MSHA's,

absol ute and exclusive right to assess penalties
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under the six statutory criteria in the Act.

MSHA cannot change the statutory
authority of an independent agency, whose sol e
purpose is to provide for an inparti al
adj udi catory review of MSHA s acti ons.

Therefore, MSHA -- sorry. | MA-NA
strongly urges MSHA to abandon the proposed rul e
inits current form The only avenue for
changi ng the authority of the Comm ssion runs
t hrough Congr ess.

| MA- NA appreciates the opportunity to
comment and testify on MSHA' s proposed rule on
the criteria and assessnent of civil penalties,
and it stands ready to assist in devel oping an
alternative rule in a constructive manner.

For exanple, | MA-NA supports the
proposed rul es procedure for a 20 percent
reduction in proposed MSHA penalties if such
penalties are paid within 30 days. | MA-NA
bel i eves such a procedure would result in |ess
litigation overall, and would have a net positive

effect for operators willing to accept MSHA
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citations but who may otherw se be financially
constrained fromdoing so if required to pay 100
percent of the penalty.

Li kewi se, | MA-NA supports the proposed
rule's reduction in weight of the persons
af fected and operator size criteria. That
concludes ny prepared remarks. Mark and | woul d
be pleased to entertain questions fromthe NMSHA
Heari ng Panel .

M5. SILVEY: Ckay, | don't have many.
But first of all, to Mark and Andy, and | think
|"ve said this to a couple or organi zati ons who
have cone and spoken, you have wor ked
cooperatively and col |l aboratively with MSHA on a
nunber of projects, and we do appreciate that.

Everything that the associations and
the operators do with their mners with respect
to inproving safety and health, we, MSHA, we are
very -- we note that and we appreciate it. As |
sai d, reductions could not be achi eved w t hout
t hat .

Saying that, the -- | take notice of
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bot h your conmments, Mark and Andy, of your
coments with respect to the Revi ew Commi ssi on;
the proposed rule's aspects for the Review
Conmi ssi on.

| have heard sonmething, and | don't
know exactly whether it was said, Mrk, or
whether it was just kind of inplicit in your
comments, but for those of you who have used the
termfear, | want you to know fromne you -- you
have nmade sone very instructive comments to us.
Sonme of you have used exanples, and that's very
usef ul .

The agency had no hi dden objecti ves,
and as | said -- oh, before | get to that, |
wote this domn. |1'mglad you found that. |
should have. | sort of what to slap nyself for
not. And | don't go and | ook at |aw review
articles, by the way. Let ne tell you | do not
sit and do that.

But with respect to your quoting M.
Schumann, | want you to know that | have great

respect and admiration for M. Schumann. So, |
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take his coments into consideration al so.

But with respect to negligence, | have
al ready said -- everybody -- and | think that's
sone el enent -- that presents sone el enment of the
fear. | have already said what the agency took
i nto consideration and assunptions the agency
took into consideration, and that | ow, npderate
and hi gh negligence would be rolled into
negl i gence.

Hi gh negligence, if the inspector even
t hought somet hi ng was hi gh, and that we woul d
train our inspectors so, and if the inspector's
t hought in his or her mind that ordinarily this
woul d be high negligence, it would not roll into
reckl ess di sregard.

Those are the assunptions that we
made, and those are the assunptions that we woul d
-- that we would train our inspectors on. That's
-- and if you have -- when you present anynore
comments and testinony to us, we clearly get it
on the Revi ew Comm ssi on.

I f you have anynore specifics with
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respect to the other part of the proposal, the

ot her elenents, like hypothetical; if you were to
bifurcate it because that's what it |ooks like
|"m hearing, a |lot of coments on what we did on
t he Review Conm ssion. That's one part of what
we proposed. Then a |lot of conments on what we
proposed with respect to the factors that the

i nspectors used to evaluation citations, and that
ot her part of it.

So, if you have any specific comments
on the facts that the inspectors use to evaluate
citations, then we woul d appreciate that -- make
your point. W got what you said on the 20
percent reduction, and we got what you said on
sonme of the other factors, the relative weight of
t he other factors.

I f you have any nore specifics, we
appreciate that. W do appreciate a couple of
t he specifics you have in here.

MR ELLIS: W struggled with howto
present that kind of specific information,

because clearly you' re dealing with a national
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dat abase, and we weren't prepared to tackle a
nati onal dat abase.

| think we saw sone interesting
presentations from M. Dupree on how this m ght
be done in the alternatives, and | think that we
could go out and find sel ected exanples to use
that way, which wouldn't be trying to tackle the
nati onal dat abase.

MS. SILVEY: Thank you.

MR. MATTOS: And the one that's out
there, the one that we have and we based this
data on is not too hard to use.

MR ELLIS: | nmean M. Dupree's
adm ni strative assistant.

MR. MATTOS: One observation. The 20
percent reduction, you did address that one. |
do want to point out our -- when we did our
projections on the penalty assessnents, we did
not assune that 20 percent reduction because this
wasn't asked in the proposed rule.

MS. SILVEY: Yes.

MR. MATTOS: But the current contest
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rate is 20 percent. A little under 20 percent.
That 20 -- that's the contest rate, 20 percent of
the violations. That 20 percent reduction would
apply to the 80 percent that -- assum ng
everything was equal. The 80 percent that are
not bei ng contested now woul d be receiving a 20
percent reduction in the proposed penalty under
the -- under that alternative that we've --

M5. SILVEY: And that would further
reduce the penalties that we had in the proposed
rul e.

MR, MATTOS: R ght. And Allen, |
don't know that your exanples included that 20
percent reduction or not. |If you didn't -- so,
there's anot her variable for your assistant to
put into the fornula.

MR ELLIS: Well it's a conplicated
i ssue that you're addressing here, and | think
t hat peopl e have approached it from many
different directions froma |egal perspective,
from a busi ness perspective.

At what point does it make sense to
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say, "The cost of contesting this is too nuch and
we're going to pay the penalty?" You know, that
20 percent reduction is an incentive to go in
that direction. People will contest citations
based on principle and history that goes al ong
with that.

So, | nmean everybody has different
notivations for how they approach this. Ckay,

t hank you.

MR JONES: 1'd like to note for the
record that the comments made by Chris Schumann
in the article were made in his individual
capacity as a lawer and citizen, and don't
represent the views of the Solicitor's Ofice or
the US Departnent of Labor.

MR ELLIS: W appreciate that, but
obvi ously we recogni ze that M. Schumann has a
not abl e career here at the Solicitor's Ofice.

MS. SILVEY: And as | said, | have
respect and admiration, however you say it, for
M. Schumann.

MR ELLIS: Ckay, thank you.
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M5. SILVEY: Next commenter will be
Hunter Prillaman with the National Line
Associ ati on.

MR. PRI LLAMAN:  Thank you. |'m Hunter
Prillaman. That's P-R-I-L-L-A-MA-N. |I'mhere
fromthe National Line Association. NLA's
Menbers have plants in 24 states, produce nost of
the United States's cal ci um oxi de and hydr oxi de,
ot herwi se known as |ine.

Because they operate both surface and
underground m nes, our nenbers have a strong
interest in this rulemaking. W' ve already
submtted comments on the proposal and |'m
supposed to go through those in detail, but I'd
| i ke to discuss just one specific point, and that
has to do with the negligence categories.

Just in general, recognize that trying
to sinplify the tool that your inspectors are
usi ng makes sense, but if you make the tool too
blunt, it doesn't achieve the goals that you want
to achieve, and | think that's what you've done

or what would be the result of what's been
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proposed on the negligence categories.

In particular, we don't think that it
serves the goal of focusing enforcenent efforts
on the nost serious and the nost negligence
vi ol ati ons.

In particular, we strongly oppose the
elimnation of the | ow negligence category.

Since MSHA rarely, if ever, finds the absence of
negl i gence entirely, the proposed change wl |l
result in previously | ow negligence citations
bei ng characterized as negligent lunped in with
vi ol ations that previously woul d' ve been
considered to denonstrate both noderate and hi gh
negligence. They'll all be in the sanme category.

The problemwith that, as | see it, is
that the increased i npact on the penalty
structure for the previously | ow negligence
citations is much nore than that of the
previ ously high negligence.

So, for exanple, violations which were
previously characterized as | ow negligence wl|l

now be given 15 points out of a possible 100, as
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opposed to 10 out of a possible 208. That can
have a really big inpact.

Just as an exanple, if you | ook at the
current rule; if you add 10 points to the m ni num
| evel of 30, that takes you fromthe m ninmum
penal ty of $112.00 to $249.00. Under the new
rule, if you went -- if -- adding 15 points takes
you from $112.00 to $1, 000. 00.

So, there seens to be a little bit of
a m sbal ance in the way that negligence category
has been done so that -- so that you're going to
have a substantial increase in penalty anpunts on
what were formerly | ow negligence categories and
actually really hardly any at all on what were
previ ously high negligence violations.

Qur nenbers at |east have a | ot of
citations that are in the | ow negligence
category. W see those in even really well-run
plants. So, anyway, this really is contrary to
what MSHA indicated it was trying to do with this
rule, which was to increase the inpact of

negl i gence.
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Really, the way it is currently
structured, it doesn't do that very nuch for the
hi gher | evels of negligence. It does it nuch
nore for the |Iower |evels of negligence, which |
don't quite understand.

So, just to summarize fromny text, to
treat the mnor infractions the sane as those
i nvol ving nore serious negligence is unfair, and
does not constitute treating increased negligence
as a serious matter.

In this case, the proposal makes the
penalty instrunent too blunt to serve its
purpose. That's just one exanple, and | think I
agree with a lot of the comments ot hers have
made, and | think there are a few ot her places
too where the -- where the tool has been
sinplified too nuch. That's what this exanple is
supposed to show.

M5. SILVEY: | really don't have any
comments to ask you. You said -- so, is it your
anal ysis that -- on your conment on negligence

you clearly understood that our proposal woul d
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roll low, noderate and high into one category,
negl i gent .

| appreciate that you didn't say high
negli gence would roll into reckl ess disregard.
But | would |like to ask you in ternms of your
anal ysis of the citations that nost of your
menber conpanies get, is it your understanding
that a greater mgjority fall into the | ow
negl i gence than the high negligence?

MR PRI LLAMAN: | think so.

MS. SILVEY: But you don't know? You
have --

MR. PRI LLAMAN: | know that they get
pl enty of |ow negligence citations because a | ot
of the housekeeping or electrical knockouts and
things like that tend to be assessed at | ow
negl i gence.

So, under this proposal, every single
one of those will now have a substantially higher
negligence multiplier than it did before. |
think that it really makes the process nore

adversarial at sort of the |ow end of negligence
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than it needs to be.

So, that's -- that's the probl emthat
| wanted to highlight.

MS. SILVEY: (kay, thank you.

MR, PEARSON. Thank you.

M5. SILVEY: Next we have Linda
Rai sovi ch-Parsons with the United M ne Wrkers of
Anerica, and Dennis ODell with the United M ne
Wor kers.

MS. RAI SOVI CH PARSONS: CGood
afternoon. My nane is Linda Raisovich-Parsons,
and it's spelled RA-1-S-O V-1-CH hyphen P-A-R-
SONS | amthe Deputy Admnistrator for the
MM' s Departnent of COccupational Health and
Saf ety.

| will send you a copy of -- like M.
Wat zman, |'ve scratched notes all over this.

"1l have to clean it up and get it to you.

Upon revi ew of the proposed rule, the
uni on agrees that changes to reduce the nunber of
deci sions an inspector nust make in witing

citations and orders is needed. The |i st
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judgnment falls on the inspector's part, wll
stream i ne the process and provide fewer issues
to argue about in court.

When issuing citations or orders,

i nspectors are required to evaluate safety and
heal th conditions, and to nake deci si ons about
five of the six statutory criteria.

The union agrees that sinplifying the
criteria would increase subjectivity and clarity
in the citation and order process. W also agree
with the agency that the changes proposed shoul d
result in fewer areas of disagreenent and earlier
resol uti on of enforcenent issues.

However, there are sonme areas of
concern to us, with which we disagree in the
proposed rule, and | will sunmarize those as
fol | ows.

Nunber 1: The proposed rule offers two
alternative proposals to the scope 100.1 and
100. 2 applicability sections of the rule. One
option recomrends that the Conm ssion apply the

penalty formul a when assessing civil penalties
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according to the six statutory criteria.

The uni on does not support this
proposal because it would unjustly restrict the
Commission's flexibility to depart fromthe
penalty formula if circunstances warrant.

The Comm ssion nust have the
flexibility to weight the evidence presented to
it, and change a penalty when it finds mtigating
or aggregating circunstances that woul d warrant
such changes.

To review -- to require the Conm ssion
to apply MSHA's fornmul a woul d be
count er producti ve and unnecessarily restrictive
to the highest judicial body in the industry. W
bel i eve that MSHA has overstepped their authority
in this area, and there should be no change to
this rule.

Nunber 2: In Section 100.3(b), MSHA
proposes to reduce the penalty points for
operators and contractor size. Under the
proposed rul e, the maxi mum nunber of penalty

poi nts woul d decrease from15 to 4 for mne size,
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from10 to 4 for the size of the controlling
entity, and from25 to 8 for the size of the
i ndependent contractor.

MSHA poi nts out that the proposed
change wi || decrease the maxi num points for this
criterion but offers no real explanation other
than to propose a penalty in accordance with the
operator's incone and ability to pay.

Uni on woul d ask should a driver on the
hi ghway offer their tax returns as proof of their
i ncome to a state trooper when they're stopped
for speeding so they could be considered for a
smaller fine and ability to pay?

A hazardous condition in a |l arge m ne
Is just as hazardous in a small mne. Therefore,
the size of neither an operator nor their bills
to pay shoul d be given considerabl e regard.

The danger to the miners nust be first
and forenost consideration in any situation.

Di scounts because of a mne size will not provide
an effective deterrent.

The size of a particular mne is not
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necessarily indicative of the overall size or
financial resources of the operator. Small mnes
are very often subsidiaries or contract
operations of |arger enpl oyers.

Nunber 3: The union takes issue with
the elimnation of the permanently disabling
subcat egory for gravity severity criteria under
100. 3(e). The proposed rul e | eaves the other
three categories of, one, no | ost work days, two,
| ost work days or restricted duty, or three,
fatal, elimnating the permanently disabling
choi ce.

It has been our experience that in
sone accidents, mners are injured but the
severity of their injury is not imedi ately
obvious. An injured mner is determned to be
di sabled later after the date of the injury.

MSHA i nspectors have nodified
citations to reflect the permanent disabling
choi ce when this occurs. The MSHA i nspector has
no way of determ ning how severe or noderate an

injury would be at the time of the accident.
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Only a physician can make such a determ nati on,
and sonetines they too cannot make that judgnment
until the person is on the nend.

Therefore, the option for the
i nspector to nodify a citation to reflect the
extent of a mner's injury as permanently
di sabling nust be retained. The citation can
beconme a piece of evidence for the disabled mner
and this subcategory nmust not be changed.

Nunber 4: Lastly, we do not agree
with the proposal to provide up to 30 percent
overall good faith reduction in penalties to
operators who pronptly abate cited conditions and
who pronptly pay the penalties wthout contest.

This proposal flies in the face of
t hose changes made to the M ne Act in 2006, which
mandat ed penalty increases as an incentive for
m ne operators to prevent and correct violations.

MSHA revised Part 100 at that tine to
reflect these nandated changes. The result was a
steady increase in the amobunt of penalties, and a

record nunber of challenges to citations. So
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much so that the cases before the Conmm ssion
became overwhel m ng.

Penalty paynment is also delayed with
t hese chall enges. So, the conpanies use this
tactic by chall enging everything to del ay
paynment. The mining industry has had nore than
40 years to acclimate itself to the federal
regul ati ons and take the necessary actions to
conply with the |aw.

There shoul d be no additional
reducti ons above the current 10 percent for good
faith.

In closing, I'd like to point out that
whil e we di scussed the best penalty system today,
there are those in the industry who continue to
thunb their nose at the governnent by refusing to
pay their penalties at all.

In Novenmber, the NPR -- was it
Nati onal Public Radio? D d an eye-opening series
on delinquent mnes that refused to pay
penalties. Not paying fines sinply perpetuates

t he whol e system of | awl essness.
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If a mne operator is not nade to pay
their fines, what incentive do they have to
provi de a safe work place? They can cut as many
corners as possible to mne as cheaply as
possible. Until regulations as enacted to enable
serious consequences to those who refuse to pay
penal ti es, these changes to the rules are
nmeani ngl ess to those | awl ess individual s.

The NPR series highlighted sone of
t hose nost egregi ous cases, including that of
billionaire JimJustice. As of March 31 of this
year, the mning conpanies he owned owed nearly
$2 mllion in delinquent penalties. Al the
while, his mnes have injury rates tw ce the
nati onal average.

M. Justice saw fit to contribute over
$65 mllion to charitable causes, while failing
to pay the $2 million in mne safety violations,
sonme goi ng back as far as seven years.

Where is the justice in this
situation? Wat incentive does this operator

have to conply when he can get by with not paying
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penal ties for violations?
Justice in Anerica. Let ne refuse to
pay my income tax for a year or two, and | am

certain |I'd be penalized severely and nmaybe see

jail tinme.

Until these serious conseguences enact
for -- such behavior will not be changed. This
will not change. | mght note that we can see

t he advant age.

| was at a mne a couple weeks ago,
and | was surprised at sone of your inspectors
and how young they | ook now. | know you've had a
huge turnover in the nunber of inspectors. And
to streanline the choices they had to make and
make that easier for themto decide; if they've
got all these choices to nake, there's a | ot nore
things to argue about in court. If it is
sinplified for them it would be easier for a new
generation of inspectors conming up to learn the
system and to use a nodified version of what
we' ve had.

Wth that, do you want to say
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sonet hi ng, Denni s?

MR O DELL: GCood afternoon. W
appreci ate the opportunity to speak today at this
hearing. M nanme is Dennis ODell, DEENNI1-S O
apostrophe D-E-L-L. | amcurrently the
Adm ni strator of COccupational Health and Safety
for the United M neworkers of Anerica.

W' ve already prepared witten
comments and submitted those. Sonme of those may
change after the hearing today, which we wll
reflect -- we'll nake those changes based on sone

of the information that was presented before you

t oday.

"' m here kind of as just a practi cal
guy. | wanted to speak from experience. For
t hose of you that don't know, | worked as an

underground coal mner for 20 years.

Twenty years of ny life | spent doing
everything and anything in a coal mne that could
possi bly be done, and a lot of that tine | spent
traveling with the inspectors.

| was chairman of ny safety conmttee
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when | worked at the mne. | had the opportunity
to spend nunerous, numerous hours, years wth
i nspectors and the safety director.

|"ve heard an awful | ot of fol ks speak
today. A lot of smart folks. |'mnot sure how
much experience they actually have as far as
hands- on experience of traveling with an
I nspector when he's in a mne, or com ng outside
when he's witing citations, and sitting in the
office wwth the safety director and the
i nspector, and the union representative or the
representative of the mners, whichever nmay be
t he case, and tal ki ng about what they saw during
the day as the citation was being witten, and
having a little pre-conference, so to speak, as
to what boxes he's actually going to mark at that
poi nt .

That happens. | nmean the reality of
it is before it even starts, there's a pre-
conference that occurs -- well, first and
forenost at the site where the citation took

pl ace, and then anot her discussion outside on the
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office, and then of course there could be a
conference with the district nanagers if they
al l ow that to happen.

| don't know if you guys took into
consideration actually talking to the inspectors.
| would think it would make a | ot of sense to
actually talk to the inspectors who are out there
beati ng the pavenent everyday as to will this
actually sinplify the process for then?

| believe that the system does need
fixed. | believe that the nore sinplified it is,
the better it is. | do believe that sone of the
changes you proposed we support because there is
| ess things to be argunentative about, but I
really do believe that it is inportant that you
talk to the inspectors and get their feedback on
this before noving forward.

| was going to say sonething earlier
about the proposal as far as what -- on the
Comm ssion, but | think everybody in the room
knows that is sonmething that just needs to go

away.
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| think that's sonething that shoul d
di sappear fromthe whol e proposal and needs to be
| eft al one. The system needs to be working as it
is currently.

| always tell our guys, and we do
training at the acadeny; we have representative
mners that travel with our representative mners
with the inspectors, and always tell our guys,
"Look." We try to educate our guys on what a
hazar dous condition is, and so on and so forth."

| tell our guys the best day is a day
t hat nobody gets hurt. There's no accidents. No
injuries and no citations witten to be honest
with you.

W pride ourselves on having m nes
that we can keep the citations down at a m ni mum
| know that is inpossible to do because of the
changi ng conditions at the mnes all the tineg,
but we have sone reputabl e operators that we work
with on a daily basis, and they're out there
goi ng above and beyond in trying to nake the

m nes safe. W appreciate that.
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We're all in this together at the end
of the day. W want to nmake the m nes safe, and
we want to nake it so that the m ners can go hone
at the end of the day and be with their |oved
ones.

Moving forward on this, the only thing
| really wanted to say outside of what you
al ready have on our comments and what Linda has
said is go talk to the inspectors. | nean find
out, seriously find out fromthem-- we do have
t hi s younger generation of inspectors that are
com ng up.

| think that if you do sinplify it, |
think it needs -- sone of the things you did are
good, but | think it needs tweaked. W addressed
that in our comrents that we've already
submtted. Like |I said, we're going to follow up
wi th sone ot her things.

That's all actually that | wanted to
say. | appreciate the work that you guys do, and
hopeful |y noving forward we can nmake this work

where it is beneficial to the mners, nunber
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one, and that it works for the operator as well
because like | said, we're in this together.
Thank you.

MS. SILVEY: Thank you. W appreciate
what you do too. One of the things -- and in
response, we did talk to sonme inspectors, and we
probably should talk to nore of them and we wll
do that.

MR. O DELL: One of the things I'd
like to say, Pat, and |"'msorry | don't nean to
interrupt. But operators were a little concerned
about sone of the inspectors bunmping up to the
next level, and in sone cases |'m sure that's
goi ng to have credi bl e cause.

There's a | earning process that
everybody is going through right now, and it is
obvi ous that anmong MSHA districts, you have
different levels of enforcenent. | nmean | see it
everyday because we represent coal mners across
the United States and Canada.

| see sonme MSHA districts that are

heavi er on enforcenent than ot hers NMSHA

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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that wite nore on the conservative side.

enforcenent across the Board because we've
said that's all we ask fromyou guys is to
enforce the law the way it is, and not to
heavy handed on anybody nore so than -- |
smal | operator has to be enforced in its
operation just |ike the |arge operator.

MS. SILVEY: Yes.

di sconnect at the district |evel where you

how the law is enforced throughout all the
di stricts.
M5. SILVEY: | would say to yo

Linda, that we agree. W saw that article

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
(202) 234-4433 Washington DC
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districts. | also see that there are inspectors

So,

there's kind of a -- | think the agency needs to

wrap around sonehow how t hey get that equal

al ways

be

nean a

MR ODELL: | think there is a

have

sonme stronger enforcenment. | think there's a
| earning curve. | don't know how you address
that. | know you have inspectors that go to the
acadeny. | have a |l ot of respect for those guys,

but | think there needs to be nore uniformty on

VEHA

u,

you - -
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| don't want to talk nmuch about it. W saw the
article that you referred to in your conments,
and we agree that operators should pay our
penal ti es.

They' ve incurred the penalties and
t hey should pay them and we've taken sone
actions in the | ast several years to try and get
del i nquent penalties within the bounds of the
M ne Act.

W have sone limtations with respect
to our authority, but we've taken some actions,
particularly at operators who have del i nquent
penal ties but then are operating active m nes.
There obviously we have -- there's an inpact on
the health and safety of the mners, and we try
to do things at those mnes, and we continue to
do so.

Another thing I'd add is that we al so
note, as |I've said to other people, your conments
on the Federal M ne Safety and Health Revi ew
Conmmi ssi on on the proposed alternatives. They

were alternatives in the proposal, and everybody

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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correctly noted that with respect to the Federal
M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Commi ssi on.

M5. RAI SOVI CH PARSONS: Unfortunately
that's not the magjority of the industry. That's
just a handful .

M5. SILVEY: That's right. | agree.

MR. MATTOS: W are collecting 90
percent of the penalties assessed. They didn't
choose to share that piece of information in the
NPR pi ece.

M5. SILVEY: That's why | said we were
not going to necessarily defend ourselves here,
but we do take note of what she said.

M5. RAI SOVI CH PARSONS: | f you don't
have the regul ati ons behind you to be able to
i npose severe penalties on these fol ks, then your
hands are tied al so.

MS. SILVEY: Thank you. At this
point, is there anybody el se in the audi ence who
w shes to make a comment, rebuttal coments?
Ckay, having seen no one who w shes to make any

addi tional comrents, at this tinme we will bring

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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to a close the Mne Safety and Health
Adm nistration's public hearing on the proposed
rule on the assessnment of civil penalties.

| want to say again that we appreciate
everybody' s attendance here today, and
participation in this rulemaking. | sincerely
mean that. W believe only through your
partici pation and getting good and specific
comments can we nove to a final rule that is a
rul e that we believe pronotes the health and
safety of the mners, but does so in a manner
that is responsive to the concerns of the mning
publi c.

Wth that, | bear in mnd that we had
this public hearing, and we will have the hearing
i n Denver on Tuesday. As | stated to you
earlier, we will have an additional two hearings,
and we will notify you about those in the Federal
Regi ster, and probably for sone of you, if
possi bl e, we can call you.

At this point, thank you so nuch and

we bring to a close this hearing.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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(Wher eupon, the above-entitled natter

was adjourned at 1:30 p.m)

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
Washington DC

www.nealrgross.com
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TESTIMONY OF ADELE L. ABRAMS, ESQ., CMSP
ON BEHALF OF UNITED SAFETY ASSOCIATES
DECEMBER 4, 2014 PUBLIC HEARING
RIN 1219-AB72

My name is Adele Abrams, and I am pleased to present these comments on MSHA's
proposed rule to modify civil penalty criteria in 3¢ CFR Part 100 and to make other changes to
the system of jurisprudence established in the Mine Act. I am a Certified Mine Safety
Professional and attorney with the Law Office of Adele L. Abrams PC, and am testifying as
counsel to United Safety Associates (“USA™).

USA is a California based association providing education and training services to its
membership in the areas of injury and illness prevention, accident and injury avoidance, safety
and risk management procedures, and maintaining workplace safety. In addition, USA is active
in legislative affairs, representing membership and relaying relevant issues. First and foremost,

USA strives to protect miners in the workplace and assist membership is fostering safety cultures
and safe workplaces.

USA appreciates the spirit of the proposed Civil Penalty rule, however USA believes the
effects of the rule as proposed would be detrimental to mime operators without any
commensurate safety and health benefits. Specifically, USA objects to the proposed
modifications to both negligence and gravity, the increase weight of violation history (including
VPID and RPID), the proposed increase in minimum penalties for unwarrantable failures, and

MSHA’s attempt to govern and regulate the impartial third party decision-maker, the Federal
Mine Safety and Health Review Commission.

Additionally, USA requests further guidance from MSHA on the following questions, left
unanswered by MSHA in the proposed Civil Penalty rule:

» What effect will the new format of citation documentation have on the rate of
Significant and Substantia] issuances, and on the ability to achieve settlements in
contested cases that can be approved by the FMSHRC;

How will the new, and limited, negligence designations affect the issuance of
104(d) citations and orders, and the categorization of flagrant violations;

How will the reduced gravity options affect issuance of "imminent danger" orders
under Section 107(a) of the Mine Act;

How will MSHA s existing informal, pre-assessment, conferences be affected by
the 20% “good faith” penalty reduction for not contesting the “assessment or
violation;" and

Will requesting the informal, pre-assessment, conference remove an opetator
from eligibility for the proposed additional 20% “good faith” penalty reduction?

1




USA strongly opposes the realignment of the negligence designation from five (5)
categories to three (3). By removing the existing negligence designations of “Low Negligence”
and “High Negligence,” MSHA is proposing that mitigation is no longer a defense or taken into
consideration during penalty assessment. Currently, MSHA's citations allow for inspectors to
determine operator negligence based on the amount of mitigating circumstances surrounding
each issuance. Adopting the proposed Civil Penalty rule’s new negligence designation would not
only place a greater emphasis on negligence when determining the penalty assessment, but it
would also disregard mitigation and group a wide range of conditions under the umbrella of
“Negligent.” This could also result in exclusion of mitigation evidence at FMSHRC hearings,
which interferes with operators' due process rights.

MSHA’s intent to ignore relevant mitigating facts when determining penalty assessments
and negligence will lead to steep increases in penalties for mine operators and difficulty settling
formal and informal contests of citations after issuance. Given the proposed rule in its current
state, MSHA would no longer accept mitigation provided by operators as justification for penalty
reductions, and negligence modifications to citation documentation would be largely unavailable.
This is unacceptable and would adversely affect all members of the mining industry. USA group
strongly objects to this provision and the proposed Civil Penalty rule.

In our written comments, we include Appendix A, where a comparison of citation
penalties shows that $18,110 in penalties under the current criteria would rise to $177,000 under

the proposed criteria -- a 977% increase for a docket with only Section 104a, regularly assessed,
citations at a metal/nonmetal mine.

USA strongly opposes the realignment of the likelihood of injury designations proposed
in the Civil Penalty rule. As with the proposed modifications to the negligence category, MSHA
proposed to reduce the existing likelihood of injury designations from five (5) options to three
(3). However, by removing the “No Likelihood” and “Highly Likely” categories, MSHA is once
again proposing changes that would adversely affect operators.

It is well establish that Significant and Substantial citations carry greater effects in mine’s
history, can carry greater penalties, and are reportable to the SEC by publicly traded companies.
USA is concerned that the proposed changes will drastically in¢reases the number of Significant
and Substantial issuances, which would adversely affect all operators and could also result in
more operators being placed under a Pattern of Violations,

Furthermore, by removing the “Highly Likely” category, USA fears that MSHA will
issue §107(a) Imminent Danger Orders in conjunction with a hazard that inspectors may feel is
“Reasonably Likely” to occur. This would contradict existing Federal Mine Safety and Health
Review Commission case law and the Mine Act which defines Imminent Dangers Orders as
Tequiring more serious circumstances thean a Significant and Substantial violation. As proposed,
the §107(a) issuance and underlying § 104 issuance may mirror one another, thereby blurring that
delineation, thereby exposing operators to more liberal, and unjustified, use of Imminent Danger
Orders.




Morcover, by blurring the delineation between Significant and Substantial and §107(a)
issuances, including existing case law on what constitutes and Significant and Substantial
violation, years of controlling case law would need to be reevaluated and re-litigated. The
proposed changes would alter the meaning of existing case law and require clarification from the
courts. This is a serious consequence of the proposed rule and warrants critical scrutiny.

USA also strongly objects to the proposed Civil Penalty rule’s increased emphasis on
history points during penalty assessment. Under the proposed rule the overall weight of the
history of previous violations for a mine will increase in relation to each penalty assessment.
USA fears that this will adversely affect medium to large mine operators and result in significant
increases in penalties per issuance.

USA opposes the proposed increases in minimum penalties for unwarrantable failure
issuances. USA does not agree with MSHA that a 50% increases in penalties would foster further
compliance with subjected operators. This appears to be merely an attempt by MSHA to increase
penaities without justification. USA requests that if MSHA intends to maintain this provision,
additional evidence supporting the claim that the increase penalties would assist with miner
safety and health be provided.

The proposed Civil Penalty rule states that the additional 20% reduction would be
incentive for operators to promptly abate and pay alleged violations, however abatement is
already required when an alleged violation is issued and payment is due when the order becomes
final regardless of the additional 20% reduction. USA views this as a means to discourage formal
and informal contests of penalties and violations.

USA strongly opposes and is deeply troubled by the proposed Civil Penalty rule’s
attempt to govern the Federal Mine Safety and Health Review Commission. The Federal Mine
Safety and Health Review Commission was created to be independent of the Department of
Labor, in the 1977 Mine Act, specifically to remain an unbiased third-party decision maker for
disputes between operators and MSHA.

MSHA’s attempt restrict the authority of the Federal Mine Safety and Health Review
Commission, and the Administrative Law Judges, and bind them to the penalty assessments
determined by MSHA underscores the entire purpose of the independent agency. If MSHA is
permitted to govern this third-party decision maker, operators are effectively without unbiased
legal recourse until appeal to the United States Federal US Courts of Appeal, and even they may
only have authority to vacate, uphold, or remand, not to reconsider the penaities. USA requests
the commission and its judges retain de nove penalty authority, and maintains that MSHA lacks
authority to alter via regulation the statutory criteria in a way that would allow the agency to fine
operators out of business.

Thank you for your consideration.




APPENDIX A
UNITED SAFETY ASSOCIATES
COMMENTS ON MSHA’s PROPOSED RULE ON THE
CRITERIA AND PROCEDURES FOR ASSESSMENT OF CIVIL PENALTIES

This appendix contains examples of potential penalty increases for medium to large mines if the
proposed rule for criteria and procedures for assessment of civil penalties becomes final.

Under current §100.3 penalty assessment, the example docket’s penalties are broken down as

follows:

Mine

Controller | History | Repeat | Negligence | Likelihood | Severity | Number | Total | Penalty

Points | Points Points | Violation | Points Points Points | of
Points Persons
Affected

9 5 25 13 10 30 20 1 113 | $7,774.00
9 5 25 11 20 10 10 | 91 $1,337.00
9 5 25 0 20 10 5 1 75 $372.00
9 5 25 14 20 10 5 1 89 $1,140.00
9 5 25 15 10 10 20 1 95 $1,842.00
9 5 25 12 20 30 S 1 107 | $4,810.00
9 5 25 0 10 10 10 1 70 $249.00
9 5 25 0 10 10 5 1 65 $150.00
9 5 25 12 10 10 5 1 77 $436.00
TOTAL PENALTY $18,110.00

Under MSHA’s proposed rule for criteria and procedures for assessment of civil penalties, the

docket’s proposed penalties would be the following:
Mine Controller | History | Repeat | Negligence | Likelihood | Severity | Number | Total | Penalty
Points | Points Points | Violation | Points Points Points | of

Points Persons
Affected

2 2 16 7 15 14 10 1 67 $40,000.00
2 2 16 6 15 14 5 1 61 $10,000.00
2 2 16 0 15 14 5 1 55 $4,000.00
2 2 16 7 15 14 5 1 62 $15,000.00
2 2 16 8 15 14 10 1 68 $45,000.00
2 2 16 8 15 14 10 1 68 $45,000.00
2 2 16 0 15 14 5 1 55 $4.000.00
2 2 16 0 15 14 5 1 55 $4,000.00
2 2 16 6 15 14 5 1 61 $10,000.00
TOTAL PENALTY $177,000.00

*RESULTING IN ROUGHLY 977% INCREASE IN PENALTIES.




Testimony of William (Allen) McGilton
Assistant Corporate Safety Director
Murray Energy Corporation

Re: Proposed Rule on
Criteria and Procedures for Assessment of Civil Penalties

RIN 1219-AB72

December 4, 2014
Arlington, VA

My name is William (Allen) McGilton. I am the Assistant Corporate Safety
Director for Murray Energy Corporation, One of my responsibilities is to manage
the company’s assessments from the Mine Safety and Health Administration
(MSHA). I have been in this position for the last seven years. Murray Energy is
the largest privately owned coal company in the United States, producing
approximately 64 million tons of high quality bituminous coal each year. Murray
Energy and its subsidiaries employ approximately 7,400 hard-working Americans
and currently operate thirteen active coal mines, consisting of thirteen underground
longwall mining systems and forty-six continuous mining units in Ohio, Illinois,
Kentucky, Utah and West Virginia. Murray Energy provides high-paying, stable
employment in some of the most economically disadvantaged areas of the country
and is a low-cost producer of bituminous coal, helping to provide safe, reliable,
and affordable energy. As such, Murray Energy has a substantial interest in this
Proposed Rule.

Prior to joining Murray Energy, I worked 37 years with the U.S. Bureau of
Mines (USBM), the Mining Enforcement and Safety Administration (MESA), and
the Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA). I spent the last 24 years as a
Supervisory Coal Mine Safety and Health Inspector. During my career with the
government, I issued and evaluated thousands of citations and orders, reviewed
tens of thousands of citations and orders issued by inspectors under my
supervision, and conducted Health and Safety Conferences before there were
designated Conference Litigation Representatives. My performance was evaluated
as “Highly Effective” over twenty times, and “Outstanding/Exemplary” five times,
four while as a Supervisor. Additionally, I received the U.S. Department of
Labor’s “Distinguished Service Award” for exemplary work in 1999.




My primary responsibility for Murray Energy is to evaluate citations and
orders and advise operations personnel when citations and orders should be
contested and also of the grounds of those contests. Typically, we contest citations
and orders when one or more of the “Inspector’s Evaluations™ are exaggerated or
inaccurate, when there should have been no violation, or when MSHA has
proposed a special assessment. During my seven years with Murray Energy, 1
personally have been involved in contesting (and resolving the contests of) several
thousand citations and orders issued by many different inspectors, from many
different MSHA field offices, from several different MSHA districts. And in
resolving these contests, I have worked with numerous MSHA Inspectors,
Conference Litigation Representatives and Technical Advisors, numerous
attorneys from the Solicitor’s office, and numerous administrative law judges from
the Federal Mine Safety & Health Review Commission.

Overall, I believe my combined experience of forty-four years with MSHA
and Murray Energy has given me unique insight into the past and current
operations and practices of MSHA in regard to issuing citations and orders and
later resolving a variety of disputes as part of the formal contest process. Based on
this experience, I have the following comments to the Proposed Rule on the
Criteria and Procedures for Assessment of Civil Penalties.

L First, and contrary to the stated intended purpose, “The proposed
rule will not improve the civil penalty process and reduce the
number of citations and orders mine operators contest.”

Murray Energy does not contest citations and penalties to save money. It
contests citations and penalties to ensure accuracy and thus improved miner safety.
Contesting citations and proposed penalty assessments is not and never has been a
money-making or money-saving proposition. The time, effort and expense to
contest citations and proposed penalty assessments almost always exceed, or
greatly exceed, any potential reduction of the penalty.

Murray Energy has contested—and will continue to contest—citations,
orders and proposed penalty assessments when the underlying paper is speculative,
when the designations and narrative mischaractcrize, misstate, or overstate the
actual conditions, practices or hazards, or when the proposed penalties do not
reflect the gravity or conduct at hand, such as large “special assessments” for
moderate negligence 104(a) citations.




MSHA needs to understand that accuracy is most important to the mine
operators and should be to MSHA. Accurately written citations improve miner
safety and health and better deter unsafe conditions and practices. For instance,
when a citation is accurately written and issued, operators are more likely to learn
from any mistakes and to take action to prevent similar conduct or conditions in
the future. But when inspectors over-inflate various designations, or overstate,
misstate or guess about the conditions or conduct observed, operators are more
likely to become defensive and protective of their personnel and to contest the
citations and associated penalties in an attempt to have the conduct and conditions
accurately portrayed.

The Proposed Rule will not fix this problem, and small operators without the
legal resources will be forced into taking a 30% reduction, which will still result in
inflated penalties. As an example, one of our operations in southern Illinois was
cited for an S&S violation related to damaged roof bolts. It appeared that the top of
mobile equipment had inadvertently hit the bolt heads and damaged them. The
citation was issued as moderate negligence, and MSHA proposed a $9,800 special
assessment. OQur mine personnel were baffled at the S&S designation (and later the
special assessment). Everyone—including MSHA’s inspectors—knew the cited
area had massive, competent, and thick limestone in the immediate roof. Indeed,
the inspector’s own notes mentioned this. There were no cracks, slips, joints, or
other geologic anomalies present in or near the cited area. There also was no
material on the floor. But, the citation was designated as being S&S. During
settlement negotiations, and despite knowing these facts, MSHA refused to offer
any paper changes or to remove the special assessment. Instead, we were offered a
take-it-or-leave-it 20% discount. We left it and went to trial. Unsurprisingly, after
the testimony of the Mine Geologist and the issuing Inspector, the ALJ removed
the S&S designation and special assessment and imposed a $268 penalty. The
accurate result was reached, despite MSHA'’s attempts to avoid it.

As another example, a different inspector cited one of our mine operators for
dirty showers in surface facilities, claiming there was mold in the corners of the
shower area and in places on the floor. Unbelievably, the inspector designated the
citation as Reasonably Likely to result in Lost Workdays Injuries to 10 persons
because of “staph infections™ that could “lead to amputation of a finger or hand . . .
if not stopped in time.” MSHA proposed a whopping $15,570 regular assessment
for the citation, due almost entirely to the exaggerated gravity designations. During
settlement discussions, MSHA never offered to change any of the paper and only
offered a 10% reduction in the penalty. After trial, the ALJ unsurprisingly
concluded that the cited conditions were “Unlikely”, with “Lost Workdays or
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Restricted Duty” to 1 person and reduced the penalty to $500. Again, the accurate
result was reached, despite MSHA’s attempts to avoid it.

Importantly, these are not isolated instances. I routinely see exaggerated
citations that do not reflect the requirements or intent of the regulations or
MSHA’s own internal policies and procedures. Citations for a 1 inch by 1 inch
hole in a stopping or accumulations of coal 5 feet by 2 feet by 1 inch under a belt
are examples of the loss of objectivity and the lack of “common sense” when
applying 30 CFR. The results are inflated penalties that MSHA refuses to admit
were erroneous. And this means that mine operators often must either pay for
claimed misconduct, conditions or hazards that did not exist or pay even more to
contest the errors and obtain accurate and fair results from an ALJ. This is a
misallocation of resources and effort and will not be corrected by the Proposed
Rule.

II.  The Proposed Rule Fails to Address the Real Problem—a Lack of
Consistent and Uniform Enforcement—and Instead Sacrifices Accuracy
and Due Process for Hoped for Consistency and Objectivity.

MSHA repeatedly states in the Proposed Rule that the goals of the new Part
100 are to simplify the criteria and rules, to place an increased emphasis on more
serious hazards, to increase objectivity and clarity in the citation and order process,
and to improve consistency in the application of the criteria. Said another way,
MSHA wants to minimize areas of disagreement, speed up the process, and get
mine operators to accept proposed penalties and pay them quicker.

To get there, MSHA wants to dumb-down several of the “Inspector’s
Evaluations” to compensate for the lack of consistency that exists in the inspector’s
knowledge of the existing criteria regarding Gravity and Negligence. In my
opinion, MSHA wants to simplify the evaluation process so that it can increase
penalties and reduce the number of modifications in contest proceedings. MSHA
attempts to shift the blame to the industry for lodging too many contests and has
created a Proposed Rule that sacrifices accuracy and due process for a pipedream
of consistency and objectivity.

I believe the new proposed criteria will not lead to the hoped for consistency
or quick payments that MSHA wants. For instance, unless MSHA agrees that all
conduct previously categorized as High Negligence falls within the new
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“Negligent” category, I foresee many heated disputes over where that conduct falls
in the new criteria because no operator wants conduct to be described as Reckless
Disregard. In other words, High Negligence citations under the existing rules that
might have been resolved short of trial with operators accepting that designation
will now be more likely to go to trial because operators will be less willing to
accept the label of Reckless Disregard. In any event, if the Proposed Rule is not
abandoned or considerably restructured, MSHA should clarify this issue as part of
its Final Rule and agree that all High Negligence conduct will fall within the new
“Negligence” definition.

The proposed changes to the Negligence criteria also are troubling because
they run counter to statements by MSHA in prior rulemaking and, importantly, will
encourage /ess safe behavior by mine operators than under the existing rules.
Specifically, MSHA’s Final Rule, “Criteria and Procedures for Proposed
Assessment of Civil Penalties,” issued on May 21, 1982 created the five existing
categories of Negligence. In doing so, MSHA stated in the Preamble: “In
developing these categories, MSHA has responded to the concems of commenters
that further clanfication of the allocation of negligence points was necessary and
that due consideration be given to all factors bearing on the operator’s negligence.’
In other words, more specificity was needed so that these conduct-related
designations would be more accurate, which is what remains important to the
industry and general public today.

*

Of even more significance, MSHA also stated in the 1982 Preamble that:

MSHA has developed these categories of negligence, which include
mitigating circumstances, to allow the inspector the flexibility to
consider all of the facts and circumstances surrounding a violative
condition or practice. For example, an inspector may determine that
the negligence involved is low or moderate where there is a
reasonable likelihood of a reasonably serious injury occurring from
the condition or practice because the operator, although negligent, has
taken measurable steps to prevent the violation or protect miners from
exposure to the hazard. Mitigating circumstances may include, but are
not limited to, actions which an operator has taken to prevent, correct
or limit exposure to a violative condition or practice. An operator’s

action could be taken into consideration to the extent that it directly
relates to the specific violation cited.




In other words, MSHA consciously recognized that factoring in mitigating
circumstances would promote miner safety because mine operators would be
incentivized to “take measurable steps to prevent the violation or protect miners
from exposure to the hazard.” By removing all consideration of mitigating
circumstances from the Negligence criteria in the Proposed Rule, MSHA is
now undermining the “first priority’’ of the Mine Act: to protect “the health
and safety of its most precious resource—the miner.” Murray Energy strongly
encourages MSHA to abandon the Proposed Rule, or at least the proposed
Negligence criteria, because of the negative impact it will have on miner safety.
MSHA should continue to encourage mitigation to improve miner safety.

Additionally, I foresee many disputes over the new proposed Gravity
(Likelihood) critena. It appears that MSHA is attempting to abandon, or at least
significantly change, decades of legal precedent regarding the S&S analysis. In
particular, MSHA is proposing a definition of “Reasonably Likely” that is much
broader than the third prong of the Mathies test. Certainly, operators are going to
contest whether this new definition is consistent with the Mine Act and the prior
decisions.

And the Proposed Rule vaguely defines “Unlikely” as including “little or no
likelihood.” I envision that there will be disputes over what “little” means and a
tendency of MSHA inspectors to place what would have been Unlikely conditions
under today’s rules into the new Reasonably Likely category. This in turn will
result in more S&S designatioﬂs and thus more unwarrantable failures and more
POV violations. While this may improve MSHAs statistics, it will do very little, if
anything, for miner safety.

Finally, the new “Occurred” criterion could be read broadly to include a
large amount of conduct that, under the existing rules, would be Reasonably Likely
or Unlikely. For example, an operator’s one time “practice” of failing to realign a
belt could “cause the event” of coal accumulations that come into contact with
multiple belt rollers, which “could have resulted in an injury or illness,” or they
could not have. Certainly, operators will contest these types of over-reaching
designations.

Overall, if MSHA really wants to improve consistency in the application of
its crteria, reduce the number of contests of its citations and orders, and increase
the prompt payment of its assessed penalties, then MSHA should withdraw the
Proposed Rule, re-evaluate the training of its District Managers, Assistant District
Managers, Supervisory Coal Mine Inspectors, and Coal Mine Inspectors, and
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ensure that the existing criteria and rules are better understood and more
consistently applied by these individuals.

III. Third, MSHA Should Not Try to Bind the Commission to Part 100, but
Should Bind Its Own CLRs and Attorneys to Part 100 During Pre-
Hearing Settlement Negotiations.

It is true that the Commission and its ALJs often issue decisions and set
penalties that appear to me to be arbitrary. The Commission has no criteria or
guidance similar to Part 100 to assist its ALJs in setting penalty amounts. As a
result, we believe that ALJs are often left guessing as to how to turn the six
statutory criteria into an appropriate penalty amount.

We have raised these precise issues in a case currently before the
Commission involving special assessments, American Coal Co., Docket LAKE
2011-701. In that case, we have argued that the Commission and its ALJs should
be guided by—although not bound to——the regular assessment mechanism in Part
100 from which baseline penalties may be drawn and “substantial divergences”
explained.

Two ALJs have recently agreed with this approach. ALJ Zielinski stated
that, “absent some guideline, ... a judge has no quantitative reference point to aid
in specifying a penalty within the current statutory/regulatory range of $1.00 and
$70,000,” that the “Secretary’s regulations for determining a penalty amount by
regular assessment . . . take into consideration all of the statutory factors that the
Commission is obligated to consider,” and that the “product of that regular
assessment formula provides a useful reference point that would promote
consistency in the imposition of penalties by Commission judges.” American Coal
Co., 35 FMSHRC 1774, 1823 (June 13, 2013) (ALJ Zielinski) (emphasis added).
And ALJ McCarthy held that, “although the Commission is not bound by the
Secretary’s proposed penalty or the § 100.3 point scheme, 1 find that the
regulations at least provide a helpful guide for assessing an appropriate penalty
that can be applied consistently.” Magruder Limestone Company, Inc., 35
FMSHRC 1385, 1411-12 (May 21, 2013) (ALJ McCarthy) (emphasis added).

But unquestionably, the Mine Act expressly delegates to the Commission—
not to the Secretary—the authority to assess all civil penalties. As a result, if
MSHA attempts to bind the Commission to Part 100—thereby removing or at least
severely limiting the authority to assess penalties—MSHA will be violating the



Mine Act. This 1s why we have advocated that the Commission be guided by—but
not bound to—Part 100 and why MSHA should do the same.

Furthermore, the Commission is an adjudicative body that conducts
evidentiary hearings and ensures that mine operators are afforded due process (and
other constitutional protections). Removing or limiting the authority of the
Commission to assess penalties could in turn remove or limit the Commission’s
ability to evaluate or effectively resolve due process or constitutional issues.

Finally, Murray Energy was shocked that MSHA is seriously considering
binding the Commission to Part 100 when MSHA’s own attorneys and CLRs do not
Sfollow Part 100. Specifically, inspectors routinely issue citations with exaggerated
evaluations not based on any, or very little, evidence. When contested, CLRs or
MSHA'’s attorneys often will agree to modify the paper to accurately reflect what
should have been the correct evaluations at the time the citations were issued, but
at the same time only agree to reduce the penalties by a maximum of 30%. Almost
always, applying Part 100 to these paper changes would result in much greater
reductions, very often to 60% to 70%.

Based on my experience, I believe multiple districts have internal caps on
the penalty reductions (usually 30%) that can be given regardless of the paper
changes warranted by what is often undisputed evidence. This perverse system
encourages inspectors to issue inflated, exaggerated paper, after which MSHA can
agree to modify the paper to what it should have been in the first place but keep
much of the inflated penalty. This strikes me as a type of government-sponsored
Ponzi scheme. But sadly, in these situations, the industry is forced to choose
between accepting the right paper but with the wrong penalty or incurring the
significant expense and burden of contest proceedings and a hearing before an ALJ
to obtain the accurate paper and penalty.

Our government should not be acting this way. We strongly urge MSHA to
reconsider the Proposed Rule and withdraw it completely. Qur formal and detailed
comments will be filed timely.

Thank you. I am more than happy to take questions.




Jeff Kratz
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Good morning ladies and gentleman of the panel. Thank you for
Sy

hosting this hearing and for the opportunity to provide\Xcomments
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today. My name is Jeff Kratz/and | am representing the Institute of
Makers of Explosives or “IME”. IME is the safety and security institute
of the commercial explosive industry. Our member companies’

products are essential to mining operations. My comments address

two issues IME has with MSHA’s assessment of civil penalties proposal.
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Our first concern relates to MSHA's policy on the assignment of feves.

contractor ID numbers. For safety and other reasons, mining
companies are increasingly choosing independent contractors to
perform their onsite blasting operations. Therefore, IME members are
not only producing and transporting explosive materials, but they are
also engaged as independent blasting contractors at mine sites.
Currently, MSHA issues a unique ID number to each mine location, even

though one company may control multiple mines across the nation. In
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contrast, MSHA assigns only one ID number to independent blasting

contractors irrespective of how many mine sites they service across the

——— s

country. Among other things, ”P_atterns of violations” status and
penalties are based on size of the entity committing the violatioﬁ, the
company’s history of violations, and repeat violations associated with
an ID number. As a result, contract blasters are exposed to much

higher penalties than similarly situated mine operators.

For example, a blasting contractor doing work at two mines but
those contractors are employed by the same company would face
higher penalties and stiffer fines than a rhining company for the same
violation because the violations for a mining company will be treated

separately for each mine site, but the violations for the blasting

contractor will consolidated. MSHA'’s current policy prec
blasting contractors who operate at multiple sites to excessive points

during the penalty assessment phase, burdens them with larger




monetary fines, and leaves them no option but to contest

e penalties.

Our second concern relates to MHSA’s proposed reduction in
penalty categories. This proposed change could lead to more severe
penalties being issued, or result in less flexibility to negotiate penalty

settlements. Currently, MSHA recognizes five penalty categories --

» &

“none”, “low”, “moderate”, “high” and “reckless”. The proposal would

n n

reduce these categories to three -- “not negligence,” “negligence,” and

“reckless.” Other than the penalty category of “reckless”, it is i

that the proposed penalty category reduction will result in the

assighnment of a violation to a category higher of fines and harsher

penalties.

IME understands and supports safe working conditions for those
working in mining and drilling operations. Our members adhere to best

practices contained in IME’s “Safety Library Publications,” which exceed

federal safety requirements when producing, using, and transporting




explosive materials. We respect the important role MSHA plays in
protecting mine workers and the general public. ’Further, we
appreciate MSHA’s efforts towards improving nationwide consistency
and objectivity in enforcement operations' However, the proposed
penalty category consolidation will compound the consequences
already burdening our industry by the agency’s unfair and unjustified ID
number assignment policy for contractors. We request that ID
numbers for mining companies and blasting contractors be assigned on
a site-by-site basis and that no consolidation of penalty categories be

made at this time.
Thank you.

I'm happy to field any questions the panel may have.
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Thank you for this opportunity to present on our concerns with MSHAs proposed

revisions to the civil penalties rule,

The National Stone, Sand and Gravel Association (NSSGA) has helped lead the way to .
improve safety performance through a number of programs. In each of the past 13 years,
aggregates operators have reduced the industry’s injury rate from the year-earlier, now 2.11.
Also, NSSGA has worked diligently with MSHA to facilitate improvements in inspector

consistency and compliance with MSHA standards.
We are concerned with the changes to the treatment of Negligence and Gravity.

Given that the proposal includes no guidance on reconciling current categories of
classifying negligence with new categories, there is no way for an operator to understand how an
inspector would interpret conditions relative to the proposed categories. For instance, it is
unclear how citations that are currently marked as “high negligence” or “low negligence” would

be treated under the proposed rule.

And, the elimination of ‘high negligence” under the proposal would result in either: 1)
“unwarrantable failures” accompanied by findings of “negligent,” or 2) an increase in number of
“reckless disregard” findings to support “unwarrantable failures.” Both scenarios are
problematic. With respect to the first, an “unwarrantable failure” must be ‘more than ordinary
negligence’ and therefore not supported by a finding that an operator was “negligent.” If MSHA
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were able to support an “unwarrantable failure” by finding only that an operator was “negligent,
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it would result in a dilution of the meaning “unwarrantable failure,” and in turn increase in 104-d

citations.

Regarding the second possible consequence, if “negligent” is deemed insufficient for
supporting an “unwarrantable failure,” this would require use of “reckless disregard” to support a
104-d. An increase in “reckless disregard” findings would obviously result in increased
penalties, and most likely an increase in number of enforcement actions considered for a

“flagrant” violation.

Also, we urge MSHA to be cognizant of the fact that the classification of a citation as
“reckless disregard™ as opposed to “high negligence™ will expose operators to a major increase in
civil litigation because there are a number of states in which such a classification can trigger an

exemption in workers’ compensation coverage.

The proposed rule would eliminate the consideration of mitigating factors, something that

is critical to a full evaluation of operator culpability for alleged violations.

We strongly oppose these proposed changes on “negligence.”

Another major concern, regarding “gravity,” is the changes to the “likelihood” of
occurrence criteria. The proposed definitions would change this consideration to whether an
event - not an injury - has occurred. This will result in an increase in “Occurred” designations,

which will lead to increased penalties. So, the proposed definition would be based on the

inspector’s interpretation as to whether or not the event is one that “could have resulted in an
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injury or illness.” This would appear to run directly counter to the aim of improved objectivity
and consistency. Accordingly, the proposed definition would lower the burden for a “Significant
and Substantial” (“S&S”) designation from a condition with a reasonable probability of causing

an injury...to a condition with even a slim possibility for causing an injury.

The proposed definition of “reasonably likely™ also raises a point of uncertainty, namely
the relationship between it and “S&S” designations. The Secretary’s proposed definition of
“reasonably likely” is “Condition or practice is likely to cause an event that could result in an
injury or illness” (emphasis added). Violations are properly designated as “S&S” “if - based
upon the particular facts surrounding the violation - there exists a reasonable likelihood that the
hazard contributed to will result in an injury or illness of a reasonably serious nature.” The
Commission has emphasized that “it is the contribution of a violation to the cause and effect of a

hazard that must be significant and substantial.”

These proposed changes will lead to greater subjectivity, not less. Also, these changes
would make it more difficult for intelligent conferencing of citations. Further, there is no
explanation as to assumptions an inspector should make in evaluating levels of gravity. So, these
revisions will yield more disagreements over citations, and thus more contests. And these

changes risk radically altering three decades of case law. We strongly oppose these changes.

Authority of Federal Mine Safety & Health Review Commission Should Not Be Curbed

The rule attempts to dramatically curb the role of the Federal Mine Safety and Health

Review Commission; this is fundamentally wrong for a number of reasons. The proposed
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change is contrary to both the 1977 Mine Act, which called for third party review of contested
citations. Also, this proposal is contrary to Federal Mine Safety and Health Review Commission
precedent. We believe that no deference should be afforded to the Secretary’s proposed

penalties, and strongly oppose these changes.

Assessment Costs Should Not Go Up By Virtue of This Rule

MSHA claims that the proposed amendments would have resulted in $2.7 million Jess in
assessed penalties for citations issued in 2013 than was assessed under the current penalty
regulations. NSSGA performed calculations of cost impacts for small, medium and large
operations — with both current and proposed regulations definitions and factors in place - and
found penalty assessment cost increases ranging between 50 and 80 percent. These costs will be
borne by customers working to construct housing, office buildings, schools, hospitals and
highways needed by our communities and for economic recovery. These cost increases fly in in

the face of MSHA's assertion that operators will see a reduced level of penalty assessments.

MSHA Should Use This Opportunity To Grant Enforcement Credit to Excellent Operators

Finally, we believe that this proposal fails to take tfle opportunity to develop an approach
for granting some measure of enforcement credit to excellent operators. This could be done by
re-instituting the “Single Penalty” provision in place before the 2008 Part 100 changes, and/or by
implementing the NSSGA-supported ‘Pattern of Compliance’ program of granting some
enforcement relief (from some of the mandatory two mandatory inspections of surface facilities,

or 4 mandatory inspections of underground facilities) for operators with an excellent record of
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compliance and safety. These are compelling ideas that would further boost compliance. Thank

you for consideration of these comments.

Conclusion

NSSGA strongly opposes key provisions of this proposal because, just as industry and MSHA
have worked diligently to achieve improvements in compliance and inspector consistency, these
provisions will foster less consistent enforcement and compliance. Accordingly, such factors
would result in increased burden on operators which would serve to impede continued efforts to
successfully manage for workplace safety and health, and compliance with standards. Further,
this proposal fails to meet the agency’s stated goals of: 1) improving inspector objectivity and
consistency, 2) earlier resolution of enforcement issues, 3) greater emphasis on more serious
safety and health conditions, and 4) provide increased faimess and transparency in penalty

criteria.
NSSGA would be pleased to work with MSHA to develop a more positive approach to
improving Part 100. We will submit written comments in time for the January 9, 2015 deadline.

Tharnk you.

HiH

WkET




What Is The Main Outcome?

Compressed penalty cntena WhICh are more subje_' J:ve and unclear o

- No Negllgence

Low Negligence - _Not Negligent
Moderate Negligence ‘ Negligent

High Negligence Reckless Disregard
Reckless Disregard |

No Likelihood
Unlikely

Unlikely
Reasonably Likely ‘ Reasonably Likely
Highly Likely Occurred

Occurred

& Our data analysis assumes categories will frend towards the middle
o Low & High = Negligent; Unlikely & Highly Likely = Reasonably leely

# Revised categorles Wi|| Iead to lncreased penaltles |

_jacksonflewis |




Part 100

Example Citation
#1




Proposed Rule

The proposal would reduce the existing five categories of Likelihood of the occurrence of an
event against which a standard is directed to three: (1) Unlikely; (2) Reasonably Likely; or (3)
Occurred.

“These proposed changes would simplify the enforcement process, improve objectivity and
consistency, ...”

79 Fed. Reg. at 44503 (emphasis added)
Comments

While MSHA believes this will improve objectivity, it is our view that is will only increase the
subjectivity of the evaluation of the citation.

Our belief is based on the newly defined Likelihood criteria in the proposed rule which is a
deviation from numerous years of case law set forth by FMHSRC decisions.

With increased subjectivity of the evaluation, this will iead to an increase in penalties and
litigation. Both are items which are contrary to the proposed rule’s stated intentions.

A Alpha Natural Resources
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New “Reasonably Likely” Definition

“A condition or practice that is likely to cause an event that could result in an injury or iliness.

79 Fed. Reg. at 44503 (emphasis added)

This new definition eliminates the reasonable probability requirement that the condition/practice will resultin an
injury and reduces it to the possibility that the condition/practice could result in an injury.

This will lead to an increase of subjectivity which will in turn lead to further complications and disagreements in

regards to enforcement instead of simplification, improved objectivity and consistency as stated goals by the
proposal.

Citation Example - Condition or Practice (as written)

When checked, both off side sanders on the No. 2 Brookeville mantrip, senal #8131, were not being

maintained in a working condition. The sanders would not open and allow sand to flow from the
reserves.

Let’s review the actual citation to see the subjectivity impact of this newly defined criterion.
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New “Occurred” Definition

“A condition or practice has caused an event that has resulted or could have resulted in an injury

or iliness.
79 Fed. Reg. at 44503 {emphasis added)

This new definition is contrary to MSHA'’s Citation and Order Writing Handbook, which directs MSHA inspectors
that the Occurred criterion, “can only be checked when an injury or iliness has actually occurred.”

MSHA Handbook Number PH13-1-1(1), p.11 (emphasis added)

Citation Example - Condition or Practice (as written)

Roof and Ribs where miners work and travel shall be supported or otherwise profected. When checked,
an area of draw rock is present in the Left Return outby the 001/0 MMU at survey spad 9965 between
breaks 79-80. The rock in this area is separated from the mine roof 1-4 inches in various locations
between the breaks, with multiple pieces of rock already fallen to the mine floor. The biggest piece of
rock pulled measured 2 feet long by 10 inches wide, up fo 2 inches thick. Test holes in this area reveal
cracks af 12 and 29 inches. The roof is showing signs of deterioration and cutting along the right hand
nb and top is cracked in multiple locations between the breaks. The operator had previously set cribs
along the left rib inby break 80. Failure fo place additional support exposes miners to hazards related fo
falls of roof and ribs. Miners travel this entry on a regular basis.

Standard 75.202(a) was cited 3 times in two years af mine sz (3 to the operator, 0 to a contractor).

Let’s review the actual citation to see the impact of this newly defined criterion.
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Proposed Rule

The proposal would reduce the five existing categories of negligence to three: (1) Not Negligent;
(2) Negligent; or (3) Reckless Disregard. It would also re-define “Negligent” to eliminate mitigating
circumstances.

“MSHA believes that reducing the number of negligence categories would improve objectivity and
consistency in the evaluation of negligence, resulting in fewer areas of disagreement,....”
79 Fed. Regq. at 44502

Comments

While MSHA believes this will improve objectivity, it is our view that is will only increase the
subjectivity of the evaluation of the citation.

With increased subjectivity of the evaluation, this will lead to an increase in penalties and
litigation, especially when the evaluation jumps to the next available seiection because the
previous selection is no longer available. Both are items which are contrary to the proposed
rule’s stated intentions.

Also, by eliminating the “High Negligence” category, it remains unknown to how 104 d citations
will be issued going forward, since FMSHRC decisions have established that criteria as a
requirement.
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Proposed Rule

The proposal would reduce the four existing categories of severity of injury or iliness to three: (1)
No Lost Workdays; (2) Lost Workdays or Restricted Duty; or (3) Fatal. It would eliminate the
existing “Permanently Disabling” category, which is often difficult to anticipate.

“Consistent with proposed changes for other criteria, MSHA believes that reducing the number of
categories would simplify the Severity factor, resulting in improved objectivity and consistency in

the enforcement process.”
79 Fed. Reg. at 44503

Comments

While MSHA believes this will improve objectivity, it Is our view that is will only increase the
subjectivity of the evaluation of the citation.

With increased subjectivity of the evaluation, this will lead to an increase in penalties and
litigation, especially when the evaluation jumps to the next available selection because the
previous selection is no longer available. Both are items which are contrary to the proposed
rule’s stated intentions.
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Good morning, I am Mark Ellis, and [ am the President of IMA-NA -- the Industrial
Minerals Association — North America. IMA-NA is a Washington, DC-based trade association
created to advance the interests of North American companies that mine or process minerals used
throughout the manufacturing and agricultural industries. In addition, IMA-NA represents
associate member companies that provide equipment and services to the industrial minerals
industry. IMA-NA’s producer membership is comprised of companies that are leaders in the ball
clay, barite, bentonite, borates, calcium carbonate, diatomite, feldspar, industrial sand, kaolin,
magnesia, mica, soda ash (trona), talc, wollastonite and other industrial minerals industries. As
such, the nonmetal mines sited in the United States are subject to MSHA jurisdiction and the
requirements of 30 CFR Part 100, MSHA’s civil penalty regulations. IMA-NA appreciates the

opportunity to put these comments before MSHA for consideration.

IMA-NA supports MSHAs stated intent in the proposed rule to simplify the criteria for
assessing civil penalties, which will promote consistency, objectivity, and efficiency in the
proposed assessment of civil penalties and facilitate the resolution of enforcement issues. The
presence of a fair and effective program for the assessment and resolution of civil penalties is an
important tool for MSHA to ensure compliance with the Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of

1977 and its associated regulations.

Nevertheless, the proposed rule’s attempt to change the scope of authority of the Federal
Mine Safety and Health Review Commission from de novo review to a diminished and restricted
role exceeds the legal authority granted to MSHA by the Mine Act and subverts Congress’s
intent when enacting the Mine Act. Moreover, the proposed rule’s requested simplification of
the gravity and negligence of alleged violations, when combined with the proposed changes to
FMSHRC’s authority, transgresses all reasonable bounds of a mine operator’s constitutionally
protected due process rights, leaving the Commission’s role to decide cases as an impartial

adjudicator of alleged violations of the Mine Act largely illusory.

IMA-NA’s principal witness today, Andrew O’Brien, is the Chair of IMA-NA’s Safety

2
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and Heaith Committee.

With that segue, I will turn things over to Andy.
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Good morning. My name is Andrew O’Brien, and | am the Vice President of Safety &
Health for Unimin Corporation. I am pleased to testify before you this morning on behalf of IMA-
NA concerning MSHA'’s proposed rule regarding criteria and procedures for assessment of civil
penalties. As Mark just noted, IMA-NA, and its member companies, strongly oppose provisions in

MSHA’s proposed rule that would subvert the statutory role for de novo review accorded by
Congress to the Mine Safety and Health Review Commission in the Mine Act.

But first, let me provide some background on myself and Unimin.

I am a Certified Industrial Hygienist and Certified Safety Professional with a Master of
Science degree in Industrial Hygiene and a B.S. degree in Safety Engineering. I am currently the
Vice President of Safety & Health for Unimin Corporation. Founded in 1970, Unimin has grown
from a small, local sand mining company to become a leading producer of non-metallic industrial
minerals in the Worldwide Sibelco Group. We are the largest producer of industrial sand in each of
the United States, Canada and Mexico, and, along with our affiliates in other countries, we are the
largest producer in the world. I am responsible for the safety and health of Unimin’s employees
throughout North America, with a current census of approximately 2,400 individuals. As Mark also
noted I am the chairman of IMA-NA’s Safety and Health Committee,

Through its proposed rule, MSHA would reduce the range of possible violations, thus
shrinking a mine operator’s ability to challenge the agency’s actions, while at the same time
greatly limiting the Commission’s authority to review the agency’s enforcement action. The
careful balance of the administrative enforcement process crafted by the Mine Act would tilt
unconstitutionally in favor of unchecked agency power to cite, assess, and enforce civil penalties
with little recourse for the affected parties. Such a change would tread on mine operators’
constitutionally protected due process rights and almost certainly lead to protracted federal
litigation. The civil penalty enforcement process would thus become anything but simplified as
mine operators would have no choice but to appeal thousands of constitutionally inadequate

Commission decisions through the federal court system.
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I"d like to offer a relevant quote that we regarded as insightful, quote “Congress created
the Commission to serve as a completely independent adjudicatory authority which would
review orders, citations, and penalties and which, by providing administrative adjudication of
disputed cases under the Mine Act, would preserve due process and instill much more
confidence in the program.” unquote The author of that quote is Mr. Christian Schumann, who
currently is the Counsel for Appellate Litigation in the Office of the Solicitor’s Division of Mine
Safety and Health. He further has opined, quote “the Commission, like a court, plays arole --
ensuring that the government acts within the parameters of the law and that private parties
receive due process of law -- which is critically important to the administration of justice and, at
the same time, limited in scope.” unquote We agree with Mr. Schumann. By the way, these
quoted observations can be found in a West Virginia University law review article that IMA-NA

cites in our written comments,

MSHA'’s proposed rule regarding the Commission’s authority to assess penalties under
the Mine Act has two alternatives, and a third, which would make no change to existing
regulations, but would leave open the possibility that MSHA would pursue its agenda on an
informal or case-by-case basis. Under the first alternative, sections 100.1 and 100.2 would be
revised such that quote “if the Secretary meets his burden to prove the penalty-related facts
alleged, part 100 would require the ALJ to assess MSHA’s proposed penalty.” unquote.

Likewise, alternative two would give the Commission some ability to modify MSHA’s
mandatory penalties, but only under heightened requirements, which the proposed rule claims are
akin to the Federal Sentencing Guidelines, at least before those guidelines were found to be
unconstitutional by the Supreme Court. MSHA’s proposed heightened requirements include: 1)
mandating that ALJs identify aggravating or mitigating circumstances of a kind, or to a degree,
not adequately taken into consideration by the Secretary when formulating the penalty
regulations, 2) consider MSHAs policy statements which have not been subject to rule-making
proceedings, 3) list a statement of reasons for assessing the penalty, and 4) consider the statutory

penalty criteria.
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On top of the proposed changes to the scope of the Commission’s authority to assess
penalties, MSHA also proposes quote “simplifying” unquote its citation form and associated
penalty calculations with respect to the possible ranges of negligence, gravity, and other statutory
criteria identified by the Act. This simplification would, for example, constrain MSHA
inspectors to only three options for an operator’s level of culpability: not negligent, negligent, or
reckless disregard. As a result, MSHA inspectors will lose the discretion to issue a citation for
high negligence and will instead likely issue more citations under the categories of reckless

disregard, which, in turn, will result in higher penalty assessment against operators.

Similarly, by deleting categories of gravity, the default position for MSHA will likely fall
on the serious side. For example, MSHA inspectors will no longer have no likelihood or
permanently disabling as options on the citation form and thus MSHA inspectors will necessarily
have to choose higher levels of likelihood, including occurrence of a fatality, as designations on
the citation. Thus, mine operators will experience more significant and substantial citations and

higher penalties as a result.

IMA-NA’s objection to the proposed rule is as fundamental as it is straightforward:
alternative one takes the power to issue penalties, which is exclusively vested by the Mine Act in
the Commission, and puts it into the hands of the Secretary. It effectively makes MSHA’s
proposed penalties the mandatory penalties, so long as the ALJ upholds the underlying violations
and its associated factors such as negligence, size of the operator, and gravity, among others. At
the same time, MSHA’s quote “simplification” unquote of the citation form and the re-
weighting of the penalty criteria will likely force MSHA inspectors to choose higher levels of

negligence, as well as other penalty factors, when issuing citations.

As a result, the proposed rule strengthens MSHA’s enforcement power and increases the
likely penalties against operators, while at the same time greatly limiting the Commission’s
ability to review MSHA’s enforcement action and the Commission’s power to assess alternative
penalties as envisioned by the Mine Act. Likewise, altemative two mandates that the

Commission apply MSHA policy statements, among other things, in addition to the statutory

2011 Pennaylvania Avenue, NW, Suite 301, Washington, DC 20006 | 202-457-0200 | fax 202-457-0287 | wwwima na.arg




Testimony of the Industrial Minerals Association — North America (O’Brien)

RIN 1219-AB72, Docket No. MSHA-2014-0009

December 4, 2014

Page 5

criteria provided in the Act. It thus imposes more stringent requirements on the Commission

than those imposed by the Act and demands that the Commission apply additional factors
beyond those identified in the Act.

The effect of the proposed rule’s adjustment of the Commission’s authority combined
with the “simplification” of the penalty criteria in the MSHA citation form would also deprive
mine operators their constitutionally protected procedural due process rights. The proposed rule,
through either of its suggested alternatives, transforms the Commission’s independent authority
to review MSHA’s enforcement actions into a rubber stamp giving MSHA carte blanche to write
its own regulations, propose its own penalties, and mandate enforcement without any meaningful
opportunity for the regulated to be heard. Here, the risk of error in providing for virtually
unchecked agency authority greatly outweighs MSHA'’s interest in expedited and predicable

outcomes.

The Mine Act is unambiguous with respect to the Commission’s authority to impose
penalties-—it is the Commission’s, not MSHA’s, absolute and exclusive right to assess penalties
under the six statutory criteria in the Act. MSHA cannot change the statutory authority of an
independent agency whose sole purpose is to provide for an impartial adjudicatory review of
MSHA’s actions. Therefore, IMA-NA strongly urges MSHA to abandon the proposed rule in its
current form. The only avenue for changing the authority of the Commission runs through

Congress.

IMA-NA appreciates the opportunity to comment and testify on MSHA’s proposed rule
on the criteria and assessment of civil penalties, and it stands ready to assist in developing an
effective alternative rule in a constructive manner. For example, IMA-NA supports the proposed
rule's procedure for a 20 percent reduction in proposed MSHA penalties if such penalties are
paid within 30 days. IMA-NA believes such a procedure would result in less litigation overall
and would have a net positive effect for operators willing to accept MSHA citations, but who
may otherwise be financially constrained from doing so if required to pay 100 percent of the
penalty. Likewise, IMA-NA supports the proposed rule's reduction in weight of the persons

affected and operator size criteria.
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That concludes my prepared remarks and Mark and I would be pleased to entertain

questions from the MSHA hearing panel.
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My name is Hunter Prillaman, and ’'m here from the National Lime Association. NLA’s
members have plants in 24 states, and produce greater than 99 percent of the United States’
calcium oxides and hydroxides. Because NLA’s members operate both surface and underground
mines under the jurisdiction of MSHA, NLA and its members have a strong interest in this
rulemaking.

LA has submitted detailed comments on the proposal, and I don’t propose to repeat them in
detail here. I would just like to address one specific point.

We believe that collapsing the negligence categories from five into three is a mistake, and cuts
against the goal of focusing enforcement efforts and penalties on the most serious, and negligent,
violations.

In particular, NLA strongly opposes the elimination of the “low negligence” category. Since
MSHA rarely, if ever, finds the absence of negligence, the proposed change will result in
previously low negligence citations being characterized as negligent—lumped in with violations
that previously would have been considered to demonstrate both moderate and high negligence.

This means that violations which would previously have been characterized as low negligence—
and there are many of these —will now be given 15 points out of a possible 100, as opposed to 10
points out of a possible 208. This can result in a comparative increase in the penalty by hundreds
of dollars, even for a facility with a good compliance record. Just as an example, under the
current rule, adding 10 points to the current minimum penalty level would increase the penalty
from $112 to $3@. Under the proposed rule, adding 15 points would increase the penalty from
$11210 $1000. 7244

So, rather than simply shifting penalties to more serious violations, the change will result in
substantially higher penalties for what would have been considered low negligence violations
under the current rules. This is contrary to what MSHA indicated that it is trying to do with this
rule.

We can certainly understand the desire to simplify the penalty process. However, the fact is that
there are many violations that represent low negligence. These occur at even well-run
operations, and were often candidates for the prior single penalty assessment. To treat these
minor infractions as the same as those invol ving more serious negligence is unfair, and does not
constitute treating increased negligence as a serious matter. In this case, the proposal makes the
penalty-setting instrument too blunt to serve its purpose.

Thanks.




